BASE PROSPECTUS

Oberbank Ac

(incorporated as a stock corporation under the laws of the Republic of Austria; commercial register
number FN 79063 w)

OBERBANK AG
DEBT ISSUANCE PROGRAMME

for the issuance of notes in bearer form and for the public offer and their admission to trading on the
Official Market (Amtlicher Handel) of the Vienna Stock Exchange

Under the Debt Issuance Programme (the "Programme") described in this base prospectus (the "Prospectus"), Oberbank AG
(the "Issuer"” or "Oberbank") may from time to time issue notes in bearer form as described herein (the "Notes").

This Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus as defined in Article 5(4) of Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended (the
"Prospectus Directive"), and is issued to update the prospectus dated 16 February 2018 as supplemented. Application may be
made to list Notes issued under the Programme on the Official Market (Amtlicher Handel) of the Vienna Stock Exchange (the
"Austrian Market") or to include Notes issued under the Programme in the Third Market (Dritter Markt) of the Vienna Stock
Exchange which is a multilateral trading facility (MTF) (the "Third Market"), or by way of notification of this Prospectus to the
competent authorities on any regulated market in Germany (together with the Austrian Market, the "Markets") or on any
multilateral trading facility in any of these countries. The Official Market of the Vienna Stock Exchange is a regulated market for
the purposes of the Directive 2014/65/EU, as amended (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive Il — "MiFID II"). Unlisted
Notes may also be issued pursuant to this Programme. The relevant Final Terms (as defined below) in respect of the issue of
any Notes will specify whether or not such Notes will be admitted to trading on one or more of the Markets.

This Prospectus has been approved by the Austrian Financial Market Authority (Finanzmarktaufsichtsbehérde — "FMA") in its
capacity as competent authority under the Austrian Capital Market Act (Kapitalmarktgesetz — "KMG"). The Prospectus and any
possible supplements thereto are available free of charge on the Issuer's website www .oberbank.at under the menu item
"Investor Relations" / "Anleiheemissionen”. The Issuer has requested the FMA to provide the competent authority in the Federal
Republic of Germany with a certificate of approval attesting that this Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with
Article 5 (4) of the Prospectus Directive and the KMG. The Issuer may request the FMA to provide competent authorities in
additional member states within the European Economic Area ("EEA") with a notification.

The Issuer may offer the Notes under this Programme publicly or non-publicly. Public offers of Notes will only be made in
Austria and Germany within the EEA in which this Prospectus has been notified. The Issuer reserves the right to offer the Notes
also by way of private placements in other jurisdictions.

The specific final terms of each issuance of Notes will be determined at the time of offering of such issuance of Notes based on
then prevailing market conditions and will be set forth in the applicable final terms (the form of which is contained herein) (the
"Final Terms").

Prospective investors should have regard to the factors described under the section headed "Risk Factors" in this Prospectus.
This Prospectus does not describe all of the risks of an investment in the Notes.

The accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus does not fall within the scope of examination by the FMA
under applicable Austrian law. The FMA examines this Prospectus only in respect of its completeness, coherence and
comprehensibility pursuant to 8 8a KMG.

Dated 15 February 2019



Important Notice

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer to
subscribe for, or purchase, any Notes.

This Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with all of the parts of documents which are incorporated
herein by reference (see the section "Documents Incorporated by Reference").

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation other than
those contained in this Prospectus in connection with the issuance or sale of the Notes and, if given or
made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
Issuer. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made in connection herewith shall, under
any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer
since the date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or
supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer since
the date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or
supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of
any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the
document containing the same. This Prospectus may only be used for the purposes for which it has
been published.

The content of this Prospectus is not to be regarded as legal, economic or tax advice. Investors shall
in any case consult qualified experts before any investment decision in Notes. Investors shall make
their own assessment of the legal, tax, financial and other consequences connected with purchasing
any Notes under this Programme.

This Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with AnnexesV, Xl, XXII and XXX of the
Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004, as amended (Prospectus Regulation).

Selling Restrictions

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or sale of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be
restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes are required by the Issuer to
inform themselves about and to observe any such restriction. The Notes have not been and will not be
registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") and include Notes in
bearer form that are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Notes may
not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons. For a description of
certain restrictions on offers and sales of Notes and on distribution of this Prospectus, see the section
"Subscription and Sale".

MiIFID Il Product Governance

The relevant Final Terms in respect of any Notes may include a legend entitled "MiFID Il product
governance" which will outline the Issuer's target market assessment in respect of the Notes and
which channels for distribution of the Notes are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling
or recommending the Notes (a "Distributor") should take into consideration such target market
assessment; however, a Distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for undertaking its own target
market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the Product
Governance Rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the "MIFID Il Product Governance
Rules"), any dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but
otherwise any financial intermediaries nor any of their respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for
the purpose of the MiFID Il Product Governance Rules.

Benchmark Regulation Statement in relation to Administrator's Registration

Amounts payable under the Notes may be calculated by reference to one or several specific
benchmark(s), each of which is provided by an administrator.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the specific benchmark(s) are not yet determined. The Final Terms
may set out the name of the specific benchmark(s) and the relevant administrator. In such a case they
will further specify if the relevant administrator appears or does not appear on the register of
administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by ESMA pursuant to Article 36 of the
Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 (the "Benchmark Regulation™).
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following parts of the following
documents which are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus and which have been filed with

the FMA:

Document/Heading

German language version of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 as included in the Annual Report
2017 (the "Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements 2017")l

Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Gesamtergebnisrechnung)
Balance Sheet (Bilanz)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(Entwicklung des Konzerneigenkapitals)

Statement of Cash Flows
(Geldflussrechnung)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Erlauterungen (Notes) zum Konzernabschluss)

Auditor's Opinion (Bestatigungsvermerk)
German language version of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 as included in the Annual Report

2016 (the "Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements 2016")"

Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Gesamtergebnisrechnung)
Balance Sheet (Bilanz)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(Entwicklung des Konzerneigenkapitals)

Statement of Cash Flows
(Geldflussrechnung)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Erlauterungen (Notes) zum Konzernabschluss)

Auditor's Opinion (Bestatigungsvermerk)

Page reference in
the relevant
financial report

105 - 106

107
108 - 109

109 - 110

111 -189

191 -197

70-71

72
73-74

74-75

76 - 149

151 - 157

The officially signed German language versions of the Issuer's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2016 and
2017 are solely legally binding and definitive. For the purposes of this Prospectus the defined term "Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements 2017" shall also include the English language translation of the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.



English language translation of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 (extracted from the Issuer's
annual report 2017)?

Statement of Comprehensive Income 105 - 106
Balance Sheet 107

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 108 — 109
Statement of Cash Flows 109 - 110
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 111 -189
Auditor's Opinion 191 - 197

English language translation of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 (extracted from the Issuer's
annual report 2016)?

Statement of Comprehensive Income 70-71
Balance Sheet 72
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 73-74
Statement of Cash Flows 74 -75
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 76 — 149
Auditor's Opinion 151 — 157

English language translation of the Unaudited Interim
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the third quarter
year ended 30 September 2018 (the "Unaudited Interim
Financial Statements as of 30 September 2018")

Statement of Comprehensive Income 14 - 17
Balance Sheet 18
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 19
Statement of Cash Flows 20-21
Explanations/Notes 22 -47

English language translation of the Unaudited Interim
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the third quarter
year ended 30 September 2017 (the "Unaudited Interim
Financial Statements as of 30 September 2017")

Statement of Comprehensive Income 14 - 15
Balance Sheet 16
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 17
Statement of Cash Flows 18
Explanations/Notes 19 -30

For the avoidance of doubt, such parts of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2016 and
2017, respectively, as well as of the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements as of 30 September 2018

The English language translations of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 are not legally binding and are incorporated into this Prospectus by
reference for convenience purposes only.



and as of 30 September 2017 which are not explicitly listed in the tables above, are not incorporated
by reference into this Prospectus as these parts are either not relevant for the investor or covered
elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Any information not listed above but included in the documents incorporated by reference is given for
information purposes only.

Such parts of the documents which are explicitly listed above shall be deemed to be incorporated in,
and form part of this Prospectus, save that any statement contained in such a document shall be
deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement
contained in this Prospectus modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether expressly, by
implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so
modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Prospectus.

Furthermore, this Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with each set of Final
Terms relating to any Notes that are offered under the Programme at the time of this Prospectus which
has been previously filed with the FMA. The following sections of the following prospectuses relating to
the Programme, which have been previously published, are incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus:

Prospectus/Section Page reference in the
relevant prospectus

The prospectus dated 16 February 2018
Terms and Conditions of the Notes 101 - 125

Form of Final Terms as far as the Final Terms are 126 — 141
required for completing the terms and conditions of the

Notes, provided that on the first page of the Form of

Final Terms the reference "16.02.2018" shall be

replaced by "15.2.2019"

The prospectus dated 17 February 2017
Terms and Conditions of the Notes 99 -122

Form of Final Terms as far as the Final Terms are 123 -138
required for completing the terms and conditions of the

Notes, provided that on the first page of the Form of

Final Terms the reference "17.02.2017" shall be

replaced by "15.2.2019"

For the avoidance of doubt, such parts of the above listed previously published prospectuses relating
to the Programme which are not explicitly listed in the tables above, are not incorporated by reference
into this Prospectus as these parts are either not relevant for the investor or covered elsewhere in this
Prospectus. Any information not listed above but included in the prospectuses incorporated by
reference is given for information purposes only.

Under this Prospectus, the Issuer may also offer notes which have been issued under the prospectus
dated 16 February 2018 and the prospectus dated 17 February 2017. Such notes may include all
notes: (@) for which either (i) the first day of the subscription period; or (ii) the issue date is after
17 February 2017; and (b) which have not already been redeemed or cancelled or otherwise repaid by
the Issuer.

The documents incorporated by reference mentioned above can be inspected at the Issuer’'s seat
Untere Donaulande 28, 4020 Linz, Austria, during usual business hours and copies are available free
of charge (in the department "Secretariat and Communication") and on the Issuer's website under the
section "Investor Relations" under the subsections "Kennzahlen und Berichte" or "Anleiheemissionen”,
respectively.



DOCUMENTS AVAILBLE FOR INSPECTION

Electronic versions of the following documents will be available on the Issuer's website under
www .oberbank.at (see also the links set out below in brackets):

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20195/559187/irglobal_k_gb17.pdf/df66f1fc-2aed-4c3a-b749-
0e3c08629f4d);

the English language translation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 (extracted from the Issuer's annual
report 2017) incorporated by reference into this Prospectus

(www .oberbank.com/documents/20195/559187/irglobal_k gh17_ eng.pdf/0adbf92a-9cc2-
4120-85af-6ebe6h31213a);

the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2016 incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20195/559187/irglobal_k_gb16.pdf);

the English language translation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (extracted from the Issuer's annual
report 2016) incorporated by reference into this Prospectus

(www .oberbank.com/documents/20732/412157/ir_k_gb16 eng/23271fa9-1514-4701-bc71-
16a07afae5b0);

the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements as of 30 September 2018 incorporated by
reference into this Prospectus

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20195/418255/irglobal_k_318 EN/6aef3cc3-bebe-4665-80ff-
715c1b8e8554);

the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements as of 30 September 2017 incorporated by
reference into this Prospectus

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20195/559187/irglobal_k_317_eng.pdf);
the prospectus dated 16 February 2018

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20373/28034/wp_basisprospekt2018.pdf/74addeed-3904-
45ad-951a-f101069459d4);

the prospectus dated 17 February 2017

(www .oberbank.at/documents/20373/28034/wp_basisprospekt2017.PDF/74162142-65ce-
4adc-86e8-9b36a3d3443);

each set of Final Terms for Notes that are publicly offered or admitted to trading on a
regulated market

(www .oberbank.at/anleihen);

a copy of this Prospectus together with any supplement to this Prospectus

(www https://www.oberbank.at/documents/20373/28034/wp_basisprospekt2019.pdf); and
the Issuer's articles of association

(www .oberbank.at/corporate-governance).

For the life of this Prospectus the document mentioned above under item (xi) will be available during
usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) for
inspection at the registered office of the Issuer (Untere Donaulénde 28, 4020 Linz, Austria). Copies of
these documents will be handed out to investors free of charge.



SUPPLEMENT TO THIS PROSPECTUS

The Issuer is obliged by the provisions of the Prospectus Directive and the KMG, that if at any time
during the duration of the Programme there is a significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information contained in this Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of
any Notes and which arises or is noted between the time when this Prospectus is approved and the
final closing of an offer of such Notes to the public or, as the case may be, the time when trading on a
regulated market begins, whichever occurs later, the Issuer shall prepare a supplement to this
Prospectus or publish a replacement Prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent offering of
the Notes and shall supply to the FMA and the stock exchange operating the Markets such number of
copies of such supplement or replacement hereto as relevant applicable legislation require.

SOURCE OF INFORMATION

Unless otherwise stated, statistical and other data provided in this Prospectus has been extracted from
the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 and the English language translation of the
annual report thereon as well as the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements as of 30 September
2018. The Issuer confirms that such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it
is aware, and is able to ascertain from information published by such sources, no facts have been
omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements. A forward-looking statement is a
statement that does not relate to historical facts and events. They are based on analyses or
forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable or foreseeable. These
forward-looking statements are identified by the use of terms and phrases such as "anticipate",
"believe", "could", "estimate", "expect", "intend", "may", "plan”, "predict", "project”, "will* and
similar terms and phrases, including references and assumptions. This applies, in particular, to
statements in this Prospectus containing information on future earning capacity, plans and
expectations regarding the Issuer's business and management, its growth and profitability, and
general economic and regulatory conditions and other factors that affect it. Forward-looking
statements in this Prospectus are based on current estimates and assumptions that the Issuer
makes to the best of its present knowledge. These forward-looking statements are subject to
risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results, including the Issuer's
financial condition and results of operations, to differ materially from and be worse than results
that have expressly or implicitly been assumed or described in these forward-looking statements.
The Issuer's business is also subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause a
forward-looking statement, estimate or prediction in this Prospectus to become inaccurate.
Accordingly, investors are strongly advised to read the following sections of this Prospectus:
"Summary" (or if the case may be "Summary in German Language"), "Risk Factors" and
"Oberbank AG". These sections include more detailed descriptions of factors than the ones
contained in this section that might have an impact on the Issuer's business and the markets in
which it operates.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions as well as future events described in this
Prospectus may not occur. In addition, the Issuer assumes no obligation, except as required by
law, to update any forward-looking statement or to conform these forward-looking statements to
actual events or developments.

CONSENT TO THE USE OF PROSPECTUS

The Issuer may grant its individual consent and/or general consent to the use of this Prospectus for
certain jurisdictions (for Austria and/or Germany) or may not give such consent at all, as specified in
the relevant Final Terms.

If no consent is given, financial intermediaries are not allowed to use this Prospectus with respect to
any Notes issued thereunder.

If the Issuer grants its individual consent, the Issuer offers to certain financial intermediaries (individual
consent) to conclude an agreement for the use of this Prospectus and any possible supplements
thereto for the subsequent resale or final placement of Notes (distribution actions). Such agreement



will be concluded with each relevant financial intermediary by carrying out the first distribution action
(factual acceptance). Any financial intermediary to whom such offer is made shall be named in the
Final Terms together with the jurisdictions such individual consent applies to.

The Issuer further reserves the option to give a general consent to all credit institutions as financial
intermediaries which are licensed according to the Directive 2013/36/EU, as amended (Capital
Requirements Directive IV — "CRD IV") in an EEA member state and are authorized to conduct
securities issuances business or the distribution of notes to the use of this Prospectus with respect to
certain individual issuances under this Prospectus. The Final Terms shall specifiy the jurisdictions
such general consent will apply to.

If an individual or general consent is given, the following applies:

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the content of this Prospectus with respect to subsequent resale
or final placement of Notes by any financial intermediary which has been given consent to use this
Prospectus. However, the Issuer does not accept any liability for actions or omissions of such financial
intermediaries. This consent is given until the end of the validity of this Prospectus and only for such
jurisdictions as specified in the relevant Final Terms. The offer period upon which subsequent resale
or final placement of the Notes by financial intermediaries can be made will be specified in the Final
Terms. The Issuer reserves the right to rescind the consent at any time in its sole discretion. Any other
clear and objective conditions attached to the consent which are relevant for the use of the
Prospectus, if applicable, will be specified in the Final Terms. This consent explicitly does not exempt
from complying with applicable sales restrictions and with all applicable provisions of the respective
offer, as well as from assessing the target market and the appropriate distribution channels with
respect to the Notes according to MiFID Il by taking into account the Issuer’s specifications thereto. A
financial intermediary is not exempt from complying with any provisions applicable to the financial
intermediary. The Issuer may revoke the above with immediate effect without giving any reasons.

In case the Issuer does not give a general consent to the use of this Prospectus, any new information
with respect to financial intermediaries unknown at the time of the approval of the Prospectus will be
published on the Issuers website (www .oberbank.at under the sections "Investor Relations” /
"Anleiheemissionen”).

In the event of an offer being made by a financial intermediary, such financial intermediary will
provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of the offer at the time the offer is
made.

In case the Issuer gives a general consent to the use of this Prospectus, the following applies:

Any financial intermediary using this Prospectus has to state on its website that it uses the
Prospectus in accordance with the consent and the conditions attached thereto.

The relevant Final Terms of each Note will specifiy whether the Issuer gives its individual consent or
general consent to the use of this Prospectus or no such consent at all.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Oberbank, with its registered office in Untere Donaulande 28, 4020 Linz, Austria, is responsible for the
information contained in this Prospectus and declares that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure
that such is the case, the information contained in the Prospectus is, to the best of its knowledge, in
accordance with the facts and that the Prospectus makes no omission likely to affect its import.
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1. SUMMARY

This summary (the "Summary") is made up of disclosure requirements known as elements (the
"Elements"). These Elements are numbered in sections A — E (A.1 - E.7).

This Summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of
securities and issuer. As some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be gaps in the
numbering sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in this Summary because of the type of
securities and issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In
this case, a short description of the Element is included in this Summary with the specification of "Not
applicable".

[This Summary contains options, characterised by square brackets or typesetting in italics (other than
the respective translations of specific legal terms), and placeholders regarding the Notes to be issued
under the Programme. The summary of the individual issue of Notes will include the options relevant
to this issue of Notes as determined by the applicable Final Terms and will contain the information,
which had been left blank, as completed by the applicable Final Terms.]

A. INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS

Al Warnings: This summary (the "Summary") should be read as an
introduction to the prospectus (the "Prospectus”) of the Debt
Issuance Programme (the "Programme").

Any decision by an investor to invest in notes issued under the
Prospectus (the "Notes") should be based on consideration of
the Prospectus as a whole, including any possible supplements
and documents incorporated by reference, by the investor.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in the
Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might,
under the national legislation of the Member States of the
European Economic Area, have to bear the costs of translating
the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to Oberbank AG (the "Issuer" or
"Oberbank"”) who has tabled this Summary including any
translation thereof, but only if this Summary is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other
parts of the Prospectus or it does not provide, when read
together with the other parts of the Prospectus, key information
in order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in
the Notes.

A.2 Consent by the Issuer to [In case the Issuer does not give its consent for the use of
the use of the Prospectus the Prospectus insert:

for subsequent resale or Not applicable; the Issuer does not give its consent to the use of

final . placement_ .Of the Prospectus with respect to these Notes.]
securites by financial
intermediaries: [In case of an individual or general consent for the use of

the Prospectus for the specified jurisdictions insert:

[In case of an individual consent for the use of the
Prospectus insert:

The Issuer offers to certain financial intermediaries (individual
consent) to conclude an agreement for the use of the
Prospectus and any possible supplements thereto for the
subsequent resale or final placement of Notes (distribution
actions). Such agreement will be concluded with each relevant
financial intermediary by carrying out the first distribution action
(factual acceptance). Any financial intermediary to whom such
offer is made is named in the Final Terms. This individual

11



Indication of the offer
period within which
subsequent resale or final
placement of securities by
financial intermediaries can

be made and for which

consent to use the
Prospectus is given:

Any other clear and
objective conditions

attached to the consent
which are relevant for the
use of the Prospectus:

Notice to investors:

consent is given only for [Austria] [and] [Germany].]

[In case of a general consent for the use of the Prospectus
for the specified jurisdictions insert:

The Issuer consents to the use of the Prospectus and any
possible supplements thereto by all credit institutions as
financial intermediaries which are licensed according to the
Directive 2013/36/EU, as amended (Capital Requirements
Directive IV — "CRD IV") in a member state of the European
Economic Area and are authorized to conduct securities
issuances business or the distribution of notes. This general
consent is given only for [Austria] [and] [Germany].]

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the content of the
Prospectus with respect to subsequent resale or final placement
of Notes by any financial intermediary which has been given
consent to use the Prospectus. However, the Issuer does not
accept any liability for actions or omissions of [such] financial
intermediaries.]

[Not applicable.] [This consent is given until the end of the
validity of the Prospectus and only for the jurisdictions as
specified above. The offer period upon which subsequent resale
or final placement of the Notes by financial intermediaries can be
made runs [from [insert date] until one day before the
redemption date at the latest] [from [insert date] to [insert
date]]. The Issuer reserves the right to rescind the consent at
any time in its sole discretion.]

[Not applicable.] [This consent explicitly does not exempt from
complying with applicable sales restrictions and with all
applicable provisions of the respective offer, as well as from
assessing the target market and the appropriate distribution

channels with respect to the Notes according to
Directive 2014/65/EU, as amended (Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive Il — "MIFID 1I") by taking into account the

Issuer’s specifications thereto. A financial intermediary is not
exempt from complying with any provisions applicable to the
financial intermediary. The Issuer may revoke the above with
immediate effect without giving any reasons.]

[There are no further conditions, which are relevant for the use
of the Prospectus.]

[In case there are other clear and objective conditions
which are relevant for the use of the Prospectus insert: [@®]]

[In case of an individual consent for the use of the

Prospectus insert:

Any new information with respect to financial intermediaries
unknown at the time of the approval of the Prospectus will be
published on the Issuer's website (www .oberbank.at under the
sections "Investor Relations" / "Anleiheemissionen™).]

In the event of an offer being made by a financial
intermediary, such financial intermediary will provide
information to investors on the terms and conditions of the
offer at the time the offer is made.

[In case of a general consent for the use of the Prospectus
insert:

Any financial intermediary using the Prospectus has to
state on its website that it uses the Prospectus in
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B.
B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5

B.9

B.10

ISSUER

The legal and commercial
name of the Issuer:

The domicile and legal
form of the Issuer, the
legislation under which the
Issuer operates and its
country of incorporation:

A description of any known
trends affecting the Issuer
and the industries in which
it operates:

If the Issuer is part of a
group, a description of the
group and the Issuer’s
position within the group:

Where a profit forecast or
estimate is made, state the
figure:

A description of the nature
of any qualifications in the
audit report on the

accordance with the consent and the conditions attached
thereto.]

The Issuer is registered under the firm name "Oberbank AG",
and also operates under the commercial name "Oberbank".

The Issuer has been established and is existing in the legal form
of a stock corporation under Austrian law. The Issuer operates
under Austrian law and has its seat at Untere Donaulénde 28,
4020 Linz, Austria.

The past worldwide financial crisis has led to an increased
regulation of the financial sector and to an increased regulation
of the business activities of Austrian credit institutions, such as
the Issuer. In particular, governments at European and national
level provided additional capital and further support measures
for credit institutions.

New legal and regulatory requirements and an amendment of
the appropriate level of equity, liquidity and leverage can lead to
higher requirements and standards for equity and liquidity.
Further regulatory measures constitute substantial challenges
for the financial sector.

Moreover, the Issuer and the financial sector, in which the Issuer
is operating, are affected by the general macroeconomic
environment, which is characterized by a historic low level of
interest rates and the continuously tense situation on the
financial and capital markets. Furthermore the exceptional low
level of interest rates may have a permanent impact on the
general investment and savings behavior. These factors can
have in combination with the imminent technological changes in
the financial sector or on their own a negative impact on the
business, the financial condition and the results of operation.

As the parent company of the Oberbank group (which is the
Issuer and its subsidiaries (the "Oberbank Group" or the
"Group")), the Issuer has a multitude of direct and indirect
holdings in companies with registered offices in Austria and
abroad.

The Issuer is part of the 3 Banken Group. 3 Banken Group is a
group of independent regional banks which is composed of BKS
Bank AG, Bank fuer Tirol und Vorarlberg Aktiengesellschaft
(BTV) and Oberbank AG. This group does not constitute a
group of companies (Konzern) pursuant to § 15 of the Austrian
Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz — "AktG”) nor a credit
institution group (Kreditinstitutsgruppe) pursuant to § 30 BWG
nor a credit institution association (Kreditinstitute-Verbund)
pursuant to § 30a BWG.

Not applicable; no profit forecast or estimates is included in the
Prospectus.

Not applicable; there are no qualifications in the audit reports on
the historical financial information.
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B.12

historical financial
information:

Selected historical key
financial information
regarding  the Issuer,
presented for each

financial year of the period
covered by the historical

financial information, and
any subsequent interim
financial period
accompanied by

comparative data from the
same period in the prior
financial year:

Income Statement in
EUR million

Net interest income**

Charges for losses on
loans and advances

Net commissions
income

Administrative
expenses

Profit for the year /
period before tax

Consolidated net
profit for the year/
period

Balance Sheet in
EUR million

Total Assets

Loans and advances
to customers

Primary funds***

of which saving
deposits

of which
securitised
liabilities including
subordinated debt
capital

Equity

Regulatory capital in
EUR million

Common Equity Tier 1
capital

Tier 1 capital

Own Funds

Regulatory capital in
%

Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio

Tier 1 capital ratio

Total capital ratio

2016

359.6
(25.0)

130.9

(251.8)

219.1

181.3

2016

19,158.5
13,777.9

13,008.9
2,794.2

2,064.5

2,282.8
2016

2,009.4

2,086.0

2,482.2

2016

15.67%

16.27%

19.36%

2017

387.5
(28.4)

140.6

(266.2)

238.9

200.5

2017

20,830.6
14,760.3

13,394.7
2,719.0

1,997.4

2,466.8
2017

2,203.1

2,273.8

2,622.9

2017

16.50%

17.03%

19.64%

Q1-32017*

237.2
(7.3)

103.5

(202.1)

182.0

1545

30 Septembe
r 2017

20,094,8
14,492.4

13,089.6
2,748.2

1,987.6

2,434.8

30 Septem-
ber 2017

2,027.7

2,098.4

2,460.9

30 Septem-
ber 2017

15.24%

15.77%

18.50%

Q1-3
2018

247.6
(4.6)

119.3

(214.5)

212.4

181.1

30 Septe
mber
2018

21,341.6
15,697.7

13,576.9
2,697,2

2,065.2

2,767.6

30 Septe
mber
2018

2,251.3

2,304.2

2,641.5

30
Septem-
ber 2018

15.67%

16.04%

18.38%

Source: Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer for 2016 and
2017 as well as the Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of the Issuer for
30 September 2018 and for 30 September 2017 and own calculations of the

Issuer.

* Since 1 January 2018, the Issuer applies the IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments".
The comparative figures for 2017 were not adjusted and are based on the
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B.13

B.14

B.15

A statement that there has
been no material adverse
change in the prospects of
the Issuer since the date of
its last published audited
Financial Statements or a
description of any material
adverse change:

A description of significant
changes in the financial or
trading position
subsequent to the period
covered by the historical
financial information:

A description of any recent
events particular to the
Issuer which are to a
material extent relevant to
the evaluation of the
Issuer’s solvency:

If the Issuer is part of a
group, a description of the
group and the Issuer’s
position within the group:

If the Issuer is dependent
upon other entities within
the group, this must be
clearly stated:

A description of the
Issuer’s principal activities:

assessment requirements of IAS 39 (as replaced by IFRS 9)

** Since 1 January 2018 net interest income is shown without income from
entities recognised using the equity method; accordingly, the net interest income
seems to be lower than in the periods before such date.

*** The position primary funds is the sum of the following balance sheet items: (i)
amounts owed to customers, (ii) securitized liabilities, and (iii) subordinated debt
capital.

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of
the Oberbank Group since 31 December 2017.

Not applicable; there has been no significant change in the
financial position of the Oberbank Group since 30 September
2018.

Not applicable; there are no recent events which are to a
material extent relevant to the evaluation of Oberbank’s
solvency.

See item B.5.

Not applicable; the Issuer is not dependent upon any
entities within its Group.

Oberbank is a regional bank with the business model of a
universal bank. As a universal bank, the Issuer offers all the
typical banking services of a full-service bank. The Issuer’s
purpose of business is the performance of banking transactions
of all kinds and transactions related to them with the goal of
offering customers comprehensive financial services. In the area
of leasing, investment funds and insurance transactions, private
equity financing as well as brokerage of building loan
agreements (Bausparvertrdge) and provision of real-estate
services, Oberbank utilizes its own subsidiaries or affiliates as
well as the cooperation partners Generali Versicherung AG and
Bausparkasse Wustenrot AG.

Medium-sized and major companies as well as private clients
are the focus of the Issuer’s customer business.

The Issuer is licensed to perform all banking transactions
pursuant to § 1 of the Austrian Banking Act (Bankwesengesetz
— "BWG") with the exception of building loan transactions
(Bauspargeschéft), investment transactions, real-estate
investment fund transactions, participation fund transactions the
severance and retirement fund business and the exchange
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B.16

B.17

To the extent known to the
Issuer, state whether the
Issuer is directly or
indirectly owned or
controlled and by whom
and describe the nature of
such control:

Credit ratings assigned to
the |Issuer or its debt
securities at the request or
with the cooperation of the
Issuer in the rating
process:

office business.

The shareholder structure of the Issuer as at 31 December
2018 is as follows:

Voting Shares in total capital
rights (Common Share and
Preferential Shares)

Bank fur Tirol und Vorarlberg 16.98% 16.15%

Aktiengesellschaft, Innsbruck

BKS Bank AG, Klagenfurt 15.21% 14.21%

Waistenrot Wohnungswirtschaft reg.  4.90% 4.50%

Ges.m.b.H., Salzburg

Generali 3 Banken Holding AG, 1.77% 1.62%

Vienna

Employee participation 3.94% 3.77%

CABO Beteiligungsgesellschaft 25.97% 23.76%

m.b.H., Vienna

Free float 31.23% 35.99%

Source: Own calculations of Issuer

BKS Bank AG holds a stake of 15.21% and Bank fur Tirol und
Vorarlberg Aktiengesellschaft holds a stake of 16.98% in the
voting  share  capital of the Issuer.  Waistenrot
Wohnungswirtschaft reg.Gen.mb.H. holds 4.90% of the common
shares. These three core shareholders have concluded a
syndicate agreement and together hold 37.09% of the voting
rights in the Issuer.

The largest individual shareholder of Oberbank is CABO
Beteiligungsgesellschaft m.b.H., a 100% subsidiary of UniCredit
Bank Austria AG.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuer as of the date of the
Propectus:

Standard & Poor's assigned the following credit ratings:

Credit Outlook
Rating
Long-term issuer A stable
credit rating
Short-term issuer A-1 -
credit rating
Mortgage cover pool  AAA stable

for Covered Bank
Bonds

Credit ratings assigned to the [Notes][Covered Bank Bonds]:

[In case of Covered Bank Bonds with a mortgage cover pool
insert: The mortgage cover pool for Covered Bank Bonds has
been assigned an AAA credit rating (Outlook: stable) by
Standard & Poor’s.]

[In case of Notes other than Covered Bank Bonds with a
mortgage cover pool insert as applicable: [Not applicable; no
credit ratings have been assigned to the Notes at the Issuer's
request or with the Issuer’s cooperation.] [The Notes have been
assigned [insert credit rating] issued by [@].]]
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C.
Cl

C.2

C5

(O]

SECURITIES

A description of the type
and the class of the
securities  being  offered
and/or admitted to trading,
including any  security

identification number:

Currency of the securities
issuance:

A description of any
restrictions on the free
transferability of the

securities:

A description of the rights
attached to the securities:

Class and Type

The Notes are debt instruments issued in bearer form and are
represented by a Permanent Global Note. The ISIN of the Notes
will be specified in the Final Terms.

[In case of Notes with a fixed interest rate insert: [in case of
Notes without any change in the rate of interest until the
Maturity Date or the Extended Maturity Date, insert: The
Notes bear a fixed interest income throughout the entire term.]
[In case of Step-up or Step-down Notes insert: The Notes are
issued with an [increasing] [decreasing] coupon where the
interest rate will [increase] [decrease] over the time.]]

[In case of Notes with a floating interest rate insert: The
Notes will bear interest at a rate determined on the basis of a
reference [interest] rate appearing on the agreed screen page of
an information provider.]

[In case of Notes with a fix-to-floating interest insert: The
Notes are notes which initially bear a fixed rate of interest
followed by a floating rate of interest which shall be determined
for each floating interest period on the basis of [a reference
[interest] rate] [the inflation index of the Eurozone (HICP as
calculated by EUROSTAT)].]

[in case of Notes without periodic interest payments insert:
The Notes are notes without periodic interest payments where
interest is included in the payment of the redemption amount at
maturity.]

The currency of the Notes is [insert specified currency].

The Notes can be freely transferred pursuant to the regulations
of [OeKB CSD GmbH] [Clearstream Banking, S.A,,
Luxembourg] [Euroclear Bank S.AJ/N.V., Brussels] [insert
other clearing system].

Redemption

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or repurchased
and cancelled, and subject to adjustment in accordance with the
Terms and Conditions, the Notes shall be redeemed at their
Final Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date [in case of
Covered Bank Bonds (fundierte
Bankschuldverschreibungen), whose term shall be
extended in case the Issuer does not pay the outstanding
aggregate principal amount on the Maturity Date, insert: or,
in case the term of the Notes is extended in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, on
the Extended Maturity Date]. The "Final Redemption Amount"
in respect of each Note shall be the product of the Redemption
Price and the Specified Denomination. The "Redemption Price"
is [insert redemption price as a percentage] %.

[Early redemption at the option of the Holder

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Holder at a
date or dates specified in the Terms and Conditions before their
stated maturity upon sending a written early redemption notice to
the Paying Agent within the specified notice period at the
redemption amount(s) specified in the Terms and Conditions
[together with accrued interest, if any].]

[In case of Ordinary Senior Notes where Acceleration is
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Including
Notes:

ranking of

the

applicable, insert:
Acceleration

In case of an event of default as provided for in the Terms and
Conditions, each Holder shall be entitled to declare its Notes due
and demand immediate redemption thereof at a redemption
amount specified in the Terms and Conditions [together with
accrued interest (if any) to (but excluding) the date of
repayment].]

[Meeting of Holders, Modifications and Waiver

Holders may agree with the Issuer on amendments of the Terms
and Conditions with regard to matters specified in the Terms and
Conditions by resolution with the majority specified in the Terms
and Conditions. Majority resolutions of the Holders shall be
binding on all Holders alike. A majority resolution of the Holders
which does not provide for identical conditions for all Holders is
void, unless Holders who are disadvantaged have expressly
consented to their being treated disadvantageously.

[The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a joint
representative for all Holders (the "Joint Representative") to
exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder.] [A joint
representative for all Holders (the "Joint Representative™) has
been appointed in the Terms and Conditions.] [The duties, rights
and functions of the Joint Representative are determined by the
Terms and Conditions].]

Status
[In case of Ordinary Senior Notes insert:

The obligations under the Notes constitute direct, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking in the event of
insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer pari passu among
themselves and pari passu with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated instruments or obligations of the Issuer except
for any instruments or obligations preferred or subordinated by
law.]

[In case of Covered Bank Bonds insert:

The Notes constitute direct and unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves and pari
passu with all other unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer,
present and future, under covered bank bonds (fundierte
Bankschuldverschreibungen) of the same Cover Pool.]

[In case of Subordinated Notes insert:

The Notes shall qualify as Tier 2 Instruments (as defined below)
and constitute direct, unsecured and subordinated obligations of
the Issuer.

In the event of insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer, any claim
on the principal amount under the Notes will rank:

(a) junior to all present or future unsecured and unsubordinated
instruments or obligations of the Issuer;

(b) pari passu: (i) among themselves; and (ii) with all other
present or future Tier 2 Instruments and other subordinated
instruments or obligations of the Issuer (other than
subordinated instruments or obligations of the Issuer ranking
or expressed to rank senior or junior to the Notes); and

(c) senior to all present or future claims under: (i) Additional
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Tier 1 instruments pursuant to Article 52 CRR of the Issuer;
(ii) ordinary shares and other Common Equity Tier 1
instruments pursuant to Article 28 CRR of the Issuer; and
(i) all other subordinated instruments or obligations of the
Issuer ranking or expressed to rank junior to the Notes.

Where:

"CRR" means the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential
requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and
amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 (Capital Requirements
Regulation), as amended or replaced from time to time, and any
references to relevant Articles of the CRR include references to
any applicable provisions of law amending or replacing such
Articles from time to time.

"Tier 2 Instruments" means any (directly or indirectly issued)
capital instruments of the Issuer that qualify as Tier 2
instruments pursuant to Article 63 CRR, including any capital
instruments that qualify as Tier 2 instruments pursuant to
transitional provisions under the CRR.]

[In case of Eligible Notes insert:

The Notes shall qualify as Eligible Liabilities Instruments (as
defined below).

[In case of ordinary senior Eligible Notes, insert:

The obligations under the Notes constitute direct, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking in the event of
insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer pari passu among
themselves and pari passu with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated instruments or obligations of the Issuer except
for any instruments or obligations preferred or subordinated by
law.]

[In the case of non-preferred senior Eligible Notes, insert:

The Notes constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer, provided that in the event of normal
insolvency proceedings of the Issuer, claims on the principal
amount of the Notes rank:

(a) junior to all other present or future unsecured and
unsubordinated instruments or obligations of the Issuer
which do not fall or are not expressed to fall within the
category of debt instruments described in § 131(3)(1) to (3)
BaSAG;

(b) pari passu: (i) among themselves; and (ii) with all other
present or future non-preferred senior instruments or
obligations of the Issuer which fall or are expressed to fall
within the category of debt instruments described in
§ 131(3)(1) to (3) BaSAG (other than senior instruments or
obligations of the Issuer ranking or expressed to rank senior
or junior to the Notes); and

(c) senior to all present or future claims under: (i) ordinary
shares and other Common Equity Tier 1 instruments
pursuant to Article 28 CRR of the Issuer; (ii) Additional Tier 1
instruments pursuant to Article 52 CRR of the Issuer;
(i) Tier 2 instruments pursuant to Article 63 CRR of the
Issuer; and (iv) all other subordinated instruments or
obligations of the Issuer;

all in accordance with and making explicit reference to the lower
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Including limitations to those
rights:

ranking of the Notes pursuant to § 131(3) BaSAG.
Where:

"BaSAG" means the Austrian Recovery and Resolution Act
(Sanierungs- und Abwicklungsgesetz), as amended from time to
time and any references to relevant provisions of the BaSAG
include references to any applicable provisions of law amending
or replacing such provisions from time to time.

"CRR" means the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential
requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and
amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 (Capital Requirements
Regulation), as amended or replaced from time to time, and any
references to relevant Articles of the CRR include references to
any applicable provisions of law amending or replacing such
Articles from time to time.

"Eligible Liabilities Instruments" means any (directly issued)
debt instruments of the Issuer that qualify as eligible liabilities
instruments pursuant to Article [72b][insert other relevant
Article] CRR and/or §[100(2)][insert other relevant
provision] BaSAG, as the case may be, which are included in
the amount to be complied with for the minimum requirements
for own funds and eligible liabilities pursuant to the BaSAG,
including any debt instruments that qualify as eligible liabilities
instruments pursuant to transitional provisions under the CRR
and/or the BaSAG, as the case may be.]]

[In case of Ordinary Senior Notes and Covered Bank Bonds
which are subject to early redemption for taxation reasons
insert:

Early redemption for taxation reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer before
their stated maturity upon giving notice of early redemption to
the Paying Agent and to the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) within the specified notice period in whole, but not in
part, at a redemption amount specified in the Terms and
Conditions, if as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the
laws or regulations of the Republic of Austria or of any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, or as a result of
any change in, or amendment to, an official interpretation or
application of such laws or regulations, which amendment or
change is effective on or after the date on which the last tranche
of this series of Notes is issued, the Issuer will become obliged
to pay additional amounts.]

[In case of Subordinated Notes insert:
Early redemption for taxation reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in
whole, but not in part, at any time within the specified notice
period prior notice of early redemption to the Paying Agent and
to the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if there is a
change in the applicable tax treatment of the Notes, and
provided that the conditions to redemption and repurchase are
met.

Early redemption for regulatory reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in
whole, but not in part, at any time within the specified notice
period prior notice of early redemption to the Paying Agent and
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to the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if there is a
change in the regulatory classification of the Notes that would be
likely to result in their exclusion in full or in part from own funds
or reclassification as a lower quality form of own funds, and
provided that the conditions to redemption and repurchase are
met.

Conditions to Redemption and Repurchase
Any early redemption and any repurchase is subject to:

(i) the Issuer having obtained the prior permission of the
Competent Authority (as defined below) for the early
redemption or any repurchase in accordance with
Articles 77 et seqq. CRR, if applicable to the Issuer at that
point in time, whereas such permission may, inter alia,
require that:

(A) either the Issuer replaces the Notes with own funds
instruments of equal or higher quality at terms that are
sustainable for the income capacity of the Issuer; or

(B) the Issuer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Competent Authority that the own funds of the Issuer
would, following such redemption or repurchase,
exceed the minimum capital requirements (including
any capital buffer requirements) by a margin that the
Competent Authority considers necessary at such time;
and

(i) in the case of any redemption prior to the fifth anniversary
of the date of issuance of the Notes:

(A) for reasons of taxation, the Issuer has demonstrated to
the satisfaction of the Competent Authority that the
applicable change in tax treatment is material and was
not reasonably foreseeable as at the date of issuance
of the Notes; or

(B)for regulatory reasons, the Competent Authority
considers such change to be sufficiently certain and
the Issuer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Competent Authority that the relevant change in the
regulatory classification of the Notes was not
reasonably foreseeable as at the date of issuance of
the Notes.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, if, at the time of any
early redemption or repurchase, the prevailing supervisory
regulations applicable to the Issuer permit the early
redemption or repurchase only after compliance with one or
more alternative or additional pre-conditions to those set out
above, the Issuer shall comply with such other and/or, as
appropriate, additional pre-conditions, if any.

"Competent Authority” means the competent authority
pursuant to Article 4(1)(40) CRR which is responsible to
supervise the Issuer on an individual and/or consolidated basis.]

[In case of Eligible Notes insert:
[Early redemption for taxation reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer before
their stated maturity upon giving notice of early redemption to
the Paying Agent and to the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) within the specified notice period in whole, but not in
part, at a redemption amount specified in the Terms and
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Conditions, if as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the
laws or regulations of the Republic of Austria or of any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, or as a result of
any change in, or amendment to, an official interpretation or
application of such laws or regulations, which amendment or
change is effective on or after the date on which the last tranche
of this series of Notes is issued, the Issuer will become obliged
to pay additional amounts.

Any such early redemption shall only be possible provided that
the conditions to redemption and repurchase are met.]

Early redemption for regulatory reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in
whole, but not in part, at any time within the specified notice
period prior notice of early redemption to the Paying Agent and
to the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if there is a
change in the regulatory classification of the Notes that would be
likely to result in their exclusion in full or in part from liabilities
eligible for the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL) pursuant to the BaSAG on an unlimited and
uncapped basis, and provided that the conditions to redemption
and repurchase are met.

Conditions for Redemption and Repurchase

Any early redemption and any repurchase is subject to the
Issuer having obtained the prior permission of the Competent
Authority (as defined below) and/or the Resolution Authority (as
defined below) for the early redemption or any repurchase in
accordance with Articles [77 et seqq.][insert other relevant
Articles] CRR, if and to the extent such prior permission is
required at this time.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, if, at the time of any early
redemption or purchase, the prevailing supervisory regulations
applicable to the Issuer permit the early redemption or
repurchase only after compliance with one or more alternative or
additional pre-conditions to those set out above, the Issuer shall
comply with such other and/or, as appropriate, additional pre-
conditions, if any.

"Resolution Authority" means the resolution authority pursuant
to Article [4(1)(129)][insert other relevant Article] CRR which
is responsible for recovery or resolution of the Issuer on an
individual and/or consolidated basis.

"Competent Authority” means the competent authority
pursuant to Article 4(1)(40) CRR which is responsible to
supervise the Issuer on an individual and/or consolidated basis.]

[Early redemption at the option of the Issuer

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer at a date
or dates specified in the Terms and Conditions before their
stated maturity upon giving notice of redemption to the Holders
(which notice shall be irrevocable) within the specified notice
period at the redemption amount(s) specified in the Terms and
Conditions [together with accrued interest, if any]. [In case of
Subordinated Notes and Eligible Notes insert: Any such early
redemption shall only be possible where the conditions to
redemption and repurchase are met.]]

[In case of Subordinated Notes and Eligible Notes where
Non-Payment and Insolvency is applicable, insert:
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C.9

The nominal interest rate:

The date from which interest
becomes payable and the

due dates for interest:

Where the rate is not fixed,
description of the underlying

on which it is based:

Non-Payment and Insolvency

In case of non-payment or insolvency as provided for in the
Terms and Conditions, each Holder shall be entitled to inform
the Austrian Financial Markets Authority of the occurrence of
such event and propose that the Austrian Financial Markets
Authority applies to the competent court in Vienna for the
commencement of bankruptcy proceedings against the assets of
the Issuer. Each Holder shall be entitled, if bankruptcy
proceedings are commenced against assets of the Issuer, to file
an application in such court demanding payment of all principal
amounts due under the Notes together with accrued interest and
any additional amount.]

[Not applicable.]

[In case of Notes with a fixed interest rate insert: ® per cent.
per annum.]

[in case of Step-up or Step-down Notes insert:

From, and including, the Interest Commencement Date as
follows:

from, and at the rate of

including,

to, but excluding,

[insert Rate of
Interest] per
cent. per annum

[insert date] [insert date
(including the
Maturity Date

and the
Extended

Maturity Date (if

applicable))]

]

[in case of Notes without periodic interest payments insert:
The Notes have no periodic payments of interest.]

[in case of all other Notes insert: Not applicable.]
[Interest Commencement Date

The Interest Commencement Date of the Notes is [insert
relevant Interest Commencement Date].]

[Variable Interest Commencement Date

The Variable Interest Commencement Date of the Notes is
[insert relevant Variable Interest Commencement Date].]

[Interest Payment Dates
[Interest Payment Dates: @]

[In case of Notes with a fix-to-floating interest insert: Fixed
Interest Payment Dates: @]

[Variable Interest Payment Dates: @]]
[Not applicable.]
[in case of Notes with a floating interest rate insert:

[insert number, term and relevant Reference Interest Rate or
Reference Rate] per annum [[plus] [/] [minus] a margin of [in
case of Notes with an invariable margin insert: ® per cent.
per annum] [in case of Notes with a variable margin insert:
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from,
and including,

to,
but excluding,

[insert date]

[insert date]

[plus] [/]

[minus]

[insert Margin]
per cent. per
annum

1]

[[and] multiplied by the factor ®]. [The maximum interest rate is
® per cent. per annum.]

[The minimum interest rate is ® per cent. per annum.]

[The minimum interest rate for any interest period is indicated in
the below table in per cent. per annum:

from, and to, but Minimum
including, excluding, Rate of
[insert date] | [insert date | [insert
(including Minimum
the Maturity | Rate of
Date and | Interest] per
the cent. per
Extended annum]
Maturity
Date (if
applicable))
]

[in case the Notes have a Memory Floater interest structure,
insert: If the rate of interest in respect of any interest period (the
"relevant Interest Period") determined in accordance with the
above provisions is less than the rate of interest of the
immediately preceding interest period, the rate of interest for the
relevant Interest Period shall be the rate of interest of the
immediately preceding interest period.]

[In case interpolation applies, insert: The relevant reference
interest rate for the [first] [last] interest period shall be the rate
determined by straight line interpolation between the available
reference interest rate with the next shorter term than the term of
the interpolated interest period and the available reference
interest rate with the next longer term than the term of the
interpolated interest period.]]

[In case of Notes with a inflation linked interest rate insert:

The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each Interest
Period shall be expressed as a rate in per cent per annum
("lan(t)") and calculated by the Calculation Agent in accordance
with the following formula:

lan(t) = [ Min{ ] [ Max{ ] (HICP(t) — HICP(t-1)) / HICP(t-1) [*100]
[* Factor] [+] [-] [Surcharge] [Reduction] [;Value } ] [+] [-]
[Margin]

"HICP(t)" means the level of the HICP that is published by
reference to the [insert reference period(t)].

"HICP(t-1)" means the level of the HICP that is published by
reference to the [insert reference period(t-1)].
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['Reduction" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of
reduction].]

["Surcharge" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of
surcharge].]

["Value" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] which stands for a percentage rate, and has been
determined as [Insert amount of value].]

["Factor" means a defined number (a multiplier of the Inflation
Rate) and has been determined as [Insert amount of factor].]

['Margin" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of factor].]

"HICP" or "Index" is the unrevised Harmonised Index of
Consumer Prices (excluding Tobacco) for the Euro-Zone, which
is calculated on a monthly basis by the statistical office of the
European Union (EUROSTAT or Index Sponsor) and published
on the Screen Page on the Determination Day.]

[In case of Notes with a fix-to-floating interest insert:

® per cent. per annum from the Interest Commencement Date
to, but excluding, [insert Interest Rate Change Date] (the
"Interest Rate Change Date") and at the Variable Rate of
Interest which shall be determined for each interest period from,
and including, the Interest Rate Change Date to, but excluding,
the Maturity Date, or in case the Notes are redeemed early, the
day of early redemption. The "Variable Rate of Interest" shall
be [the [insert number, term and name of relevant Reference
Interest Rate or Reference Rate] per annum [in case of a
Margin insert: [plus] [/] [minus] a margin of [in case of Notes
with an invariable margin insert: ® per cent. per annum] [in
case of Notes with a variable margin insert:

from, to,
and including, but excluding,
[insert date] [insert date] [plus] [/]

[minus]

[insert Margin]
per cent. per
annum

1]

[[and] multiplied by the factor ®]. [The maximum interest rate is
® per cent. per annum.] [The minimum interest rate is ® per
cent. per annum.] [in case the Notes have a Memory Floater
interest structure, insert: If the rate of interest in respect of any
interest period (the "relevant Interest Period") determined in
accordance with the above provisions is less than the rate of
interest of the immediately preceding interest period, the rate of
interest for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate of
interest of the immediately preceding interest period.]]]

[a rate in per cent per annum ("lan(t)") and calculated by the
Calculation Agent in accordance with the following formula:

lan(t) = [ Min{ ] [ Max{ ] (HICP(t) — HICP(t-1)) / HICP(t-1) [*100]
[* Factor] [+] [-] [Surcharge] [Reduction] [;Value } ] [+] [-]
[Margin]
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C.10

Maturity date and
arrangements for the
amortisation of the loan,
including the re payment
procedures:

An indication of yield:

Name of representative of
debt security holders:

If the security has a
derivative component in the
interest payment, provide a
clear and comprehensive
explanation to help
investors understand how
the value of their investment
is affected by the value of

"HICP(t)" means the level of the HICP that is published by
reference to the [insert reference period(t)].

"HICP(t-1)" means the level of the HICP that is published by
reference to the [insert reference period(t-1)].

['Reduction" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of
reduction].]

["Surcharge" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of
surcharge].]

["Value" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] which stands for a percentage rate, and has been
determined as [Insert amount of value].]

['Factor" means a defined number (a multiplier of the Inflation
Rate) and has been determined as [Insert amount of factor].]

['Margin" means a defined [number] [number of percentage
points] and has been determined as [Insert amount of factor].]

"HICP" or "Index" is the unrevised Harmonised Index of
Consumer Prices (excluding Tobacco) for the Euro-Zone, which
is calculated on a monthly basis by the statistical office of the
European Union (EUROSTAT or Index Sponsor) and published
on the Screen Page on the Determination Day.]

Maturity Date

The Maturity Date of the Notes is [insert relevant Maturity
Datel].

[Extended Maturity Date

The Extended Maturity Date of the Notes is [insert relevant
Extended Maturity Date].]

Repayment procedures

Payment of principal in respect of the Notes shall be made to the
Clearing System or to its order for credit to the accounts of the
relevant account holders of the Clearing System.

[In case of Notes with a fixed interest rate, Step-up or Step-
down Notes or Notes without periodic interest payments
insert: [®] per cent. per annum in case there is no early
redemption [in case of covered bank bonds whose term shall
be extended in case the issuer does not pay the
outstanding aggregate amount on the Maturity Date insert:
or extension of the term].]

[Not applicable.]
Name of representative of Holders

[Not applicable. No Joint Representative has been appointed in
the Terms and Conditions.]

[insert name of Joint Representative]

Not applicable. The Notes do not have a derivative component in
the interest payment.
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c1

the underlying
instrument(s), especially
under the circumstances

when the risks are most
evident:

An indication as to whether
the securities offered are or
will be the object of an
application for admission to
trading, with a view to their
distribution in a regulated
market or other equivalent

[An application for admission to trading of the Notes on [the
Official Market (Amtlicher Handel) of the Vienna Stock
Exchange] [a regulated market in [Germany] by way of
notification of the Prospectus pursuant to the Prospectus
Directive] [a multilateral trading facility [of the Vienna Stock
Exchange] [in Germany]] will be made.]

markets with
the markets in question:

D. RISKS
D.2

[An application for admission to trading of the Notes will not be

indication of made ]

Key information on the key risks that are specific to the Issuer:

Risk factors regarding the Oberbank Group’s business operations

Risk that the Issuer cannot fulfil its obligations, in particular with respect to interest
payments, redemption, etc (Issuer Risk)

Risk of default of payments payable to the Oberbank Group (Credit Risk)
Risk of losses because of changes in market prices (Market Risk)

Risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems and
procedures, personnel or as a result of the occurrence of external events
(Operational Risk)

Risk of the occurrence of an unpredictable situation or realisation of unforeseeable
risks from today’s perspective (Reliance on successful risk management)

Risk that due to the varying maturities of claims and obligations the Oberbank Group
cannot fully or timely fulfil its current or future obligations (Liquidity Risk)

Risk due to the loss of value in the Oberbank Group’s investments (Investment Risk)
Risk that refinancing may not be available at low costs

Risk that the Issuer’s capital ratios (Eigenmittel) are not sufficient for events which
could not have been anticipated from the current perspective

Risk that the Oberbank Group will be negatively affected by an increasingly
competitive market (Competitive Risk)

Risk that contractual partners cannot fulfil their obligations arising from trading
activities (Counterparty Risk)

Risk of suffering potential damage due to shortfalls in the Oberbank Group’s
business development

Risk of potential conflicts of interest of the Issuer’'s board members due to their work
for companies within and outside of the Oberbank Group and conflicting interests of
the Issuer vis-a-vis the Noteholders

Risks that the Oberbank Group is negatively affected by changes in interest rates on
the money or capital markets

Risk of negative interest rates in lending business

Risk of legal disputes or legal and administrative procedures or actions have
negative effects on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial position and profit
situation

Credit rating agencies may suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating of the
Issuer, and such action might negatively affect the refinancing conditions for the
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Issuer, in particular its access to debt capital markets.

Risks due to the Oberbank Group’s business operations outside Austria, in
particular in Germany, the Czech Republic, Hungary and the Slovak Republic
(Country-Specific Risks)

Risks in connection with the Oberbank Group’s business activities outside of Austria

Risks associated with foreign exchange rate variations due to the Oberbank Group’s
business operations outside Austria

Risk factors regarding the legal framework

Risk that the Issuer’s banking license will be restricted or withdrawn due to repeated
or serious violations of legal provisions

Risk of increased expenses due to changes in accounting principles and standards,
changes in legal regulations or changes in their interpretation, in particular with
regard to labour, social, tax, pension law and accounting principles

The lIssuer is subject to a number of strict and extensive regulatory rules and
requirements and compliance with these can cause a material resource expenditure
for the Issuer

The Issuer has to comply with its applicable (regulatory) capital requirements at any
time and compliance with these may have a negative impact on the Issuer's
business operations and its assets, financial position and results of operation.

The Issuer is obliged to contribute to the Single Resolution Fund and to the deposit
guarantee fund which may have a negative impact on the Issuer's business
operations as well as its assets, financial position and results of operation.

The Issuer is obliged to comply with extensive AML rules which causes significant
costs and expenses for the Issuer and any (factual or even only alleged) breach of
the AML Rules may have main negative legal, financial and reputational
consequences for the Issuer.

If the relevant conditions are met, the resolution authority shall apply resolution
actions in relation to the Issuer and such application of resolution actions in relation
to the Issuer may have a material negative impact on the Notes.

D.3 Key information on the key risks that are specific to the securities:

Risks related to Notes generally

Credit ratings of Notes (if any) may not adequately reflect all risks of the investment
in such Notes, credit rating agencies could assign unsolicited credit ratings, and
credit ratings may be suspended, downgraded or withdrawn, all of which could have
an adverse effect on the market price and trading price of the Notes.

The Notes are governed by Austrian law, and changes in applicable laws,
regulations or regulatory policies may have an adverse effect on the Issuer, the
Notes and the Holders.

The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt instruments or incurring further
liabilities.

The Notes are not covered by any (statutory or voluntary) protection scheme.

Risks related to the market generally

Holders assume the risk that the credit spread of the Issuer widens resulting in a
decrease in the market price of the Notes.

The Holder may be exposed to the risk that due to future money depreciation
(inflation), the real yield of an investment may be reduced.

A liquid secondary market for the Notes may not develop or, if it does develop, that it
will continue. In an illiquid market, a Holder may not be able to sell his Notes at fair
market prices.

[No conclusion may be drawn from the indicated aggregate principal amount in case
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of "up to" Notes.]

[There is a risk that trading in the Notes or underlyings will be suspended,
interrupted or terminated, which may have an adverse effect on the market price of
such Notes.]

Holders are exposed to the risk of an unfavourable development of market prices of
their Notes which materialises if the Holder sells the Notes prior to the final maturity
of such Notes.

Exchange rate risks may occur, if a Holder's financial activities are denominated in a
currency or currency unit other than the Specified Currency in which the Issuer will
make principal and interest payments. Furthermore, government and monetary
authorities may impose exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable
exchange rate.

If a loan or credit is used to finance the acquisition of the Notes, the loan or credit
may significantly increase the amount of a loss.

Incidental costs related in particular to the purchase and sale of the Notes may have
a significant impact on the profit potential of the Notes.

Holders have to rely on the functionality of the relevant clearing system.

The applicable tax regime may change to the disadvantage of the Holders; therefore,
the tax impact of an investment in the Notes should be carefully considered.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments.

The Issuer is exposed to conflicts of interest which might adversely affect the
Holders.

Risks related to the structure of particular Notes

[Holders of Notes with a fixed interest rate are exposed to the risk that the market
price of such Notes falls as a result of changes in the market interest rate.]

[Holders of Notes with a floating interest rate may be exposed to the risk of
fluctuating interest rate levels which make it impossible to determine the yield of
such Notes in advance, and are exposed to the risk of uncertain interest income.]

[The interest of Notes with a floating interest rate and Notes with fix to floating
interest will be calculated by reference to one or several specific benchmark indices.]

[Notes with fix to floating interest bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed
rate to a floating rate. A Holder bears the risk that after such conversion, the new
interest rate may be lower than the then prevailing interest rates or the spread on the
Notes with fix to floating interest may be less favourable than the then prevailing
spreads on comparable floating rate notes relating to the same reference rate(s).]

[A Holder of Zero Coupon Notes is exposed to the risk that the market price of such
Notes falls as a result of changes in the market interest rate. Market prices of Zero
Coupon Notes are more volatile than market prices of Notes with a fixed interest rate
and are likely to respond to a greater degree to market interest rate changes than
interest bearing Notes with a similar maturity.]

In the event that any Notes are redeemed prior to their maturity, a Holder of such
Notes may be exposed to risks, including the risk that his investment will have a
lower than expected yield (Risk of Early Redemption).

[In the case of a cap, a Holder will not be able to benefit from any actual favourable
development beyond the cap.]

[If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for resolutions of Holders,
certain rights of a Holder may be amended or reduced or even cancelled by way of
resolutions, which could affect the Holder negatively.]

[If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for the appointment of a
Joint Representative, a Holder may be deprived of its individual right to pursue and
enforce its rights under the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes against the
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E
E.2b

Issuer.]
[Covered Bank Bonds may be redeemed after their Maturity Date.]

[The cover assets of the respective cover pool for Covered Bank Bonds may not at
all times be sufficient in order to cover the Issuer's obligations under the Covered
Bank Bonds and/or that replacement values are added in due time to the cover
fund.]

[Risk that changes in the rating of the mortgage cover pool may adversely affect the
market price of Covered Bank Bonds.]

An Austrian court could appoint a trustee for the Notes to exercise the rights and
represent the interests of Holders on their behalf in which case the ability of Holders
to pursue their rights under the Notes individually may be limited.

[Holders are exposed to the risk of statutory loss absorption.]

In case of an insolvency of the Issuer, deposits have a higher ranking than claims of
the Holders under the Notes.

[Holders of Notes with a (partly) inflation linked interest rate are exposed to the risk
of the performance of the underlying index.]

[Specific Risks in connection with Subordinated Notes

Obligations under Subordinated Notes will only be fulfilled after all non-subordinated
claims of creditors have been satisfied.

The Holders of Subordinated Notes are exposed to the risk that the Issuer may issue
subordinated debt instruments or incur subordinated liabilities which are senior to the
Subordinated Notes.

Subordinated Notes do not give the right to accelerate future payments.

Subordinated Notes may not be early redeemed at the option of the Holders, and
any rights of the Issuer to early redeem or repurchase Subordinated Notes are
subject to the prior permission of the Competent Authority.]

[Specific Risks in connection with Eligible Notes

OFFER

The qualification of the Eligible Notes as instruments eligible for MREL purposes is
subject to uncertainty.

Claims of Holders of non-preferred senior Eligible Notes will be junior to the claims of
holders of certain other senior claims.

Eligible Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity for tax or regulatory reasons.
Eligible Notes do not give right to accelerate future payments.

Debt instruments with 'non-preferred' senior ranking are new types of instruments for
which there is no trading history.]

Reasons for the offer and [In case of Subordinated Notes for which the proceeds will

use of

proceeds when be applied by the Issuer to fulfill its own funds

different from making profit requirements insert:

and/or hedging certain risks:

The proceeds will be applied by the Issuer to fulfill its own funds
requirements.]

[In case of Covered Bank Bonds and Ordinary Senior Notes
for which the proceeds will be applied by the Issuer for its
strategic liquidity demand insert:

The proceeds will be applied by the Issuer for its strategic
liquidity demand.]

[In case of different use of proceeds insert: The proceeds
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E.3

E.4

E.7

A description of the terms
and conditions of the offer:

A description of any interest
that is material to the
issuance/offer including
conflicting interests:

Estimated expenses
charged to the investor by
the Issuer or the offeror:

will be used for [@].]

The Notes are offered to investors in [Austria] [and] [Germany]
by way of a [public offer] [private placement]. [Invitations to
subscribe for the Notes will be made by Oberbank [and, as the
case may be, financial intermediaries (see item A.2. of this
Summary)] [and a bank syndicate].] [Interested investors are
asked to make offers to subscribe for the Notes. The Issuer
reserves the right to shorten or extend the subscription period for
specific issuances in its sole discretion.]

[Not applicable; offers under the Programme will be made in the
sole interest of Oberbank as Issuer.]

[Offers under the Programme will be made in the primary
interest of Oberbank as Issuer. The Notes [can be placed also
by financial intermediaries (see item A.2. of this Summary)] [will
also be placed by a bank syndicate][, which may receive a
placement fee for their services]. [Other than that the Issuer is
not aware of any interests, including conflicting ones that are
material to offers under the Programme.] [insert description of
material conflicts of interests]]

[Not applicable; investors will not be charged with expenses by
the Issuer.]

[In addition to the issue price, investors will also have to pay
[®]]

[The issue price includes the following disbursements: [@].]
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2. RISK FACTORS

The following is a disclosure of risk factors that are material for the Issuer, the Oberbank Group (as
defined below) and the Notes issued under the Programme in order to assess the market risk
associated with these Notes. Prospective investors should consider these risk factors before deciding
to purchase Notes issued under the Programme, especially since in certain cases the investor may
lose its entire investment or parts of it.

Prospective investors should consider all information provided in this Prospectus and consult with their
own professional advisers (including their financial, accounting, legal and tax advisers) if they consider
it necessary. In addition, investors should be aware that the risks described may combine and thus
intensify one another.

The following is a disclosure of risks that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfill its obligations under the
Notes. Prospective investors should consider these risks before deciding to purchase Notes to be
issued under the Programme.

The following statements are not exhaustive. Other risks of which the Issuer is currently not aware or
which it does not consider to be material but which may also affect the Issuer's ability to fulfill its
obligations under the Notes may be of significance.

2.1. RISK FACTORS REGARDING THE OBERBANK GROUP’S BUSINESS
OPERATIONS

Risk that the Issuer cannot fulfil its obligations, in particular with respect to interest payments,
redemption, etc (Issuer Risk)

The issuer risk is the risk that Oberbank becomes insolvent and thus incapable of fulfilling its
obligations in a timely manner, including interest payments and redemption payments under the
Notes. This includes in particular the following risks: risk of default of payments payable to the Issuer
and its subsidiaries (together the "Oberbank Group" or the "Group") ("Credit Risk"), risk of losses
because of changes in market prices ("Market Risk"), risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, systems and procedures, personnel or as a result of the occurrence of external
events ("Operational Risk"), risk that due to the varying maturities of claims and obligations the
Oberbank Group cannot fully or timely fulfil its current or future obligations ("Liquidity Risk"), risk due
to the loss of value in the Oberbank Group’s investments ("Investment Risk"), risk that refinancing
may not be available at low costs, risk that the Oberbank Group will be negatively affected by an
(increasingly) competitive market ("Competitive Risk"), risk that contractual partners cannot fulfil their
obligations arising from trading activities ("Counterparty Risk") might lead to a realisation of the
issuer risk.

Risk of default of payments payable to the Oberbank Group (Credit Risk)

Credit Risk is the risk of partial or complete default of agreed payments, in particular interest and/or
redemption payments, which are to be provided by a debtor to the Oberbank Group. The Credit Risk is
higher, the worse the creditworthiness of the Oberbank Group’s counterparty and includes all negative
consequences of malperformance of concluded contracts due to the worsening of the creditworthiness
of a contractual partner. It is possible that due to deterioration of market prices the securities provided
as collateral by debtors are not sufficient to compensate for defaults in payments. The Credit Risk is
one of the most significant risks to the Oberbank Group, as it exists both in traditional banking
products, such as the credit, discount and guarantee business, as well as certain commercial products
such as derivative contracts like forwards, swaps, options and repurchase agreements and securities
lending transactions. The Credit Risk also includes the country risk, which means the risk that a
foreign debtor, despite its ability to pay, cannot fully or timely fulfil its interest and/or redemption
payment obligations to the Oberbank Group as a result of a lack of foreign exchange reserves of the
relevant central bank or as a result of political intervention by the respective foreign government. The
occurrence of the Credit Risk can have a material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operation.

Risk of losses because of changes in market prices (Market Risk)

Market Risk is the risk of losses due to changes in market prices, particularly because of changes in
interest rates, stock prices, commaodity prices and foreign currencies and price fluctuations of assets
and derivatives. The demand for the services and products offered by the Oberbank Group and thus
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the Oberbank Group’s operating profits depend significantly on the wider scope on these factors. In a
narrow sense Market Risk includes the risk of potential negative changes in the value of positions in
the Issuer’s trading and banking book. The realization of this Market Risk can have a material adverse
effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation.

Risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems and procedures,
personnel or as aresult of the occurrence of external events (Operational Risk)

Operational Risks mainly concern the Oberbank Group’s operations areas. Operational Risks include
the risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems and procedures,
personnel or as a result of the occurrence of external events. This encompasses internal risks
including theft and fraud by personnel, development and process failures, business interruptions and
lack of sufficient human resources and external risk factors such as property damage and fraud by
customers. These risks increase in volatile, illiquid or in developing markets. The realization of such
risks may result in increased costs or loss of earnings for the Oberbank Group.

The Oberbank Group’s business activity depends to a large extent on the functioning of
communication and data processing systems. Malfunctions, disruptions and safety shortfalls can
cause breakdowns or interruptions of systems for customer relations, accounting, custody services,
support and/or customer management. Outages and interruptions of data processing systems may
adversely affect the operation of the Oberbank Group’s various businesses and thus may have a
material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation.

Risk of the occurrence of an unpredictable situation or realisation of unforeseeable risks from
today’s perspective (Reliance on successful risk management)

The occurrence of unpredictable or the realisation of unforeseeable risks may overstrain or lead to a
failure of the Issuer’s risk management or risk control system from today’s perspective. This may have
an adverse effect on the Issuer’s business, asset, financial and income situation.

Risk that due to the varying maturities of claims and obligations the Oberbank Group cannot
fully or timely fulfil its current or future obligations (Liquidity Risk)

Due to the varying maturities of the Oberbank Group’s claims and obligations there is a risk that the
Oberbank Group may not fully or timely meet its current and future payment obligations. Moreover, the
Oberbank Group bears the risk that due to insufficient market liquidity it may not be able to sell,
secure, or sell to a favourable price trading positions in the short term. The realization of this Liquidity
Risk can have a material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operation.

Risk due to the loss of value in the Oberbank Group’s investments (Investment Risk)

The Investment Risk includes potential declines of proceeds derived from dividend payments, the
write-down and losses in divestments with respect to the Oberbank Group’s investments. Oberbank
Group also holds investments in selected listed companies whose performance depends on a variety
of factors that are not within the control of the Oberbank Group. The realization of the Investment Risk
can have a material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results
of operation.

Risk that refinancing may not be available at low costs

The future business development and profitability of the Oberbank Group depend on its access to
cheap refinancing opportunities in the domestic and international money and capital markets. Access
to and availability of refinancing options can be restricted or become more expensive than in the past
or other than as planned by the Oberbank Group, in particular due to unexpected events such as in
connection with the financial crisis or because of a change in interest rates. The occurrence of such
circumstances may lead to unfavourable refinancing options for the Oberbank Group and may have a
material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation.

Risk that the Issuer’s capital ratios (Eigenmittel) are not sufficient for events which could not
have been anticipated from the current perspective

The Oberbank Group — on a consolidated basis — has a core tier 1 capital ratio of 16.50% as per
31 December 2017 and of 15.67% as per 30 September 2018 (pursuant to Basel Ill provisions) and a
total capital ratio of 19.64% as per 31 December 2017 and of 18.38% as per 30 September 2018.
From today's perspective, it is uncertain whether these rates are sufficient for an event which could not
have been anticipated from the current perspective. A lack of equity can have a material adverse
effect on the issuer's/Oberbank Group’s asset, financial and income situation (and, if the regulatory

33



minimum requirements cannot be met, lead to penalties by the competent authority such as business
and profit distribution restrictions). This can limit the issuer’s ability to fullfill its obligations.

Risk that the Oberbank Group will be negatively affected by an increasingly competitive market
(Competitive Risk)

As a regional bank, Oberbank is exposed to intense competition in the markets in which it operates.
Moreover, continuing technological advancements and developments in e-commerce make it possible
for financial institutions, which are not subject to banking regulation, and other new market entrants to
offer products and services that traditionally have been offered exclusively by banks. Such new
competitors may be subject to less or more favorable regulation than traditional banks. Intense
competition with other banks, financial institutions and such new competitors as well as an
increasingly competitive situation especially in the Austrian home market can cause operating margins
to decline and have a material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition
and results of operation.

Risk that contractual partners cannot fulfil their obligations arising from trading activities
(Counterparty Risk)

In commercial transactions the Oberbank Group is exposed to risk that contractual partners
(‘counterparties’, especially banks and other financial institutions) do not meet their obligations. This
can have a material adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results
of operation.

Risk of potential conflicts of interest of the Issuer’s board members due to their work for
companies within and outside of the Oberbank Group and conflicting interests of the Issuer
vis-a-vis the Noteholders

The members of the Issuer's management board exercise executive functions in different companies
both within and outside of the Oberbank Group. In individual cases, potential conflicts of interest of
individual members of the Issuer's management board may arise in connection with the Issuer’s
business operations, if the Issuer has an active business relationship with the respective company.

For example, conflicts of interest can occur in the provision of services such as the purchase and sale
or procurement of financial instruments, investment advice, underwriting and placement business, the
bank’s own business in financial instruments, securities custody business, the financing of financial
instruments, advising of companies for example about their capital structure and acquisitions or
mergers, foreign exchange transactions in connection with transactions in financial instruments and
the dissemination of investment research to outside clients.

In addition, the Issuer may be involved in transactions concerning the underlyings both on its own
account and on account of assets managed for clients or carry out certain functions in respect to
underlyings, e.g. acting as a market maker. This can affect the market value, liquidity or market price
of the Notes and adversely affect the interests of holders of Notes (the "Holders"). Furthermore,
conflicts can result from the Issuer acting as Calculation Agent, in particular concerning specific rules
and decisions left to the discretion of the Calculation Agent pursuant to the Final Terms, which can
affect the redemption and repayment conditions of the Notes. Conflicts of interest may arise from
these transactions and the lIssuer's roles, which may adversely affect the market price of the
underlyings and the Notes.

Risks that the Oberbank Group is negatively affected by changes in interest rates on the
money or capital markets

The Oberbank Group receives interest arising from the granting of loans and other investments and in
turn, grants interest to investors. Interest rates in the money and capital market can fluctuate daily and
can therefore lead to daily changes. If there is a change in interest rates, the interest owed to the
banks and the interest payable by the banks change automatically. Interest rate risk therefore arises
from uncertainty about future changes in market interest rates. Strong fluctuations in interest rates
may have an adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation.

Risk of negative interest rates in lending business

The Oberbank Group realises a part of its operating income by net interest income. Interest payments
for loans with variable interest rates are usually connected to reference interest rates. Reference
interest rates can react sensible on many factors, which are out of control of the Oberbank Group, i.e.
inflation or monetary policy of the central banks and governments. Certain reference interest rates are
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significantly declined in the last years and are partly below zero. If the reference interest rates decline
below zero, there could be a situation, in which the margin charged by the Issuer to borrowers would
be reduced or even eradicated. This would have a considerable negative impact on the Oberbank
Group’s profit opportunities and the Oberbank Group’s business activity as well as assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss.

Risk of legal disputes or legal and administrative procedures or actions have negative effects
on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial position and profit situation

Due to the Oberbank Group’s business activities there is a general risk of legal disputes against the
Oberbank Group by customers, shareholders, competitors as well as legal disputes by private
persons, antitrust and/or similar authorities, administrative procedures, tax disputes and/or regulatory
measures. The outcome of legal disputes or proceedings before administrative/ regulatory authorities
is difficult to judge or foresee. Legal actions by private persons, supervisory authorities and regulatory
authorities against the Oberbank Group can lead to serious fines or repayments, that may have
negative effects on the Oberbank Group 's business, financial and profit situation. In addition, high
costs to avert such disputes can arise. Furthermore, the Oberbank Group’s reputation may be
damaged regardless, whether the allegations are factual or not.

Credit rating agencies may suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating of the Issuer, and
such action might negatively affect the refinancing conditions for the Issuer, in particular its
access to debt capital markets.

A credit rating agency may suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating. A credit rating may also
be suspended or withdrawn if the Issuer were to terminate the agreement with the relevant credit
rating agency or to determine that it would not be in its interest to continue to supply financial data to a
credit rating agency. A downgrading of the credit rating may lead to a restriction of access to funds
and, consequently, to higher refinancing costs. A credit rating could also be negatively affected by the
soundness or perceived soundness of other financial institutions.

A credit rating agency may also suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating concerning one or
more countries where the Issuer operates or may publish unfavourable reports or outlooks for a region
or country where the Issuer operates. Moreover, if a credit rating agency suspends, downgrades or
withdraws a credit rating or publishes unfavourable reports or outlooks on Austria or any other country
where the Issuer operates, this could increase the funding costs of the Issuer.

Credit rating actions of credit rating agencies may also be triggered by changes in their respective
rating methodology, their assessment of government support, as well as by regulatory activities (e.g.
introduction of bail-in regimes).

2.2. RISKS DUE TO THE OBERBANK GROUP’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS
OUTSIDE AUSTRIA, IN PARTICULAR IN GERMANY, THE CZECH
REPUBLIC, HUNGARY AND THE SLOVAK REPUBLIC (COUNTRY-
SPECIFIC RISKS)

Risks in connection with the Oberbank Group’s business activities outside of Austria

The business strategies pursued by the Oberbank Group in Germany, the Czech Republic, Hungary,
and the Slovak Republic are based on specific assumptions which are in turn based on the economic
developments in these countries. If the Oberbank Group’s business expectations are not realised, this
can have an adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation.

Furthermore, some of these countries are subject to material economic, tax related, legal and political
fluctuation and changes, including exchange rate fluctuations (in the Czech Republic and Hungary),
possible foreign exchange controls and restrictions, a regulatory environment still in in development,
inflation, ongoing or worsening recession, local market distortions and strikes. The realization of one or
more of such events could negatively affect the ability of the customers or counterparties of the
Oberbank Group, who are located in one of these countries, to obtain foreign currencies or loans and,
therefore, to fulfill their obligations vis-a-vis the Oberbank Group. Such negative developments in
these countries could directly affect the Oberbank Group and lead to a reduction of turnover and other
key financial figures. Weaknesses of the legal system or discrimination of foreign market participants
could have an adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation.
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Risks associated with foreign exchange rate variations due to the Oberbank Group’s business
operations outside Austria

The Oberbank Group earns part of its sales revenue in non-EUR currencies, in particular in Hungarian
forints and Czech crowns. The Oberbank Group’s foreign subsidiaries are themselves subject only to
an insignificant foreign exchange rate risk due to their regional activity. Their balance sheets, however,
are drawn up in the respective domestic currency and, therefore, the corresponding positions must be
converted into EUR in the relevant audited consolidated financial statements of the Issuer. Variations
in foreign exchange rates can therefore have an adverse effect on the Oberbank Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operation.

2.3. RISK FACTORS REGARDING THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK

Risk that the Issuer’s banking license will be restricted or withdrawn due to repeated or serious
violations of legal provisions

There is a risk that, due to serious and/or repeated violations of legal provisions, the Issuer’s banking
license under the Austrian Banking Act (Bankwesengesetz — "BWG") could be restricted or entirely
withdrawn. The FMA has wide-ranging authority in this regard and can decide to take such measures,
for example, if minimum reserve requirements are violated. In addition, the FMA can prohibit further
expansion of the Issuer’s loan volume. If there are good grounds to doubt the ability of the Issuer to
meet its commitments to its clients, the FMA can prohibit the Issuer from making (full or partial)
withdrawal of capital and profits, or assign a government representative with the authority to prohibit
any types of transactions that could endanger the interests of the Issuer’s clients. In addition, the FMA
can deprive the Issuer's management board of its leadership or prohibit (all or part) of the continuing
business operations of the Issuer. The realisation of these risks can have an adverse effect on the
Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation.

Risk of increased expenses due to changes in accounting principles and standards, changes
in legal regulations or changes in their interpretation, in particular with regard to labour, social,
tax, pension law and accounting principles

In addition to banking regulation provisions, banks must comply with a series of European and
national regulations, in particular with regard to labour, social, tax, and pension law. These legal
regulations continue to evolve, as does their interpretation.

There is the risk that stability fees or special banking taxes, possible changes to or changes in the
interpretation of international accounting standards, as well as other changes in legal regulations or
their interpretation, can lead to increased expenses, which can have an adverse effect on the
Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation. In particular, changes in tax
law can make potential investors less likely to invest, which can also have an adverse effect on the
Oberbank Group’s business, financial condition and results of operation.

Furthermore, the Issuer prepares its consolidated financial statements according to IFRS standards.
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) implements amendments to the IFRS standards
or their interpretation. These amendments are generally mandatory for the Issuer and can have a
material impact on how the Issuer reports and records its financial and operational results.

The Issuer is subject to a number of strict and extensive regulatory rules and requirements
compliance with which can cause a material resource expenditure for the Issuer

As Austrian credit institution, the Issuer has to comply with a number of regulatory rules and
requirements at all times which continuously change and become more extensive and stricter.
Compliance with these regulatory rules and requirements, in particular including the ongoing
monitoring and implementation of new or amended rules and regulations cause respective significant
costs and expenses for the Issuer and any (factual or even only alleged) breach of such rules and
requirements may cause result in major regulatory measures and bear a main legal and reputational
risk.

. Banking Union

The Banking Union is a system for the supervision and resolution of credit institutions on EU
level which is based on EU wide rules. The Banking Union was established in response to the
financial crises and currently consists of two pillars, the Single Supervisory Mechanism ("SSM")
and the Single Resolution Mechanism ("SRM"). The European Deposit Insurance Scheme
(EDIS) as third pillar proposed by the EU Commission has not yet been implemented.
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Reform of the EU banking package or sector

On 23 November 2016, the EU Commission published proposals for the reform of the Banking
Union, in particular drafts for the revision of the following EU legal acts:

"Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on
access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and
investment firms, amending Directive 2002/87/EC and repealing Directives 2006/48/EC and
2006/49/EC" (Capital Requirements Directive IV — "CRD IV"); (ii) "Regulation (EU) No 575/2013
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for
credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012" (Capital
Requirements Regulation — "CRR"); (iii) "Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 15 May 2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms and amending Council Directive 82/891/EEC, and
Directives 2001/24/EC, 2002/47/EC, 2004/25/EC, 2005/56/EC, 2007/36/EC, 2011/35/EU,
2012/30/EU and 2013/36/EU, and Regulations (EU) No 1093/2010 and (EU) No 648/2012, of
the European Parliament and of the Council* (Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive —
"BRRD"); and (iv) "Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 15 July 2014 establishing uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the resolution of credit
institutions and certain investment firms in the framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism and
a Single Resolution Fund and amending Regulation (EU) No 1093/2010" (Single Resolution
Mechanism Regulation — "SRMR").

The proposals submitted by the EU Commission to the EU Parliament and the Council for their
consideration and adoption include:

- more risk-sensitive capital requirements, in particular in the area of market risk,
counterparty credit risk and for exposures to central counterparties (CCPSs);

- a binding leverage ratio to prevent institutions from excessive leverage;

- a binding net stable funding ratio to address the excessive reliance on short-term
wholesale funding on the interbank market and to reduce long-term funding risk; and

- a requirement for global systemically important institutions (G-SlIs) regarding the so-
called total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC) that will be integrated into the existing
minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities ("MREL"), which is applicable
to all credit institutions. The harmonisation of the national insolvency ranking of
unsecured debt instruments that was proposed for these purposes to facilitate credit
institutions' issuance of such loss absorbing debt instruments was already implemented.

On 4 December 2018, the European Council (ECOFIN) endorsed the result of negotiations with
the European Parliament on a set of key risk reduction measures and the reforms of the so-
called "banking package".

Basel Il reforms by BCBS

On 7 December 2018, the oversight body of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
("BCBS"), the Group of Central Bank Governors and Heads of Supervision ("GHOS"), endorsed
the outstanding Basel lll reforms proposed by the BCBS (i.e. the international regulatory
framework for credit institutions developed by the BCBS in response to the financial crisis
2007 — 2009). These Basel Il reforms include:

- a revised standardised approach for credit risk, which will improve the robustness and
risk sensitivity of the existing approach;

- revisions to the internal ratings-based approach for credit risk, where the use of the most
advanced internally modelled approaches for low-default portfolios will be limited;

- revisions to the credit valuation adjustment (CVA) framework, including the removal of the
internally modelled approach and the introduction of a revised standardised approach;

- a revised standardised approach for operational risk, which will replace the existing
standardised approaches and the advanced measurement approaches;

- revisions to the measurement of the leverage ratio and a leverage ratio buffer for global
systemically important banks (G-SIBs), which will take the form of a Tier 1 capital buffer;
and
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- an aggregate output floor, which will ensure that risk-weighted assets ("RWAs")
generated by internal models are no lower than 72.5% of RWAs as calculated by the
Basel lll framework's standardised approaches. Credit institutions will also be required to
disclose their RWAs based on these standardised approaches.

The revised standards will take effect from 1 January 2022 and will be phased in over five
years. In addition, on 14 February 2019, the GHOS endorsed the finalized revised market risk
framework, which will also take effect from 1 January 2022.

Furthermore, the GHOS mandated the BCBS to review the regulatory treatment of sovereign
risk in January 2015. On 7 December 2017, the BCBS published a respective discussion paper,
but did not yet reach a consensus on making any changes to the regulatory treatment of
sovereign exposures.

The lIssuer's obligation to comply with, monitor and/or implement these, similar or other
additional, stricter and/or new regulatory rules and requirements may have a negative impact on
the Issuer's business operations and its assets, financial position and results of operation.

The Issuer has to comply with its applicable (regulatory) capital requirements at any time and
compliance with these may have a negative impact on the Issuer's business operations and its
assets, financial position and results of operation.

The Issuer has to comply with certain regulatory capital requirements (on an individual and
consolidated basis) at any time:

. In this regard, the Issuer is required to satisfy the applicable minimum capital requirements
pursuant to Article 92 CRR (so-called "Pillar 1 requirements") at all times. This includes a
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET 1") capital ratio of 4.5%, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% and a total
capital ratio of 8%.

. In addition, the Issuer is required to satisfy at all times the capital requirements that are imposed
by the FMA following the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process ("SREP") (so-called
"Pillar 2 requirements") ("SREP ratio") in form of CET 1 capital.

. Furthermore, the Issuer is required to satisfy at all times the combined buffer requirement within
the meaning of 8 2 (45) BWG in form of CET 1 capital. For the Issuer, the combined buffer
requirement consists of the sum of the capital buffer requirement for compliance with the capital
conservation buffer of 2.5% and the countercyclical capital buffer for relevant credit exposures
in Austria of 0.0%, based on the total risk exposure calculated pursuant to Article 92(3) CRR. In
addition, national countercyclical buffers determined by the designated authorities of other
Member States and third countries for credit exposures located in their respective territories

apply.

) Furthermore, each institution shall meet MREL in accordance with the Austrian Recovery and
Resolution Act (Sanierungs- und Abwicklungesetz — "BaSAG") / the SRMR upon request of the
resolution authority. This MREL ratio shall be determined by the resolution authority and shall
be calculated as the amount of own funds and eligible liabilities expressed as a percentage of
the total liabilities and own funds of the institution.

The Issuer's obligation to comply with these, similar or other additional, stricter and/or new (regulatory)
capital requirements may have a negative impact on the Issuer's business operations and its assets,
financial position and results of operation.

The Issuer is obliged to contribute to the Single Resolution Fund and to the deposit guarantee
fund and the Issuer's obligation to make contributions to the SRF and the deposit guarantee
fund may a negative impact on the Issuer's business operations as well as its assets, financial
position and results of operation.

The Single Resolution Fund ("SRF") has been established within the SRM and is composed of
contributions by credit institutions and certain investment firms in the participating Member States of
the Banking Union. The SRF shall be gradually built up during the initial period of eight years (2016 —
2023) and shall reach the target level of at least 1% of the amount of covered deposits of all credit
institutions within the Banking Union by 31 December 2023.

Furthermore, the "Directive 2014/49/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April
2014 on deposit guarantee schemes" (Directive on Deposit Guarantee Schemes — "DGSD") stipulates
a target level of the ex ante financed funds for the deposit guarantee schemes of 0.8% of covered
deposits. According to the Austrian Deposit Guarantee and Investor Protection Act
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(Einlagensicherungs- und Anlegerentschadigungsgesetz — "ESAEG"), which implements the DGSD in
Austria, the deposit guarantee fund shall be fully composed until 3 July 2024.

The Issuer is member of the Einlagensicherung AUSTRIA Ges.m.b.H. ("ESA"), the statutory (Austrian)
deposit guarantee scheme within the meaning of ESAEG. ESA is operative since 1 January 2019 and
replaces the guarantee schemes of the associations of Banken und Bankiers, Landes-
Hypothekenbanken, Raiffeisenbanken and Volksbanken which existed until 31 December 2018. If (in
case of a crises of a member institution) required, the credit institutions may also be obliged to make
certain (ex post) contributions to the SRF and the deposit guarantee fund.

The Issuer's obligation to make contributions to the SRF and the deposit guarantee fund may a
negative impact on the Issuer's business operations as well as its assets, financial position and results
of operation.

The Issuer is obliged to comply with extensive AML rules which causes significant costs and
expenses for the Issuer and any (factual or even only alleged) breach of the AML Rules may
have main negative legal, financial and reputational consequences for the Issuer.

The Issuer is subject to legal provisions in connection with measures to avoid money laundering,
corruption and terrorism financing ("AML Rules") which are continuously amended and tightened, e.g.
most recently by the implementation of Directive (EU) 2015/849 (so-called "4™ AML Directive") and in
near future by Directive (EU) 2018/843 (so-called "5 AML Directive").

The Issuer's obligation to comply with the AML Rules causes significant costs and expenses for the
Issuer. Any (factual or even only alleged) breach of the AML Rules may have main negative legal,
financial and reputational consequences for the Issuer and the Issuer's obligation to comply with the
AML Rules may have a negative impact on the Issuer's business operations and its assets, financial
position and results of operation.

If the relevant conditions are met, the resolution authority shall apply resolution actions in
relation to the Issuer and such application of resolution actions in relation to the Issuer may
have a material negative impact on the Notes.

As a common regime for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions the BRRD and the SRMR
form the SRM respectively its material legal bases. According to the BaSAG, which implements the
BRRD in Austria, the FMA is the national resolution authority.

If the conditions for resolution are met, the resolution authority shall take resolution actions (i.e.
resolution tools and resolution powers) in relation to an institution in order to be able to exercise an
orderly resolution an institution is failing (or likely to fail) and to preserve the financial stability. When
applying the resolution tools and exercising the resolution powers, the resolution authority shall take
into account the resolution objectives (inter alia, to ensure the continuity of critical functions, to avoid a
significant adverse effect on the financial stability and to protect public funds and covered deposits of
customers).

The resolution tools are:

. the sale of business tool;

. the bridge institution tool;

. the asset separation tool; and
. the bail-in tool.

By applying the bail-in tool the resolution authority may write down eligible liabilities in a cascading
contribution to loss absorption of an institution or convert them into instruments of ownership.
Moreover, the resolution authority can separate the performing assets from the impaired or under-
performing assets in order to ensure the continuity of services and avoid adverse effects on financial
stability. For this purpose the resolution authority can transfer the shares in an institution or all or part
of the assets of an institution to a private purchaser or a bridge institution without the consent of the
shareholders.

In addition, the resolution authority has so-called resolution powers, which it may exercise individually
or in any combination in relation to or for the preparation of the application of a resolution tool. These
resolution powers include in particular:

. the power to transfer to another entity rights, assets and liabilities of an institution under
resolution;
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. the power to reduce, including to reduce to zero, the principal amount of or outstanding amount
due in respect of eligible liabilities of an institution under resolution;

. the power to convert eligible liabilities of an institution under resolution into ordinary shares or
other instruments of ownership of an institution under resolution, a relevant parent institution or
a bridge institution to which assets, rights or liabilities of the Issuer are transferred;

. the power to cancel debt instruments issued by an institution under resolution;

. the power to require an institution under resolution or a relevant parent institution to issue new
shares, other instruments of ownership or other capital instruments, including preference shares
and other contingent convertible instruments; and/or

. the power to amend or alter the maturity of debt instruments and other eligible liabilities issued
by an institution under resolution or amend the amount of interest payable under such
instruments and other eligible liabilities, or the date on which the interest becomes payable,
including by suspending payment for a temporary period.

The application of resolution actions in relation to the Issuer may have a material negative impact on
the Notes. Apart from that, bankruptcy proceedings over the Issuer's assets or special receivership
proceedings regarding the Issuer may be opened.

2.4. RISK FACTORS REGARDING THE NOTES

Potential investors must base their decision to invest on their own assessment of the Issuer, as well as
on the risks associated with the investment.

The contents of this Prospectus serve as general information and cannot take into account the
personal situation of individual investors. The content of this Prospectus is not to be understood as
legal, economic, or tax advice, and does not suffices to inform the investor as may be required by a
securities  service  provider under the  Austrian  Securities  Supervision  Act 2018
(Wertpapieraufsichtsgesetz 2018 — "WAG 2018").

Each potential investor is therefore advised to consult an authorised financial advisor, tax advisor, or
lawyer for economic, tax, and legal advice prior to investing in any Notes of the Issuer described in this
Prospectus.

Each investment contains certain risks of a general nature. These risks include risks associated with
the stock market, the bond market, the currency market, interest rates, market volatility, economic and
political risk factors, credit risks, liquidity risks, and operational risk, alone or in combination with each
other or in connection with other risk factors.

The Issuer considers the risks listed below to be the most significant risks associated with the Notes,
whereby no claim to completeness is made.

2.4.1.Risks related to Notes generally
Set out below is a brief description of certain risks relating to the Notes generally:

Credit ratings of Notes (if any) may not adequately reflect all risks of the investment in such
Notes, credit rating agencies could assign unsolicited credit ratings, and credit ratings may be
suspended, downgraded or withdrawn, all of which could have an adverse effect on the market
price and trading price of the Notes.

A credit rating of Notes (if any) may not adequately reflect all risks of the investment in such Notes. It
is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be suspended, downgraded or
withdrawn by the credit rating agency at any time. Furthermore, credit rating agencies could decide to
assign credit ratings to the Notes on an unsolicited basis. Any such unsolicited credit rating,
suspension, downgrading or withdrawal may have an adverse effect on the market price and trading
price of the Notes.

The Notes are governed by Austrian law, and changes in applicable laws, regulations or
regulatory policies may have an adverse effect on the Issuer, the Notes and the Holders.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes are governed by Austrian law. Holders should thus note that
the governing law may not be the law of their own home jurisdiction and that the law applicable to the
Notes may not provide them with similar protection as their own law. Furthermore, the impact of any
possible judicial decision or change to Austrian law, or administrative practice after the date of this
Prospectus is unclear.
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The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt instruments or incurring further
liabilities.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes place no restriction on the amount of debt that the Issuer may
issue, incur and/or guarantee. Furthermore, the Issuer is not obliged to inform Holders about issuing,
incurring or guaranteeing further debt. Issuing, incurring or guaranteeing further debt may have a
negative impact on the market price of the Notes and the Issuer's ability to meet all obligations under
the issued Notes and may also reduce the amount recoverable by Holders upon the Issuer's
insolvency. If the Issuer's financial situation were to deteriorate, the Holders could suffer direct and
materially adverse consequences, including cancellation of interest payments and reduction of the
principal amount of the Notes and, in case of the Issuer's liquidation, loss of their entire investment. All
these factors may have a negative impact on the Holders.

The Notes are not covered by any (statutory or voluntary) protection scheme.

The Notes are not covered by the statutory protection scheme as provided pursuant to the ESAEG for
certain deposits. In addition, no voluntary deposit guarantee scheme exists for Notes. In the event of
the insolvency of the Issuer, investors of Notes therefore cannot rely on any (statutory or voluntary)
protection scheme to compensate them for the loss of capital invested in the Notes and might lose
their entire investment.

2.4.2.Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate
risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:

Holders assume the risk that the credit spread of the Issuer widens resulting in a decrease in
the market price of the Notes.

A credit spread is the margin payable by the Issuer to the Holder of an instrument as a premium for
the assumed credit risk. Credit spreads are offered and sold as premiums on current risk-free interest
rates or as discounts on the price.

Factors influencing the credit spread include, among other things, the creditworthiness and credit
rating of the Issuer, probability of default, recovery rate, remaining term to maturity of the Notes and
obligations under any collateralisation or guarantee and declarations as to any preferred payment or
subordination. The liquidity situation of the market, the general level of interest rates, overall economic
developments, and the currency, in which the relevant obligation is denominated may also have a
negative effect.

Holders are exposed to the risk that the credit spread of the Issuer widens resulting in a decrease in
the market price of the Notes.

The Holder may be exposed to the risk that due to future money depreciation (inflation), the
real yield of an investment may be reduced.

Inflation risk describes the possibility that the market price of assets such as the Notes or income
therefrom will decrease as higher (expected) inflation reduces the purchasing power of a currency.
Higher (expected) inflation causes the rate of return to decrease in value. If the inflation rate exceeds
the interest paid on any Notes (if any) the yield on such Notes will become negative.

A liquid secondary market for the Notes may not develop or, if it does develop, that it will
continue. In an illiquid market, a Holder may not be able to sell his Notes at fair market prices.

Application may be made to list Notes issued under the Programme to any of the Markets and Notes
may be included in multilateral trading facilities (MTF). The Programme also provides for that Notes
may not be listed or included at all.

Furthermore, in case of tap issues of Notes which are intended to be listed or included, such listing or
inclusion would generally only be applied for upon the end of the subscription period which, as tap
issues of Notes typically have a longer subscription period may lead to the fact that investors acquiring
the Notes have to wait for a substantial period in time until they are able to dispose of their Notes in a
market.

Regardless of whether the Notes are listed/included or not, a liquid secondary market for the Notes
may not develop or, if it does develop, that it will continue. The fact that the Notes may be listed or
included does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity as compared to unlisted/non-included Notes. If
the Notes are not listed on any stock exchange or included in any multilateral trading facility, pricing
information for such Notes may, however, be more difficult to obtain, which may adversely affect the
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liquidity of the Notes. In an illiquid market, a Holder might not be able to sell its Notes at any time at
fair market prices or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that
have a developed secondary market. This is particularly the case for Notes that are especially
sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, are designed for specific investment objectives or
strategies or have been structured to meet the investment requirements of limited categories of
investors. Generally, these types of Notes would have a more limited secondary market and more
price volatility than conventional debt securities. Illiquidity may have a material adverse effect on the
market price of Notes. The possibility to sell the Notes might additionally be restricted by country-
specific reasons.

No conclusion may be drawn from the indicated aggregate principal amount in case of "up to"
Notes.

In case of Notes offered and issued as tap issues ("up to" Notes) the indicated aggregate principal
amount of such "up to" Notes as set out in the relevant Final Terms will represent the maximum issue
volume of such "up to" Notes to be offered. The actual volume issued, however, may be lower than the
maximum issue volume and may vary during the life of the "up to" Notes depending in particular on the
demand for the "up to" Notes offered. No conclusion may therefore be drawn from the indicated
aggregate principal amount of "up to" Notes offered and issued as tap issues with regard to the
liquidity of the "up to" Notes in the secondary market.

There is a risk that trading in the Notes or underlyings will be suspended, interrupted or
terminated, which may have an adverse effect on the market price of such Notes.

If the Notes are listed on or included in trading (both "listed” or the "listing™) in one or more of the
Markets (which may be regulated or unregulated), the listing of such Notes may — depending on the
rules applicable to such stock exchange - be suspended or interrupted by the respective stock
exchange or a competent regulatory authority upon the occurrence of a number of reasons, including
violation of price limits, breach of statutory provisions, occurrence of operational problems of the stock
exchange or generally if deemed required in order to secure a functioning market or to safeguard the
interests of Holders. Furthermore, trading in the Notes may be terminated, either upon decision of the
stock exchange, a regulatory authority or upon application by the Issuer. Where trading in an
underlying of the Notes is suspended, interrupted or terminated, trading in the respective Notes will
usually also be suspended, interrupted or terminated and existing orders for the sale or purchase of
such Notes will usually be cancelled. Holders should note that the Issuer has no influence on trading
suspension or interruptions (other than where trading in the Notes is terminated upon the Issuer's
decision) and that Holders in any event must bear the risks connected therewith. In particular, Holders
may not be able to sell their Notes where trading is suspended, interrupted or terminated, and the
stock exchange quotations of such Notes may not adequately reflect the market price of such Notes.
Furthermore, a trading suspension, interruption or termination of underlyings of the Notes may cause a
suspension, interruption or termination of trading in the Notes and may as well result in an artificial or
wrong valuation of the Notes. Finally, even if trading in Notes or underlyings is suspended, interrupted
or terminated, Holders should note that such measures may neither be sufficient nor adequate nor in
time to prevent price disruptions or to safeguard the Holders' interests; for example, where trading in
Notes is suspended after price-sensitive information relating to such Notes has been published, the
market price of such Notes may already have been adversely affected. All these risks would, if they
materialise, have a material adverse effect on the Holders.

Holders are exposed to the risk of an unfavourable development of market prices of their Notes
which materialises if the Holder sells the Notes prior to the final maturity of such Notes.

The development of market prices of the Notes depends on various factors, such as changes of
market interest rate levels, the policies of central banks, overall economic developments, inflation
rates or the lack of or excess demand for the relevant type of Instrument. The Holder is therefore
exposed to the risk of an unfavourable development of market prices of its Notes which materialises if
the Holder sells the Notes prior to the final maturity of such Notes. Holders should also be aware that
Notes may be issued at a price higher than the market price at issue and/or the redemption amount.
This will increase the impact that unfavourable market price developments may have on the Notes. If
the Holder decides to hold the Notes until final maturity, the Notes will be redeemed at the amount set
out in the relevant Final Terms.
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Exchange rate risks may occur, if a Holder's financial activities are denominated in a currency
or currency unit other than the Specified Currency in which the Issuer will make principal and
interest payments. Furthermore, government and monetary authorities may impose exchange
controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate.

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in the Specified Currency. This presents certain
risks relating to currency conversions if a Holder's financial activities are denominated principally in a
currency or currency unit ("Holder's Currency") other than the Specified Currency. These include the
risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of the
Specified Currency or revaluation of the Holder's Currency) and the risk that authorities with
jurisdiction over the Holder's Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in
the value of the Holder's Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease: (i) the Holder's
Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes; (ii) the Holder's Currency-equivalent value of the principal
payable on the Notes; and (iii) the Holder's Currency-equivalent market price of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange
controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, Holders may receive less
interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

If a loan or credit is used to finance the acquisition of the Notes, the loan or credit may
significantly increase the amount of aloss.

If a loan is used to finance the acquisition of the Notes by a Holder and the Issuer is subsequently
unable to repay any or all of the principal and interest otherwise payable under the Notes, or if the
trading price diminishes significantly, the Holder may not only have to face a potential loss on its
investment, but it will also have to repay the loan and pay interest thereon. A loan may therefore
significantly increase the amount of a potential loss. Holders should not assume that they will be able
to repay the loan or pay interest thereon from the proceeds of a transaction. Instead, Holders should
assess their financial situation prior to an investment, as to whether they are able to pay interest on
the loan, repay the loan on demand, and that they may suffer losses instead of realising gains.

Incidental costs related in particular to the purchase and sale of the Notes may have a
significant impact on the profit potential of the Notes.

When Notes are purchased or sold, several types of incidental costs (including transaction fees and
commissions) may be incurred in addition to the purchase or sale price of the Notes. These incidental
costs may significantly reduce or eliminate any profit from holding the Notes. Credit institutions may
charge commissions which are either fixed minimum commissions or pro-rata commissions,
depending on the order value. To the extent that additional - domestic or foreign - parties are involved
in the execution of an order, including but not limited to domestic dealers or brokers in foreign markets,
Holders may also be charged for the brokerage fees, commissions and other fees and expenses of
such parties (third party costs).

In addition to such costs directly related to the purchase of Notes (direct costs), investors must also
take into account any follow-up costs (such as custody fees). Investors should inform themselves
about any additional costs incurred in connection with the purchase, custody or sale of the Notes
before investing in the Notes.

Potential investors should note that the purchase price applicable to the Notes on a given day will
often include a bid-ask spread so that the purchase price will be higher than the price at which Holders
are able to sell any such Notes on that given day.

Holders have to rely on the functionality of the relevant clearing system.

The Notes are purchased and sold through different clearing systems, such as Clearstream Banking,
S.A., Luxembourg, Euroclear Bank SA/NV or OeKB CSD GmbH. The Issuer does not assume any
responsibility as to whether the Notes are actually transferred to the securities portfolio of the relevant
investor. Holders have to rely on the functionality of the relevant clearing system. There is the risk that
due to the use of the clearing system any credits on the investors' account will not be processed, will
not be processed within the time expected by the investor or will be delayed. Thus, the investor may
suffer economic disadvantages.

The applicable tax regime may change to the disadvantage of the Holders; therefore, the tax
impact of an investment in the Notes should be carefully considered.

Interest payments on Notes, or profits realised by a Holder upon the sale or repayment of Notes, may
be subject to taxation in the Holder's state of residence or in other jurisdictions in which the Holder is
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subject to tax. The tax consequences which generally apply to Holders may, however, differ from the
tax impact on an individual Holder. Prospective investors, therefore, should contact their own tax
advisors on the tax impact of an investment in the Notes. Furthermore, the applicable tax regime may
change to the disadvantage of the investors in the future.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments.

The investment activities of certain Holders are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to
determine whether and to what extent: (i) Notes are legal investments for it; (ii) Notes can be used as
collateral for various types of borrowing; and (iii) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of
any Notes. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to
determine the appropriate treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

Furthermore, the Terms and Conditions of the Notes may contain certain exclusions or restrictions of
the Issuer's or other parties' (e.g. the Calculation Agent, the Paying Agent etc.) liability for negligent
acts or omissions in connection with the Notes, which could result in the Holders not being able to
claim (or only to claim partial) indemnification for damage that has been caused to them. Holders
should therefore inform themselves about such exclusions or restrictions of liability and consider
whether these are acceptable for them.

The Issuer is exposed to conflicts of interest which might adversely affect the Holders.

The Issuer may from time to time act in other capacities with regard to the Notes, such as calculation
agent, which allows the Issuer to make calculations in respect of the Notes (e.g. the amount of interest
to be paid) which are binding for the Holders. This fact could generate conflicts of interest and may
affect the market price of the Notes.

The Issuer may use all or some of the proceeds received from the sale of the Notes to enter into
hedging transactions which may affect the market price of the Notes.

It is usual for employees of financial institutions such as Oberbank Group to undertake deals on their
own behalf subject to securities laws on personal transactions and market abuse as well as statutory
or internal compliance standards. Employees and connected parties are permitted to take part in
securities offerings of Oberbank Group. Furthermore, when purchasing the Notes, the employee
receives a discount from the value of the market price.

Despite measures taken by the Issuer to ensure compliance with applicable laws and internal
procedures, each of the above could create a conflict with the duties owed to the Holders.

2.4.3.Risks related to the structure of particular Notes

A wide range of Notes may be issued under the Prospectus. A number of these Notes may
have features which contain particular risks for prospective investors. Set out below is a
description of the most common features.

Holders of Notes with a fixed interest rate are exposed to the risk that the market price of such
Notes falls as a result of changes in the market interest rate.

A holder of Notes with a fixed interest rate is exposed to the risk that the market price of such Notes
falls as a result of changes in the market interest rate. While the nominal interest rate of Notes with a
fixed interest rate as specified in the applicable Final Terms is fixed during the life of such Notes, the
current interest rate on the capital market for issues of the same maturity (the "market interest rate")
typically changes on a daily basis. As the market interest rate changes, the market price of Notes with
a fixed interest rate also changes, but in the opposite direction. If the market interest rate increases,
the market price of Notes with a fixed interest rate typically falls, until the yield of such Notes is
approximately equal to the market interest rate. If the market interest rate falls, the market price of
Notes with a fixed interest rate typically increases, until the yield of such Notes is approximately equal
to the market interest rate. The same risk applies to Step-Up Notes and Step-Down Notes if the
market interest rates in respect of comparable Notes are higher than the rates applicable to such
Notes.

Holders of Notes with a floating interest rate may be exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest
rate levels which make it impossible to determine the yield of such Notes in advance, and are
exposed to the risk of uncertain interest income.

Notes with a floating interest rate tend to be volatile investments. A holder of Notes with a floating
interest rate is exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain interest income.
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Fluctuating interest rate levels make it impossible to determine the profitability of Notes with a floating
interest rate in advance. Neither the current nor the historical value of the relevant floating rate should
be taken as an indication of the future development of such floating rate during the term of any
Floating Rate Notes.

If Notes with a floating interest rate are structured to include caps or floors or a factor, or any
combination of those features or other similar related features, the market price may be more volatile
than those for Notes with a floating interest rate that do not include these features.

The interest of Notes with a floating interest rate and Notes with fix to floating interest will be
calculated by reference to one or several specific benchmark indices.

The EURIBOR and other interest rate indices which are deemed to be benchmarks are the subject of
recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform (such indices
and together the "Benchmarks"). Some of these reforms are already effective whilst others are still to
be implemented. These reforms may cause such Benchmarks to perform differently than in the past,
or to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such
consequence could have a material adverse effect on any Notes linked to such a Benchmark.

In May 2016, the Council of the European Union adopted the Benchmark Regulation. The Benchmark
Regulation entered into force on 30 June 2016. Subject to various transitional provisions, the
Benchmark Regulation fully applies since 1 January 2018. The Benchmark Regulation applies to
“"contributors"”, "administrators" and "users" of Benchmarks in the EU, and, among other things:
(i) requires benchmark administrators to be authorised (or, if non-EU-based, to have satisfied certain
"equivalence" conditions in its local jurisdiction, to be "recognised" by the authorities of a member
state pending an equivalence decision or to be "endorsed" for such purpose by an EU competent
authority) and to comply with requirements in relation to the administration of Benchmarks; and
(i) bans the use of Benchmarks of unauthorised administrators. The scope of the Benchmark
Regulation is wide and, in addition to so-called critical Benchmark indices such as EURIBOR, applies
to many other interest rate indices.

The Benchmark Regulation could have a material impact on Notes linked to a "benchmark" rate or
index, including in any of the following circumstances:

(@) arate or index which is a Benchmark could not be used as such if its administrator does not
obtain authorisation or is based in a non-EU jurisdiction which (subject to applicable transitional
provisions) does not satisfy the "equivalence" conditions, is not "recognised" pending such a
decision and is not "endorsed" for such purpose. In such event, depending on the particular
Benchmark and the applicable terms of the Notes, the Notes could be de-listed, adjusted,
redeemed prior to maturity or otherwise impacted; and

(b)  the methodology or other terms of the Benchmark could be changed in order to comply with the
terms of the Benchmark Regulation, and such changes could have the effect of reducing or
increasing the rate or level or affecting the volatility of the published rate or level, and could lead
to adjustments to the terms of the Notes, including Calculation Agent's or other agent's
determination of the rate or level of such Benchmark.

Any of the international, national or other proposals for reform or the general increased regulatory
scrutiny of Benchmarks could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating
in the setting of a Benchmark and complying with any such regulations or requirements. Such factors
may have the effect of discouraging market participants from continuing to administer or contribute to
certain Benchmarks, trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in certain Benchmarks or lead
to the disappearance of certain Benchmarks. Benchmarks could also be discontinued entirely. If a
Benchmark were to be discontinued or otherwise unavailable, the rate of interest for Notes with a
floating interest rate which are linked to such Benchmark will be determined for the relevant period by
the fall-back provisions applicable to such Notes and as stipulated in the Terms and Conditions, which
in the end could result in the same rate being applied until maturity of the Notes with a floating interest
rate, effectively turning the floating rate of interest into a fixed rate of interest. Any such consequence
could have a material adverse effect on the market price of and return on any such Notes.
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Notes with fix to floating interest bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a
floating rate. A Holder bears the risk that after such conversion, the new interest rate may be
lower than the then prevailing interest rates or the spread on the Notes with fix to floating
interest may be less favourable than the then prevailing spreads on comparable floating rate
notes relating to the same reference rate(s).

Notes with fix to floating interest bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate.
The conversion of the interest rate will affect the market price of the Notes. If the interest rate converts
from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on such Notes may be less favourable than then
prevailing spreads on comparable floating rate notes relating to the same reference rate(s). In
addition, the new floating rate may at any time be lower than the interest rates payable on other Notes.
Furthermore, the risks set out above with regard to Notes with a fixed interest rate also apply in
relation to the period for which a fixed rate of interest is being paid and the risks set out above with
regard to Notes with a floating interest rate also apply in relation to the period for which a floating rate
of interest is being paid.

A Holder of Zero Coupon Notes is exposed to the risk that the market price of such Notes falls
as aresult of changes in the market interest rate. Market prices of Zero Coupon Notes are more
volatile than market prices of Notes with a fixed interest rate and are likely to respond to a
greater degree to market interest rate changes than interest bearing Notes with a similar
maturity.

Zero Coupon Notes do not pay current interest but are issued at a discount from their nominal value.
Instead of periodical interest payments, the difference between the redemption price and the issue
price constitutes interest income until maturity and reflects the market interest rate. A holder of Zero
Coupon Notes is exposed to the risk that the market price of such Notes falls as a result of changes in
the market interest rate. Market prices of Zero Coupon Notes are more volatile than market prices of
Notes with a fixed interest rate and are likely to respond to a greater degree to market interest rate
changes than interest bearing instruments with a similar maturity.

In the event that any Notes are redeemed prior to their maturity, a Holder of such Notes may be
exposed to risks, including the risk that his investment will have a lower than expected yield
(Risk of Early Redemption).

The applicable Final Terms will indicate whether the Issuer may have the right to call the Notes prior to
maturity (an optional call right) or whether the Notes will be subject to early redemption upon the
occurrence of an event specified in the applicable Final Terms (an early redemption event). The Issuer
will under certain circumstances have the right to early redeem the Notes if there is a change in the
applicable tax and/or regulatory treatment of the Notes. If the Issuer redeems the Notes prior to
maturity or the Notes are subject to early redemption due to an early redemption event, a Holder of
such Notes is exposed to the risk that, due to early redemption, its investment will have a lower than
expected yield. The Issuer might exercise its optional call right if the yield on comparable Notes in the
capital markets falls, which means that the Holder may only be able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds in Notes with a lower yield or with a similar yield of a higher risk.

Holders should note that where the Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for a right of early
redemption by the Issuer only, Holders usually receive a higher yield on their Notes than they would if
they were also granted a right to early redeem the Notes reflecting the higher risk of early redemption
the Holders of such Notes are exposed to. Excluding the Holders' right to redeem Notes prior to their
maturity is often a precondition for the Issuer being able to hedge its exposure under the Notes. Thus,
without early redemption by Holders being excluded, the Issuer would not be able to issue Notes at all,
or the Issuer would factor the potential hedging break costs into the redemption amount of the Notes,
thus reducing the yield Holders receive from the Notes. Investors should therefore carefully consider
whether they think that a right of early redemption only for the Issuer would be to their detriment, and
should, if they think that this is the case, not invest in the Notes.

In the case of a cap, a Holder will not be able to benefit from any actual favourable
development beyond the cap.

If the interest rate of an issue of Notes is not fixed but will be determined according to the structure of
the Notes as set out in the relevant Final Terms of the Notes, such an issue may also incorporate a
cap. The effect of a cap is that the amount of interest will never rise above the predetermined cap, so
that the holder will not be able to benefit from any actual favourable development beyond the cap. The
yield could therefore be considerably lower than that of similarly structured Notes without a cap.
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If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for resolutions of Holders, certain
rights of a Holder may be amended or reduced or even cancelled by way of resolutions, which
could affect the Holder negatively.

If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for resolutions of Holders, either to be
passed in a meeting of Holders or by vote taken without a meeting, a Holder is subject to the risk of
being outvoted by a majority resolution of the Holders. As such majority resolution properly adopted is
binding on all Holders, certain rights of such Holder against the Issuer under the relevant Terms and
Conditions of the Notes may be amended or reduced or even cancelled.

If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for the appointment of a Joint
Representative, a Holder may be deprived of its individual right to pursue and enforce its rights
under the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes against the Issuer.

If the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes provide for the appointment of a Joint
Representative, either in the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes or by a majority resolution of
the Holders, it is possible that a Holder may be deprived of its individual right to pursue and enforce its
rights under the relevant Terms and Conditions of the Notes against the Issuer, such right passing to
the Joint Representative who is then exclusively responsible to claim and enforce the rights of all
Holders.

Covered Bank Bonds may be redeemed after their Maturity Date.

The Terms and Conditions of Covered Bank Bonds may provide that their term is extended to the
Extended Maturity Date (i.e. at least twelve months after the Maturity Date) if the Issuer notifies the
Holder that the Issuer cannot redeem the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the relevant
Covered Bank Bonds on the Maturity Date. In such instance, the payment of the outstanding
aggregate principal amount shall be postponed and, notwithstanding the statutory regime on
acceleration and liquidation of the asset cover pool, shall become due and payable on the Extended
Maturity Date, together with accrued interest (if any) to, but excluding, the Extended Maturity Date. In
such case, interest will continue to accrue on the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the
Covered Bank Bonds during the period from, and including, the (original) Maturity Date to, but
excluding, the Extended Maturity Date at the relevant rate of interest set out in the relevant Terms and
Conditions and will be payable by the Issuer on each Interest Payment Date from, and excluding, the
(original) Maturity Date to, and including, the Extended Maturity Date (each as set out in the relevant
Terms and Conditions) in accordance with the relevant Terms and Conditions. Thus, Holders must not
expect repayment of the outstanding aggregate principal amount on the (original) Maturity Date of the
Covered Bank Bonds and are not entitled to terminate the Covered Bank Bonds, if the term of the
Covered Bank Bonds is extended. Furthermore, Holders may receive lower interest payments during
such extended period as the relevant applicable rate of interest may be lower than the rate of interest
which applied in the preceding interest periods.

The cover assets of the respective cover pool for Covered Bank Bonds may not at all times be
sufficient in order to cover the Issuer's obligations under the Covered Bank Bonds and/or that
replacement values are added in due time to the cover fund.

Covered Bank Bonds are secured or covered (gedeckt) by assets (Vermogenswerte) which meet the
requirements set out in the Austrian Act on Covered Bank Bonds (Gesetz betreffend fundierte
Bankschuldverschreibungen — "FBSchVG"). Payment claims of Holders of Covered Bank Bonds are
collateralized through a cover pool (Deckungsstock) with different cover assets (Vermdgenswerte). In
the event of insolvency or enforcement proceedings regarding the Issuer and/ or its assets, the
relevant cover assets are separated from the Issuer's other assets and may not be used to satisfy
claims of creditors of the Issuer other than the Holders of Covered Bank Bonds which are covered by
these cover assets. However, the cover assets of the respective cover pool for Covered Bank Bonds
may not at all times be sufficient in order to cover the obligations under the Covered Bank Bonds
and/or replacement values may not be added in due time to the cover pool.

Risk that changes in the rating of the mortgage cover pool may adversely affect the market
price of Covered Bank Bonds.

The rating of the mortgage cover pool for Covered Bank Bonds issued by an independent credit rating
agency is an indicator of the value of the cover pool and, thus, of the Issuer's ability to meet its
obligations under the Covered Bank Bonds. The lower the rating, the higher the credit rating agency
estimates the risk that the Issuer may not fulfill its responsibilities. The credit rating agency can change
or withdraw the credit rating at short notice. A change or withdrawal of the credit rating may adversely
affect the market price of the Covered Bank Bonds with a mortgage cover pool.
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An Austrian court could appoint a trustee for the Notes to exercise the rights and represent the
interests of Holders on their behalf in which case the ability of Holders to pursue their rights
under the Notes individually may be limited.

Pursuant to the Austrian Trustee Act 1874 (Kuratorengesetz 1874) and the Austrian Trustee
Supplemental Act 1877 (Kuratorenergdnzungsgesetz 1877), a trustee (Kurator) could be appointed by
an Austrian court upon the request of any interested party (e.g. a Holder) or upon the initiative of the
competent court, for the purposes of representing the common interests of the Holders in matters
concerning their collective rights. In particular, this may occur if insolvency proceedings are initiated
against the Issuer, in connection with any amendments to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes or
changes relating to the Issuer, or under other similar circumstances.

Even with respect to Notes where the applicable Terms and Conditions exclude the applicability of the
Austrian Trustee Act and the Austrian Trustee Supplemental Act, it cannot be excluded that an
Austrian court rejects the exclusion of the applicability of the Austrian Trustee Act and the Austrian
Trustee Supplemental Act and appoints a trustee, because the Issuer is an Austrian company. If a
trustee is appointed, it will exercise the collective rights and represent the interests of the Holders and
will be entitled to make statements on their behalf which shall be binding on all Holders. Where a
trustee represents the interests of and exercises the rights of Holders, this may conflict with or
otherwise adversely affect the interests of individual or all Holders. The role of an appointed trustee
may also conflict with provisions of the Terms and Conditions related to majority resolutions of the
Holders pursuant to the Terms and Conditions. On the other hand, investors should not rely on the
protection afforded by the Austrian Trustee Act and the Austrian Trustee Supplemental Act, as its
application has been excluded in the Terms and Conditions and an Austrian court may give effect to
such disapplication.

Holders are exposed to the risk of statutory loss absorption.

The SRM shall provide the respective resolution authorities with uniform and effective resolution tools
and resolution powers to achieve the resolution objectives.

Therefore, the resolution authority shall, inter alia, write down or convert relevant capital instruments if
it is determined that unless that power is exercised, the institution (or any entity pursuant to 8 1(1)(2)
to (4) BaSAG) will no longer be viable or extraordinary public financial support is required.

The resolution authority shall exercise the write-down and conversion powers of the relevant capital
instruments in accordance with the following sequence (and in each case, to the extent required to
achieve the resolution objectives and to cover the losses): (i) CET 1 items are reduced first in
proportion to the losses; (ii) then the principal amount of Additional Tier 1 ("AT 1") instruments is
written down or converted or both; and (iii) then the principal amount of Tier 2 instruments is written
down or converted or both.

When applying the bail-in tool, the resolution authority may exercise the write-down and conversion
powers not only to instruments of ownership and relevant capital instruments pursuant to (i), (i) and
(i) (= CET 1 items, AT 1 instruments and Tier 2 instruments), but also: (iv) reduce the principal
amount of subordinated debt that is not AT 1 or Tier 2 capital in accordance with the hierarchy of
claims in bankruptcy proceedings to the extent required; and (v) write down the rest of eligible
liabilities (including certain senior debt) in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in bankruptcy
proceedings, including the ranking provided for in § 131 BaSAG, to the extent required (sequence of
write-down and conversion or so-called "loss absorbing cascade").

The conditions for resolution are:

(@) the determination that the institution is failing or likely to fail has been made by the competent
authority or the resolution authority; and

(b)  having regard to timing and other relevant circumstances, there is no reasonable prospect that
any alternative private sector measures, including measures by an institutional protection
scheme, or supervisory action, including early intervention measures or the write-down or
conversion of relevant capital instruments taken in respect of the institution, would prevent the
failure of the institution within a reasonable timeframe; and

(c) aresolution action is necessary in the public interest.

The power of write-down or conversion of relevant capital instruments may be applied before and
independent from the bail-in tool, and therefore claims of Holders of Subordinated Notes may be
subject to statutory loss absorption while claims of Holders of other Notes may remain unaffected.
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If the write-down and conversion of relevant capital instruments or the bail-in tool is applied to the
Notes, their principal amount may be fully or partially written down or converted into instruments of
ownership.

In case of an insolvency of the Issuer, deposits have a higher ranking than claims of the
Holders under the Notes.

According to § 131 BaSAG, in bankruptcy proceedings opened over the Issuer's assets, the following
insolvency hierarchy applies:

(&) The following claims have the same ranking which is higher than the ranking provided for the
claims of ordinary senior unsecured and non-preferred senior unsecured creditors: (i) that part
of eligible deposits from natural persons and micro, small and medium-sized enterprises which
exceeds the covered deposits; and (ii) deposits that would be eligible deposits from natural
persons, micro, small and medium-sized enterprises if they are not made through branches
(located outside the EU) of institutions established within the EU;

(b)  The following claims have the same priority ranking, which is higher than the ranking provided
for under point (a): (i) covered deposits; and (ii) deposit guarantee schemes subrogating to the
rights and obligations of covered depositors in insolvency.

(c) In addition, since 30 June 2018 a (new) ranking for certain debt instruments exists. Thus,
ordinary senior unsecured claims have a higher priority ranking (i.e. are senior) in bankruptcy
proceedings than that of unsecured claims resulting from debt instruments within the meaning of
§ 131(3) BaSAG. Such so-called "non-preferred senior debt instruments" are debt instruments
that meet the following conditions: (i) the original contractual maturity of the debt instruments is
of at least one year; (ii) the debt instruments contains no embedded derivatives and are not
derivatives themselves; (iii) the relevant contractual documentation and, where applicable, the
prospectus related to the issuance explicitly refer to the lower ranking under 8 131(3) BaSAG.
Such non-preferred senior debt instruments have a higher priority ranking in bankruptcy
proceedings than the priority ranking of claims resulting from instruments referred to in
§90(1)(1) to (4) BaSAG (in particular AT 1 instruments, Tier 2 instruments and other
subordinated debt).

Therefore, in case of bankruptcy proceedings and in any comparable proceedings (in particular
resolution proceedings) opened in relation to the Issuer claims of Holders of Notes would be in any
case junior to the claims listed above in points (a) and (b) and, where applicable, also in point (c), and
therefore they will only receive payment of their claims if and to the extent that such claims (which are
senior to them) have been discharged in full.

Holders of Notes with a (partly) inflation linked interest rate are exposed to the risk of the
performance of the underlying index.

The calculation of the interest amount payable under Notes with a (partly) inflation linked interest rate
will be tied to the performance of the unrevised Harmonised Index of Consumer Prices (excluding
Tobacco) for the Eurozone ("HICP"), which is calculated on a monthly basis by the statistical office of
the European Union (EUROSTAT). The performance of the HICP is particularly subject to the
commodity price risk and political, financial and general economic risks, which may have an impact on
the prices of the commodities included in the HICP's basket of commodities. The Issuer has no
influence on the composition and/or weighting of the HICP. Neither the current nor the historical value
of the HICP should be taken as an indication of the future performance of the HICP during the term of
such Notes.

Holders of Notes with a (partly) inflation linked interest rate are particularly exposed to the risk of
fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain interest income or may even receive no interest at all.
Furthermore, there is the risk that the performance of the components of the HICP is unfavourable for
Holders of such Notes or that the composition of the HICP changes, which may adversely impact the
market price of such Notes.

2.4.4.Specific Risks in connection with Subordinated Notes

Obligations under Subordinated Notes will only be fulfilled after all non-subordinated claims of
creditors have been satisfied.

In the event of the Issuer's liquidation or insolvency, the Issuer's obligations under the Subordinated
Notes will be wholly subordinated to the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer so that in
any such event no amounts will be payable under such obligations until the claims of all
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unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer will have been satisfied in full. If this occurs, the Issuer may not
have enough assets remaining after such payments to pay amounts due under the relevant
Subordinated Notes and the Holder of such Subordinated Notes could lose all or some of his
investment.

The Holders of Subordinated Notes are exposed to the risk that the Issuer may issue
subordinated debt instruments or incur subordinated liabilities which are senior to the
Subordinated Notes.

Holders of Subordinated Notes are exposed to the risk of subordination not only in respect of
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer (including, without limitation, Ordinary Senior Notes, ordinary
senior and non-preferred senior Eligible Notes or Covered Bank Bonds). This could in particular apply
in connection with bail-in instruments which the Issuer would have to issue under the SRM for MREL
purposes.

In the event of an insolvency of the Issuer, no amounts will be payable under Subordinated Notes until
the claims of any and all such subordinated creditors of the Issuer ranking senior to Subordinated
Notes will have been satisfied in full. Similarly, where the resolution authority applied the bail-in tool,
Subordinated Notes would be subject to write down or conversion prior to such other subordinated
creditors of the Issuer ranking senior to Subordinated Notes, in accordance with the statutory
sequence of write-down and conversion (see also the risk factor "Holders are exposed to the risk of
statutory loss absorption.").

Subordinated Notes do not give the right to accelerate future payments.

Holders have no ability to accelerate the maturity of their Subordinated Notes. The Terms and
Conditions of the Subordinated Notes do not provide for any events of default or right to demand for
repayment, except that each Holder shall be entitled, if insolvency proceedings are commenced
against assets of the Issuer, to file an application in such court demanding payment of all principal
amounts due under the Subordinated Notes together with accrued interest (if any) and any additional
amounts (if any) payable under the Terms and Conditions of the Subordinated Notes.

Claims of the Issuer may not be permitted to be offset against payment obligations of the Issuer under
the Subordinated Notes which are not, and may not become secured or subject to a guarantee or any
other arrangement that enhances the seniority of the claims under the Subordinated Notes.

Subordinated Notes may not be early redeemed at the option of the Holders, and any rights of
the Issuer to early redeem or repurchase Subordinated Notes are subject to the prior
permission of the Competent Authority.

The Holders of the Subordinated Notes will have no rights to call for the early redemption of their
Subordinated Notes and should not invest in the Subordinated Notes in the expectation that any early
redemption right will be exercised by the Issuer. The Issuer may, at its sole discretion, early redeem
the Subordinated Notes at any time either for tax or regulatory reasons at the Early Redemption
Amount plus interest accrued (if any) until the date fixed for redemption. In addition, if such right is
foreseen in the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer may at its sole discretion redeem the Subordinated
Notes before their stated maturity, but not before five years after the date of their issuance, on a
specified Call Redemption Date at the applicable Call Redemption Price plus accrued interest (if any).

Any early redemption and any repurchase of the Subordinated Notes is subject to the prior permission
of the Competent Authority pursuant to Article 4(1)(40) CRR which is responsible to supervise the
Issuer and compliance with regulatory capital rules applicable from time to time to the Issuer. Under
the CRR, the Competent Authority may only permit institutions to early redeem or repurchase Tier 2
instruments such as the Notes if certain conditions prescribed by the CRR are complied with. These
conditions, as well as a number of other technical rules and standards relating to regulatory capital
requirements applicable to the Issuer, should be taken into account by the Competent Authority in its
assessment of whether or not to permit any early redemption or repurchase. It is uncertain how the
Competent Authority will apply these criteria in practice and such rules and standards may change
during the maturity of the Notes. It is therefore difficult to predict whether, and if so, on what terms, the
Competent Authority will grant its prior permission for any early redemption or repurchase of the
Notes.

Furthermore, even if the Issuer would be granted the prior permission of the Competent Authority, any
decision by the Issuer as to whether it will early redeem the Subordinated Notes will be made at the
absolute discretion of the Issuer with regard to external factors such as the economic and market
impact of exercising an early redemption right, regulatory capital requirements and prevailing market
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conditions. The lIssuer disclaims, and investors should therefore not expect, that the Issuer will
exercise any early redemption right in relation to the Subordinated Notes.

Notwithstanding if the Issuer exercises an early redemption right in relation to Subordinated Notes with
the prior permission of the Competent Authority Holders of Subordinated Notes are exposed to the risk
that due to such early redemption their investments may a different than expected yield and maturity.

Holders of the Subordinated Notes should therefore be aware that they may be required to bear the
financial risks of an investment in the Subordinated Notes until their final maturity.

2.4.5.Specific Risks in connection with Eligible Notes

The qualification of the Eligible Notes as instruments eligible for MREL purposes is subject to
uncertainty.

Eligible Notes are intended to be instruments eligible for MREL purposes under the BaSAG. However,
there is uncertainty regarding the final substance of applicable regulation and on how such regulation,
once enacted, is to be interpreted and applied and the Issuer cannot provide any assurance that
Eligible Notes will be (or thereafter remain) instruments eligible for MREL purposes.

Currently, no European directives or regulations have been issued to align MREL with the TLAC
concept, but there are proposals in order to integrate the TLAC standards into the existing MREL
requirements (see also the risk factor "The Issuer has to comply with its applicable (regulatory) capital
requirements at any time."). While the Terms and Conditions of Eligible Notes are intended to be
consistent with these proposals, there is a risk that finally adopted and applicable regulations in this
respect may be different from regulations set forth in these proposals.

Because of the uncertainty surrounding the substance of final regulation on MREL eligibility, the Issuer
cannot provide any assurance that the Eligible Notes will ultimately be instruments eligible for MREL
purposes. If for any reasons they are not instruments eligible for MREL purposes or if they initially are
instruments eligible for MREL purposes and subsequently become ineligible, then the Issuer may be
required to issue other capital instruments or Eligible Notes to fulfil its MREL and the Eligible Notes
may be redeemed by the Issuer, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Eligible Notes
and applicable regulation (see also the risk factor "Eligible Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity
for tax or regulatory reasons.”).

Claims of Holders of non-preferred senior Eligible Notes will be junior to the claims of holders
of certain other senior claims.

Holders of non-preferred senior Eligible Notes should bear in mind that in case of insolvency
proceedings opened in relation to the Issuer and in any comparable proceedings (such as resolution
proceedings pursuant to the SRM) their claims will, in accordance with the terms of such Notes, be
junior to the claims of Holders of Ordinary Senior Notes, ordinary senior Eligible Notes and any other
senior claims without non-preferred senior status (including senior claims preferred by law).

Thus, no amounts will be payable under non-preferred senior Eligible Notes until the claims ranking
senior to such Notes will have been satisfied in full. If this occurs, the Issuer may not have enough
assets remaining after such payments to pay amounts due under the relevant non-preferred senior
Eligible Notes and the Holders of such Notes could lose all or some of their investment.

Eligible Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity for tax or regulatory reasons.

The Issuer may, at its option, redeem Eligible Notes in whole, but not in part, at any time at their Early
Redemption Amount, together with interest (if any) accrued to the date fixed for redemption
(exclusive), if there is a change in the applicable tax treatment of the Eligible Notes, or if there is a
change in the regulatory classification of the Eligible Notes that would be likely to result or has resulted
in their exclusion in full or in part from liabilities eligible for MREL purposes pursuant to BaSAG on an
unlimited and uncapped basis and in each case if the conditions for redemption and repurchase are
met.

The early redemption of Notes which qualify as Eligible Liabilities may be subject in the future to the
prior permission of the Competent Authority and/or the Resolution Authority. The proposals for a
regulation amending CRR (intended to be reflected under the Terms and Conditions of the Eligible
Notes) provide that the redemption of Eligible Liabilities prior to the date of their contractual maturity is
subject to the prior permission of the Competent Authority and/or the Resolution Authority in
accordance with the relevant terms of the CRR, if and to the extent such prior permission is required at
this time.
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Notwithstanding the above conditions, if, at the time of any early redemption or repurchase, the
prevailing supervisory regulations applicable to the Issuer permit the early redemption or repurchase
only after compliance with one or more alternative or additional pre-conditions to those set out in the
first paragraph above, the Issuer shall comply with such other and/or, as appropriate, additional pre-
conditions, if any.

It is not possible to predict whether or not Eligible Notes will qualify as instruments eligible for MREL
purposes (see the risk factor "The qualification of the Eligible Notes as instruments eligible for MREL
purposes is subject to uncertainty."”) or if any further change in the laws or regulations of Austria or the
European Union will occur and so lead to the circumstances in which the Issuer is able to elect to
redeem the Eligible Notes, and, if so, whether or not the Issuer will elect to exercise such option to
redeem the Eligible Notes or any prior consent of the Competent Authority and/or the Resolution
Authority, if required, will be given. The Issuer may be expected to redeem Eligible Notes on this
basis, when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Eligible Notes. At those times,
an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest
rate as high as the interest rate on the Eligible Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so
at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other
investments available at that time. Early redemption features are also likely to limit the market price of
the Eligible Notes. During any period when the Issuer can redeem the Eligible Notes, the market price
of the Eligible Notes generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be
redeemed. This may also be true prior to any redemption period if the market believes that the Eligible
Notes may become eligible for redemption in the near term.

Eligible Notes do not give right to accelerate future payments.

Holders have no ability to accelerate the maturity of their Eligible Notes. The Terms and Conditions of
the Eligible Notes do not provide for any events of default or right to demand for repayment, except
that each Holder shall be entitled, if insolvency proceedings are commenced against assets of the
Issuer, to file an application in such court demanding payment of all principal amounts due under the
Eligible Notes together with accrued interest and any additional amounts payable under the Terms
and Conditions of the Eligible Notes.

Claims of the Issuer are not permitted to be offset against payment obligations of the Issuer under the
Eligible Notes which are not, and may not become secured or subject to a guarantee or any other
arrangement that enhances the seniority of the claims under the Eligible Notes.

Debt instruments with 'non-preferred’ senior ranking are new types of instruments for which
there is no trading history.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Issuer is not aware of any public offer / issuance of any
benchmark "non-preferred” senior debt instruments by an Austrian credit institution. Accordingly, there
is no trading history for instruments issued by Austrian credit institutions with this ranking. Market
participants, including credit rating agencies, are in the initial stages of evaluating the risks associated
with "non-preferred” senior debt instruments. The credit ratings assigned to "non-preferred" senior
debt instruments such as the Eligible Notes with "non-preferred" senior ranking may change as the
credit rating agencies refine their approaches, and the value of such securities may be particularly
volatile as the market becomes more familiar with them. It is possible that, over time, the credit ratings
and value of "non-preferred" senior debt instruments such as the Eligible Notes with "non-preferred”
senior ranking will be lower than those expected by investors at the time of issuance of such debt
instrument. If so, Holders may incur losses in respect of their investments in Eligible Notes with "non-
preferred" senior ranking.
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3. GENERAL INFORMATION

Consents and Approvals. The Issuer has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and
authorizations in the Republic of Austria in connection with the establishment of the
Programme. The establishment of the Programme has been authorized by the Issuer's
supervisory board on 28 November 2018.

Representation of Holders. In general, all rights attached to the Notes under the Programme
must be asserted by the Holders or their representatives directly vis-a-vis the Issuer at its seat
during usual business hours or in writing (registered letter is recommended) or before the
competent courts. A representation of the Holders will not be organized by the Issuer.

To safeguard the rights of holders of, among others, bearer notes of Austrian issuers, if their
rights are endangered due to a lack of common representation, in particular in case of
insolvency of an issuer, the competent court has to appoint a trustee for the relevant Holders
pursuant to the Austrian Trustee Act 1874 (Kuratorengesetz 1874) and the Austrian Trustee
Supplemental Act 1877 (Kuratorenergdnzungsgesetz 1877) certain acts of which require court
approval and whose competences shall be specified by the court in regard of the common
matters of the Holders.

In case of Covered Bank Bonds the government commissioner has to apply by the competent
court for the appointment of a trustee pursuant to § 2 (3) FBSchVG in case he or she deems
that the rights of the Holders of the Covered Bank Bonds are endangered. Such trustee must
be appointed by the insolvency court in case of insolvency of the Issuer.

Categories of potential investors. The Issuer may offer Notes to all types of investors,
including eligible counterparties, professional clients and retail clients using all available
distribution channels taking into account requirements to conduct an appropriateness test (if
applicable) (all as more fully set out/described in MIFID Il and the MIFID II Product
Governance Rules) in any jurisdiction where the legal and further requirements for offering
securities are fulfilled. If offers are being made simultaneously in the markets of two or more
countries, the Issuer generally does not reserve any tranches of Notes for certain of these.

Yield. Yield means the general performance of a money or capital investment, calculated by
the actual percentaged value increase of the invested capital. Yield is based on proceeds
(coupon payments, dividends, realized capital gains) and the price increase of the money or
capital investment.

Yield (as issuance yield — determined by issue price, interest rate, interest period and
redemption payments) can only be specified in advance in the Final Terms under the
assumption that the Notes are held until maturity and that the interest periods, interest rate
and redemption payments are determined in advance.

For Notes other than Notes with a fixed interest rate, Step-up or Step-down Notes or Notes
without periodic interest payments no yield can be calculated. Therefore no yield will be stated
in the Final Terms with respect to such Notes. The vyield of such Notes is influenced
substantially by the issue price, the interest periods, interest rate, any coupon payments
during the life of the Notes, the development of the underlying and the redemption payment.

For Notes with a fixed interest rate, Step-up or Step-down Notes or Notes without periodic
interest payments, the yield calculated on the basis of the issue price, interest rate (if any),
interest period and the redemption payment will be specified in the Final Terms. The specified
yield does not take into account any taxes or additional expenses like subscription fees or
deposit fees.

The vyield is calculated according to the internationally recognized method of the International
Capital Market Association (ICMA). The yield is calculated by the issue price, interest rate,
interest period and redemption payment of the relevant Notes as specified in the Final Terms.
Thereby, the yield will be calculated by an approximation procedure with respect to the net
present value, assuming that interest payments during the life of the Notes can be reinvested
by the same yield.

Conflicting Interests. Offers under the Programme will be made in the interest of Oberbank
as Issuer. In case individual issuances under this Programme will be placed by financial
intermediaries or a bank syndicate (see the section "Consent to use the Prospectus"), such
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entities may receive a certain (placement) fee for their services. Other than that the Issuer is
not aware of any interests, including conflicting ones that are material to offers under the
Programme.

Advisors, Audited Information, Expert Opinions. Other than the information under the
section "Documents Incorporated by Reference", element B.12. of the section "Summary",
element B.12 of the "Summary in German Language", this Prospectus does not contain any
information which has been audited or reviewed by statutory auditors. This Prospectus does
neither contain any information on advisors connected with an issue nor statements or reports
attributed to persons as experts or other information sourced from third parties.

Significant and material adverse changes. There has been no significant change in the
financial position of the Oberbank Group since 30 September 2018 and no material adverse
change in the prospects of the Issuer since 31 December 2017.

Restrictions on the free transferability of the securities. The Terms and Conditions of the
Notes do not contain any restrictions on the free transferability of the Notes. The Notes are
freely transferable in accordance with applicable law and the applicable rules of the relevant
clearing system.

Issue Price, Expenses and Taxes. Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a
discount or premium to their nominal amount. In case of a permanent issuance
(Daueremission) the initial offering price will be continuously adapted to market conditions and
published on the Issuer's website www. oberbank.at under the sections "Private Banking" /
"Wertpapiere" / "Anleihen" under the item "Oberbank Neuemissionen". The Final Terms will
specify the issue price relevant for each issuance. In addition to the issue price, investors may
also be subject to certain expenses and taxes, which will also be specified in the Final Terms,
if applicable.
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4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

Die  Anleihebedingungen  der  Schuldver-
schreibungen (die "Anleihebedingungen") sind
nachfolgend fur vier Optionen aufgefuhrt:

Option | enthélt die Anleihebedingungen flr
Tranchen  von  Gewohnlichen Nicht-
nachrangigen Schuldverschreibungen.

Option Il enthalt die Anleihebedingungen fir
Tranchen von Fundierten Bank-
schuldverschreibungen.

Option 1l enthalt die Anleihebedingungen
fur Tranchen von Nachrangigen Schuld-
verschreibungen.

Option IV enthalt die Anleihebedingungen
fur Tranchen von Bericksichtigungsfahigen
Schuldverschreibungen.

Die Anleihebedingungen fur jede dieser Optionen
enthalten bestimmte weitere Unteroptionen, die
unter Angabe der jeweiligen optionalen
Bestimmungen  durch  Anweisungen und
Anmerkungen in eckigen Klammern innerhalb der
Option entsprechend gekennzeichnet sind.

In den Endgultigen Bedingungen legt die
Emittentin fest, welche der Optionen |, Il, Il oder
IV einschlieBlich bestimmter weiterer darin
enthaltener Unteroptionen im Hinblick auf eine
einzelne Emission von Schuldverschreibungen
jeweils Anwendung findet, entweder durch
Wiederholung der betreffenden Bestimmung oder
per Verweis auf die betreffenden Optionen.

Soweit die Emittentin zum Zeitpunkt der Billigung
dieses Prospekts keine Kenntnis von bestimmten
Elementen hatte, die auf eine einzelne Emission
von Schulverschreibungen anwendbar sind,
enthalt dieser Prospekt Platzhalter in eckigen
Klammern, die die betreffenden Elemente
einschlieBen. Diese Platzhalter werden in den
Endglltigen Bedingungen ausgefllt.

[Im Fall, dass die Optionen, die fur eine
einzelne Emission anwendbar sind, in den
Endglltigen Bedingungen durch Verweis auf
die relevanten Optionen bestimmt werden, die
im Satz der Anleihebedingungen der Option |,
Option Il, Option 1l oder Option IV enthalten
sind, einflgen:

Die Bestimmungen dieser Anleihebedingungen
gelten fur diese Schuldverschreibungen so, wie

sie durch die Angaben der beigeflugten
endgiltigen Bedingungen (die "Endgultigen
Bedingungen") vervollstandigt werden. Die

Leerstellen in den auf die Schuldverschreibungen
anwendbaren Bestimmungen dieser
Anleihebedingungen gelten als durch die in den
Endgtiltigen Bedingungen enthaltenen Angaben
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The Terms and Conditions of the Notes (the
"Terms and Conditions") are set forth below for
four options:

Option | comprises the set of Terms and
Conditions that apply to Tranches of Notes
which are Ordinary Senior Notes.

Option Il comprises the set of Terms and
Conditions that apply to Tranches of Covered
Bank Bonds (Fundierte
Bankschuldverschreibungen).

Option 1l comprises the set of Terms and
Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Subordinated Notes.

Option IV comprises the set of Terms and
Conditions that apply to Tranches of Eligible
Notes.

The set of Terms and Conditions for each of
these Options contains certain further sub-
options, which are characterised accordingly by
indicating the respective optional provision
through instructions and explanatory notes set
out in square brackets within the Option.

In the Final Terms the Issuer will determine,
which of Option I, Option II, Option IIl or Option IV
including certain further sub-options contained
therein, respectively, shall apply with respect to
an individual issue of Notes, either by replicating
the relevant provisions or by referring to the
relevant options.

To the extent that upon the approval of this
Prospectus the Issuer had no knowledge of
certain items which are applicable to an individual
issue of Notes, this Prospectus contains
placeholders set out in square brackets which
include the relevant items that will be completed
by the Final Terms.

[In case the options applicable to an
individual issue are to be determined by
referring in the Final Terms to the relevant
options contained in the set of Terms and
Conditions for Option I, Option Il, Option Il or
Option IV, insert:

The provisions of these Terms and Conditions
apply to the Notes as completed by the terms of
the final terms which are attached hereto (the
"Final Terms"). The blanks in the provisions of
these Terms and Conditions which are applicable
to the Notes shall be deemed to be completed by
the information contained in the Final Terms as if
such information were inserted in the blanks of
such provisions; alternative or optional provisions



ausgefillt, als ob die Leerstellen in den
betreffenden Anleihebedingungen durch diese
Angaben ausgeflllt waren; alternative oder
wahlbare Bestimmungen dieser
Anleihebedingungen, deren Entsprechungen in
den Endguiltigen Bedingungen nicht ausgefiillt
oder die gestrichen sind, gelten als aus diesen
Anleihebedingungen gestrichen; und samtliche

auf die Schuldverschreibungen nicht
anwendbaren Bestimmungen dieser
Anleihebedingungen (einschlief3lich der

Anweisungen, erklarenden Anmerkungen und der
Texte in eckigen Klammern) gelten als aus
diesen Anleihebedingungen gestrichen, so dass
die Bestimmungen der Endgiltigen Bedingungen
Geltung erhalten. Kopien der Endgultigen
Bedingungen sind kostenlos am Sitz der
Emittentin erhéltlich; bei nicht an einer Borse
notierten Schuldverschreibungen sind Kopien der
betreffenden Endgiiltigen Bedingungen allerdings
ausschlieBlich  fur die  Glaubiger solcher
Schuldverschreibungen erhéltlich.]
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of these Terms and Conditions as to which the
corresponding provisions of the Final Terms are
not completed or are deleted shall be deemed to
be deleted from these Terms and Conditions; and
all provisions of these Terms and Conditions
which are inapplicable to the Notes (including
instructions, explanatory notes and text set out in
square brackets) shall be deemed to be deleted
from these Terms and Conditions, as required to
give effect to the terms of the Final Terms.
Copies of the Final Terms may be obtained free
of charge at the registered office of the Issuer
provided that, in the case of Notes which are not
listed on any stock exchange, copies of the
relevant Final Terms will only be available to
Holders of such Notes.]



OPTION |
OPTION | — ORDINARY SENIOR NOTES

OPTION | — EMISSIONSBEDINGUNGEN FUR
GEWOHNLICHE NICHT NACHRANGIGE
SCHULDVERSCHREIBUNGEN:

81
WAHRUNG, STUCKELUNG, FORM,
DEFINITIONEN

(1) Wéhrung, Stickelung. Diese Tranche (die
"Tranche") von gewdhnlichen nicht nachrangigen
Schuldverschreibungen (die
"Schuldverschreibungen") dieser Emission von
[Emissionsbezeichnung einfligen] (die "Serie")
wird von der Oberbank AG (die "Emittentin™) [am
[Begebungstag einfligen] (Einmalemission)] [ab
dem [Erst-Begebungstag einfliigen] mit offener
Begebungsfrist (Daueremission)] in [festgelegte
Wahrung einfugen] (die "festgelegte
Wéhrung") im Gesamtnennbetrag von [im Fall
von Schuldverschreibungen, die dauernd
angeboten und begeben werden, einfligen: bis
zu] [festgelegte Wahrung und
Gesamtnennbetrag einfigen] (in  Worten:
[Gesamtnennbetrag in Worten einfligen]) in
der Stickelung von [festgelegte Wahrung und
festgelegte Stickelung einfliigen] (die
"festgelegte Stiickelung") begeben.

(2) Form. Die Schuldverschreibungen lauten auf
den Inhaber.

(3) Dauersammelurkunde. Die
Schuldverschreibungen sind durch eine
Dauersammelurkunde (die
"Dauersammelurkunde” oder die

"Sammelurkunde™) ohne Zinsscheine verbrieft;
der Zinszahlungsanspruch im Zusammenhang
mit den Schuldverschreibungen ist durch die
Dauersammelurkunde mitverbrieft. Die
Dauersammelurkunde wird von ordnungsgemar
bevolimachtigten  Vertretern der  Emittentin
unterschrieben. Die Dauersammelurkunde wird
im classical global note-Format ausgegeben.
Einzelurkunden und Zinsscheine werden nicht
ausgegeben.

(4) Clearingsystem. Die Sammelurkunde wird von
einem oder im Namen eines Clearingsystems
verwahrt, bis samtliche Verbindlichkeiten der
Emittentin aus den Schuldverschreibungen erfiillt
sind. "Clearingsystem™" bezeichnet [bei mehr als
einem Clearingsystem einfigen: jeweils]
[OeKB CSsD GmbH, Strauchgasse 1-3,
1010 Wien, Osterreich] [,] [und] [Clearstream
Banking, SA, Luxemburg, 42 Avenue
J.F. Kennedy, 1855 Luxemburg, Grof3herzogtum
Luxemburg und Euroclear Bank SA/NV,
1 Boulevard du Roi Albertll, 1210 Brussel,
Belgien [,] [und] [anderes Clearingsystem
angeben] und jeden Funktionsnachfolger. Die
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OPTION | —= TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
ORDINARY SENIOR NOTES:

§1
CURRENCY, DENOMINATION, FORM,
CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

(1) Currency, Denomination. This tranche (the
"Tranche") of ordinary senior notes (the "Notes")
of [insert identification] (the "Series") is being
issued by Oberbank AG (the "Issuer") [on [insert
issue date] (single issue)] [from [insert initial
issue date] with an open issue period (tap issue)]
in [insert specified currency] (the "Specified
Currency") in the aggregate principal amount of
[in case of Notes offered and issued as tap
issues insert: up to] [insert specified currency
and aggregate principal amount] (in words:
[insert aggregate principal amount in words])
in the denomination of [insert specified
currency and specified denomination] (the
"Specified Denomination™).

(2) Form. The Notes are being issued in bearer
form.

(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are
represented by a permanent global note (the
"Permanent Global Note" or the "Global Note")
without coupons; the claim for interest payments
under the Notes is represented by the Permanent
Global Note. The Permanent Global Note shall be
signed by authorised representatives of the
Issuer. The Permanent Global Note shall be
issued in classical global note format. Definitive
Notes and coupons will not be issued.

(4) Clearing System. The Global Note will be kept
in custody by or on behalf of a Clearing System
until all obligations of the Issuer under the Notes
have been satisfied. "Clearing System" means
[if more than one Clearing System insert: each

off [OeKB CSD GmbH, Strauchgasse 1-3,
1010 Vienna, Austria] [,] [and] [Clearstream
Banking, S.A, Luxembourg, 42 Avenue

J.F. Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg ("CBL") and Euroclear Bank SA/NV,
1 Boulevard du Roi Albertll, 1210 Brussels,
Belgium ("Euroclear" and, together with CBL, the
"ICSDs")] [,] [and] [specify other Clearing
System] and any successor in such capacity. The



Sammelurkunde wird auf die Dauer der Laufzeit
der Schuldverschreibungen beim Clearingsystem
als Wertpapiersammelbank hinterlegt.

(5) Glaubiger von Schuldverschreibungen.
"Glaubiger" bezeichnet jeden Inhaber von
Miteigentumsanteilen oder anderen

vergleichbaren Rechten an der Sammelurkunde,
die in Ubereinstimmung mit den Bestimmungen
des Clearingsystems auf einen neuen Glaubiger
Ubertragen werden kénnen.

(6) Geschéftstag. "Geschaftstag" bezeichnet
einen Kalendertag (auBer einem Samstag oder
Sonntag), an dem Geschaftsbanken und
Devisenmarkte in Linz, Osterreich, Zahlungen
abwickeln und far den allgemeinen
Geschaftsverkehr (einschlieBlich des Handels in
Devisen und Fremdwahrungseinlagen) gedffnet
sind und das Trans-European Automated Real-
time Gross Settlement Express Transfer
System2 oder dessen  Nachfolgesystem
("TARGET") geoffnet ist.

§2
STATUS

(1) Status. Die Schuldverschreibungen
begriinden direkte, nicht besicherte und nicht
nachrangige Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin, die
im Falle der Insolvenz oder Liquidation der
Emittentin untereinander und mit allen anderen
nicht besicherten und nicht nachrangigen
Instrumenten  oder  Verbindlichkeiten  der
Emittentin gleichrangig sind mit Ausnahme von
Instrumenten oder Verbindlichkeiten, die nach

geltenden Rechtsvorschriften vorrangig oder
nachrangig sind.

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen mit
einem festen Zinssatz,

Stufenzinsschuldverschreibungen,
Schuldverschreibungen mit einem variablen
Zinssatz, Schuldverschreibungen mit einem
inflationsabhéngigen Zinssatz, einfligen:

§3
ZINSEN
[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen mit
einem festen Zinssatz einfligen:
(1) Zinssatz und Zinszahlungstage. Die
Schuldverschreibungen werden auf der
Grundlage ihres ausstehenden
Gesamtnennbetrags verzinst, und zwar vom
[Verzinsungsbeginn einfigen] (der

"Verzinsungsbeginn") (einschlielich) bis zum
Falligkeitstag (wie in  85(1)  definiert)
(ausschlie3lich) mit [Zinssatz einfligen]% per
annum.]
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Global Note is kept in custody by the Clearing
System as central depository for securities
(Wertpapiersammelbank) for the period of the
Notes.

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder
of a proportionate co-ownership or other
comparable right in the Global Note which may be
transferred to a new Holder in accordance with
the provisions of the Clearing System.

(6) Business Day. "Business Day" means a
calendar day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday)
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets settle payments and are open for general
business (including dealings in foreign exchange
and foreign currency deposits) in Linz, Austria,
and the Trans-European Automated Real-time
Gross Settlement Express Transfer System 2 or
its successor ("TARGET") is open.

§2
STATUS

(1) Status. The obligations under the Notes
constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer ranking in the event of
insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer pari passu
among themselves and pari passu with all other
unsecured and unsubordinated instruments or
obligations of the Issuer except for any
instruments  or  obligations  preferred or
subordinated by law.

[In case of Notes with a fixed interest rate,
Step-up or Step-down Notes, Notes with
floating interest rate, Notes with inflation
linked interest rate, insert:

§3
INTEREST

[In case of Notes with a fixed interest rate
insert:

(1) Rate of Interest and Interest Payment Dates.
The Notes shall bear interest on their outstanding
aggregate principal amount at the rate of [insert
the rate of interest] per cent. per annum from,
and including, [insert Interest Commencement
Date] (the "Interest Commencement Date") to,
but excluding, the Maturity Date (as defined in
§5(1)).]



[Im Fall von
Stufenzinsschuldverschreibungen einfugen:

(1) Zinssatz und Zinszahlungstage. Die
Schuldverschreibungen werden auf der
Grundlage ihres ausstehenden
Gesamtnennbetrags verzinst, und zwar vom
[Verzinsungsbeginn einfligen] (der
"Verzinsungsbeginn") (einschlieRlich) bis zum

[In case of Step-up or Step-down Notes insert:

(1) Rate of Interest and Interest Payment Dates.
The Notes shall bear interest on their outstanding
aggregate principal amount from, and including,
[insert Interest Commencement Date] (the
“Interest Commencement Date") to, but
excluding, the Maturity Date (as defined in § 5 (1))

Falligkeitstag  (wie in  §5(1) definiert) as follows:
(ausschlief3lich) wie folgt:
vom bis zum mit from, and to, but at the rate of
(einschlief3li | (ausschlief3- including, excluding,
ch) lich)
[Datum [Datum [Zinssatz [insert date] | [insert date | [insert Rate
einfligen] (einschliel3- | einfligen]% (including of
lich des | per annum the Maturity | Interest] per
Falligkeits- Date and | cent. per
tags und the annum
des Extended
Erweiterten Maturity
Falligkeitst Date (if
ags (falls applicable))
anwendbar) ]
) einfligen]

]

[Im Fall einer kurzen oder langen ersten oder
letzten Zinsperiode einfugen: Mit Ausnahme

der [ersten] [Nur im Falle von
Schuldverschreibungen, deren Laufzeit nicht
verlangert werden kann, einfligen: letzten]
Zinszahlung sind die Zinsen] [Im Fall von
ausschlieBlich reguléren Zinszahlungen
einfligen: Die Zinsen sind] [im Fall von
vierteljahrlichen  Zinszahlungen einfligen:

vierteljahrlich] [im Fall von halbjahrlichen
Zinszahlungen einflgen: halbjahrlich] [im Fall
von jahrlichen Zinszahlungen einfligen:
jahrlich] nachtraglich am [Zinszahlungstage
einflgen] eines jeden Jahres zahlbar (jeweils ein
"Zinszahlungstag"), beginnend mit dem [ersten
Zinszahlungstag einfigen] und endend mit dem
[letzten  Zinszahlungstag einfigen]. Die
Zinszahlungstage unterliegen einer Anpassung in
Ubereinstimmung mit den in § 4 (3) enthaltenen
Bestimmungen.]

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen
einem variablen Zinssatz einfligen:

mit

(1) Zinssatz. Die Schuldverschreibungen werden

auf der Grundlage ihres ausstehenden
Gesamtnennbetrags verzinst, und zwar vom
[Verzinsungsbeginn einfigen] (der

"Verzinsungsbeginn") (einschlielich) bis zum
Falligkeitstag (wie in  85(1)  definiert)
(ausschlieBlich).
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]

[In case of a short or long first or last interest
period insert: With the exception of the [first]
[Insert only in case of Notes, whose term may
not be extended: last] payment of interest,
interest] [In case of Notes which have only
regular interest payments insert: Interest] shall
be payable [in case of quarterly interest
payments insert: quarterly] [in case of semi-
annual interest payments insert: semi-annually]
[in case of annual interest payments insert:
annually] in arrear on [insert Interest Payment
Dates] in each year (each such date, an "Interest
Payment Date"), commencing on [insert first
Interest Payment Date] and ending on [insert
last Interest Payment Date]. Interest Payment
Dates are subject to adjustment in accordance
with the provisions set out in § 4 (3).]

[In case of Notes with a floating interest rate
insert:

(1) Rate of Interest. The Notes shall bear interest
on their outstanding aggregate principal amount
from, and including, [insert Interest
Commencement Date] (the "Interest
Commencement Date") to, but excluding, the
Maturity Date (as defined in § 5 (1)).



[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die an
einen Referenzzinssatz gebunden sind,
einfugen:

[Falls Interpolation anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Der Zinssatz (der "Zinssatz") fur jede Zinsperiode
(wie nachstehend definiert) ist der Relevante
Referenzsatz (wie nachstehend definiert) [im Fall
einer Marge einfligen: [zuzlglich] [/] [abzlglich]
der Marge (wie nachstehend definiert)] [im Fall
eines Faktors einfliigen: [und] multipliziert mit
dem Faktor [Faktor einfiigen]].

"Relevanter Referenzsatz" bezeichnet, sofern
nachstehend nichts Abweichendes bestimmt wird,
mit Bezug auf: (i) die [maRgebliche kurze oder
lange erste oder letzte Zinsperiode einfligen]
(die "Interpolierte Zinsperiode") den durch
lineare Interpolation zwischen dem verfligbaren
Referenzzinssatz (wie nachstehend definiert) mit
der im Verhdltnis zur Laufzeit der Interpolierten
Zinsperiode néchst kirzeren Laufzeit und dem

verfligbaren Referenzzinssatz mit der im
Verhaltnis zur Interpolierten Zinsperiode néchst
langeren  Laufzeit; und (i) alle anderen
Zinsperioden den [Zahl, Laufzeit und
Bezeichnung des relevanten
Referenzzinssatzes einfligen, der auf alle
Zinsperioden anwendbar ist, auf die
Interpolation nicht anwendbar ist] (wie

nachstehend definiert) (zusammen mit den
Referenzzinsatzen far die Interpolierte
Zinsperiode die "Referenzzinssatze" und je ein
"Referenzzinssatz"), jeweils als Prozentsatz per
annum ausgedruckt.

Bei dem relevanten Referenzzinssatz handelt es
sich jeweils um den Angebotssatz fir Einlagen in
der festgelegten Wéahrung mit einer Laufzeit, die
der Laufzeit des relevanten Referenzzinssatzes
entspricht, der auf der Bildschirmseite (wie
nachstehend definiert) am Feststellungstag (wie
nachstehend  definiert) gegen [relevante
Tageszeit einfligen] Uhr ([relevantes
Finanzzentrum einfiigen] Ortszeit) angezeigt
wird, wobei alle Festlegungen durch die
Berechnungsstelle (wie in §6 (1) angegeben)
erfolgen.]

[Falls Interpolation nicht anwendbar ist,
einfligen: Der Zinssatz (der "Zinssatz") fur jede
Zinsperiode (wie nachstehend definiert) ist der
Referenzzinssatz (wie nachstehend definiert), [im
Fall einer Marge einfugen: [zuzlglich] [/]
[abzuglich] der Marge (wie nachstehend
definiert)] [im Fall eines Faktors einflgen: [und]
multipliziert mit dem Faktor [Faktor einfigen]].

"Referenzzinssatz" bezeichnet, sofern
nachstehend nichts Abweichendes bestimmt wird,
den [Zahl, Laufzeit und Bezeichnung des
relevanten Referenzzinssatz einfligen] (wie
nachstehend definiert), ausgedruckt als
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[In case of Notes linked to a Reference

Interest Rate, insert:

[In case interpolation applies, insert: The rate
of interest (the "Rate of Interest”) for each
Interest Period (as defined below) shall be the
Relevant Reference Rate (as defined below) [in
case of a Margin insert: [plus] [/] [minus] the
Margin (as defined below)] [in case of a Factor
insert: [and] multiplied by the factor [insert
Factor]].

"Relevant Reference Rate" means, except as
provided below, in respect of: (i) the [insert
relevant short or long first or last interest
period] (the "Interpolated Interest Period") the
rate determined by straight-line interpolation
between the available Reference Interest Rate
(as defined below) with the next shorter term than
the term of the Interpolated Interest Period and
the available Reference Interest Rate with the
next longer term than the term of the Interpolated
Interest Period; and (ii) all other Interest Periods
the [insert number, term and name of the
relevant Reference Interest Rate which shall
apply to all Interest Periods to which
interpolation shall not apply] (as defined below)
(together with the reference interest rates for the
Interpolated Interest Period the "Reference
Interest Rates" and each a "Reference Interest
Rate"), in each case expressed as a percentage
rate per annum.

The relevant Reference Interest Rate shall be in
each case the offered rate for deposits in the
Specified Currency with a term, which
corresponds with the term of the relevant
Reference Interest Rate, which appears on the
Screen Page (as defined below) as of [insert
relevant time] ([insert relevant financial
centre] time) on the Determination Day (as
defined below), all as determined by the
Calculation Agent (as specified in § 6 (1).]

[In case interpolation does not apply, insert:
The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for
each Interest Period (as defined below) shall be
the Reference Interest Rate (as defined below),
[in case of a Margin insert: [plus] [/] [minus] the
Margin (as defined below)] [in case of a Factor
insert: [and] multiplied by the factor [insert
Factor]].

"Reference Interest Rate" means, except as
provided below, the [insert number, term and
name of the relevant Reference Interest Rate]
(as defined below), expressed as a percentage
rate per annum.



Prozentsatz per annum.

Bei dem [Zahl, Laufzeit und Bezeichnung des
relevanten Referenzzinssatz einfigen] handelt
es sich um den Angebotssatz fiir Einlagen in der
festgelegten Wahrung mit einer Laufzeit, die der
Laufzeit des Referenzzinssatzes entspricht, der
auf der Bildschirmseite (wie nachstehend
definiert) am Feststellungstag (wie nachstehend
definiert) gegen [relevante Tageszeit einfligen]
Uhr ([relevantes Finanzzentrum einfligen]
Ortszeit) angezeigt wird, wobei alle Festlegungen
durch die Berechnungsstelle (wie in 86 (1)
angegeben) erfolgen.]

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die eine
Marge haben, die sich nicht andert, einfigen:
Die "Marge" betragt [Satz einfugen]% per
annum.]

[im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die eine
Marge haben, die sich &ndert, einfligen: Die
"Marge" betragt fur die Zinsperiode[n]

The [insert number, term and name of the
relevant Reference Interest Rate] shall be the
offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency
with a term, which corresponds with the term of
the Reference Interest Rate, which appears on
the Screen Page (as defined below) as of [insert
relevant time] ([insert relevant financial
centre] time) on the Determination Day (as
defined below), all as determined by the
Calculation Agent (as specified in 8§ 6 (1)).]

[In case of Notes which have a margin which
does not change, insert: "Margin" means
[insert rate] per cent. per annum.]

[in case of Notes which have a margin which
changes, insert: "Margin" means in respect of
the Interest Period[s]

vom bis zum from, to,
(einschlief3lic | (ausschlieR3- and but
h) lich) including, excluding,
[Datum [Datum [zuzlglich] [insert date] [insert [plus] [/]
einfligen] einfligen] [1] date] [minus]
[abzuglich] linsert
[Marge Margin] per
einfigen]% cent. per
per annum annum

]

"Zinsperiode" bezeichnet den Zeitraum von dem
Verzinsungsbeginn  (einschlief3lich) bis zum
ersten Zinszahlungstag (ausschlie3lich) bzw von
jedem Zinszahlungstag (einschlielich) bis zum
jeweils darauf folgenden Zinszahlungstag
(ausschlieRlich).

"Feststellungstag"” bezeichnet den [ersten]
[zweiten] [andere relevante Zahl von
Geschéftstagen einfiigen] Geschéftstag [vor
[Beginn] [Ende]] der jeweiligen Zinsperiode.

"Bildschirmseite" bedeutet [relevante
Bildschirmseite einflgen] oder die
Nachfolgeseite, die von dem gleichen

Informationsanbieter oder von einem anderen
Informationsanbieter, der von der
Berechnungsstelle als Ersatzinformationsanbieter

fur die Anzeige des [falls Interpolation
anwendbar ist, einfigen: relevanten]
Referenzzinssatzes benannt wird, angezeigt wird.
Sollte die Bildschirmseite nicht mehr zur
Verfligung stehen, oder wird der [falls
Interpolation  anwendbar ist, einfligen:

relevante] Referenzzinssatz zu der genannten
Zeit am relevanten Feststellungstag nicht auf der
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]

“Interest Period" means each period from, and
including, the Interest Commencement Date to,
but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date and
from, and including, each Interest Payment Date
to, but excluding, the following Interest Payment
Date.

"Determination Day" means the [first] [second]
[insert other relevant number of Business
Days] Business Day [prior to  the
[commencement] [end]] of the relevant Interest
Period.

"Screen Page" means [insert relevant Screen
Page] or the successor page displayed by the
same information provider or any other
information provider nominated by the Calculation
Agent as the replacement information provider for
the purposes of displaying the [in case
interpolation applies, insert: relevant]
Reference Interest Rate.

If the Screen Page is unavailable or if the [in
case interpolation applies, insert: relevant]
Reference Interest Rate does not appear on the
Screen Page as at such time on the relevant
Determination Day, the Calculation Agent shall



Bildschirmseite angezeigt, wird die
Berechnungsstelle von jeder der Referenzbanken
(wie nachstehend definiert) deren jeweiligen Satz
(jeweils als Prozentsatz per annum ausgedriickt)
anfordern, zu dem sie Einlagen in der
festgelegten Wahrung mit einer Laufzeit, die der
Laufzeit des [falls Interpolation anwendbar ist,

einflgen: relevanten] Referenzzinssatzes
entspricht;, um ca [relevante Tageszeit
einfigen] Uhr ([relevantes Finanzzentrum
einfligen] Ortszeit) am Feststellungstag
anbieten.

Falls zwei oder mehr Referenzbanken der

Berechnungsstelle solche Satze nennen, gilt als
[falls Interpolation anwendbar ist, einfligen:
relevanter] Referenzzinssatz fur die relevante

Zinsperiode das arithmetische Mittel (falls
erforderlich, auf- oder abgerundet auf das
nachste [falls der Referenzzinssatz EURIBOR
ist, einfligen: Tausendstel Prozent, wobei
0,0005 aufgerundet wird] [falls der
Referenzzinssatz nicht EURIBOR ist,
einfligen: Hunderttausendstel Prozent, wobei

0,000005 aufgerundet wird]) dieser Satze, wobei
alle Festlegungen durch die Berechnungsstelle
erfolgen.

Fur den Fall, dass der [falls Interpolation
anwendbar ist, einflgen: relevante]
Referenzzinssatz nicht gemalf den vorstehenden
Bestimmungen dieses Absatzes ermittelt werden
kann, gilt als [falls Interpolation anwendbar ist,

einfligen: relevante] Referenzzinssatz fur die
relevante Zinsperiode der von der
Berechnungsstelle  gemaR  ihrem billigen

Ermessen bestimmte Satz; bei der Bestimmung
dieses Satzes richtet sich die Berechnungsstelle
nach der Ublichen Marktpraxis.

"Referenzbanken"” bezeichnet [relevante Zahl

einfugen] GroRRbanken im [falls der
Referenzzinssatz nicht der EURIBOR Ist
einflgen: [relevantes Finanzzentrum
einfligen]] Interbankenmarkt [falls der

Referenzzinssatz EURIBOR ist, einfiigen: der
Euro-Zone oder im Londoner Interbankenmarkt].

[Falls der Referenzzinssatz EURIBOR ist,
einfigen: "Euro-Zone" bezeichnet das Gebiet
derjenigen Mitgliedstaaten der Europaischen
Union, die gemal dem Vertrag udber die
Grindung der Europédischen Gemeinschaft
(unterzeichnet in Rom am 25. Méarz 1957),
geandert durch den Vertrag tber die Europaische
Union (unterzeichnet in Maastricht am 7. Februar
1992), den Amsterdamer Vertrag vom 2. Oktober
1997 und den Vertrag von Lissabon vom
13. Dezember 2007, in seiner jeweiligen
Fassung, die einheitliche Wé&hrung eingefuhrt
haben oder jeweils eingefuhrt haben werden.]]
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request each of the Reference Banks (as defined
below) to provide the Calculation Agent with its
rate (expressed as a percentage rate per annum)
at which it offers deposits in the Specified
Currency with a term, which corresponds with the
term of the [in case interpolation applies,

insert: relevant] Reference Interest Rate, at
approximately [insert relevant time] ([insert
relevant financial centre] time) on the

Determination Day.

If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with such rates, the [in case
interpolation applies, insert: relevant]
Reference Interest Rate for such Interest Period
shall be deemed to be the arithmetic mean
(rounded if necessary to the nearest [if the
Reference Interest Rate is EURIBOR insert:
one thousandth of a percentage point, with
0.0005 being rounded upwards] [if the
Reference Interest Rate is not EURIBOR
insert: one hundred-thousandth of a percentage
point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards]) of
such rates, all as determined by the Calculation
Agent.

If the [in case interpolation applies, insert:
relevant] Reference Interest Rate cannot be
determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this paragraph, the [in case
interpolation applies, insert: relevant]
Reference Interest Rate for the relevant Interest
Period shall be deemed to be the rate determined
by the Calculation Agent in its reasonable
discretion; the Calculation Agent shall take
general market practice into account when
determining such rate.

"Reference Banks" means [insert relevant
number] major banks in the [if the Reference
Interest Rate is not EURIBOR insert: [insert
relevant financial centre]] interbank market [if
the Reference Interest Rate is EURIBOR
insert: of the Euro-zone or in the London
interbank market].

[If the Reference Interest Rate is EURIBOR
insert: "Euro-zone" means the region comprised
of those member states of the European Union
that have adopted, or will have adopted from time
to time, the single currency in accordance with the
Treaty establishing the European Community
(signed in Rome on 25 March 1957), as amended
by the Treaty on European Union (signed in
Maastricht on 7 February 1992), the Amsterdam
Treaty of 2 October 1997 and the Treaty of Lisbon
of 13 December 2007, as further amended from
time to time.]]



far
einen

[Ende der Bestimmungen
Schuldverschreibungen, die an
Referenzzinssatz gebunden sind]

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die an
einen Referenzsatz gebunden sind, einfigen:

Der Zinssatz (der "Zinssatz") fur jede Zinsperiode
(wie nachstehend definiert) ist [Zahl, Laufzeit
und Bezeichnung des relevanten
Referenzsatzes einfligen] per annum (der
"Referenzsatz") [im Fall einer Marge einfligen:
[zuzlglich] [/] [abzlglich] der Marge (wie
nachstehend definiert)] [falls ein Faktor
anwendbar ist, einfigen: [und] multipliziert mit
dem Faktor [Faktor einfligen]]. Bei dem
Referenzsatz handelt es sich um den Swap-Satz
(ausgedrickt als Prozentsatz per annum) fur
Swap-Transaktionen in der festgelegten Wéhrung
mit einer Laufzeit von [relevanten Zeitraum
einfiigen], der auf der Bildschirmseite (wie
nachstehend definiert) am Feststellungstag (wie
nachstehend  definiert) gegen [relevante
Tageszeit einfligen] Uhr ([relevantes
Finanzzentrum einfigen] Ortszeit) angezeigt
wird, wobei alle Festlegungen durch die
Berechnungsstelle (wie in § 6 (1) angegeben)
erfolgen.

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die eine
Marge haben, die sich nicht andert, einfigen:
Die "Marge" betragt [Satz einfligen]% per
annum.]

[im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen, die eine

Marge haben, die sich andert, einfligen: Die
"Marge" betragt fur die Zinsperiode[n]

[End of provisions for Notes linked to a
Reference Interest Rate]

[In case of Notes linked to a Reference Rate
insert:

The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for
each Interest Period (as defined below) shall be
[insert number, term and name of relevant
Reference Rate] per annum (the "Reference
Rate") [in case of a Margin insert: [plus] [/]
[minus] the Margin (as defined below)] [in case a
Factor shall be applicable, insert: [and]
multiplied by the factor [insert Factor]]. Such
Reference Rate shall be the swap rate
(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for
swap transactions in the Specified Currency with
a term of [insert relevant term] which appears
on the Screen Page (as defined below) as of
[insert relevant time] ([insert relevant financial
centre] time) on the Determination Day (as
defined below), all as determined by the
Calculation Agent (as specified in § 6 (1)).

[In case of Notes which have a margin which
does not change, insert: "Margin" means
[insert rate] per cent. per annum.]

[in case of Notes which have a margin which
changes, insert: "Margin" means in respect of
the Interest Period[s]

]

"Zinsperiode" bezeichnet den Zeitraum von dem
Verzinsungsbeginn  (einschlieBlich) bis zum
ersten Zinszahlungstag (ausschlie3lich) bzw von
jedem Zinszahlungstag (einschlieRlich) bis zum
jeweils darauf folgenden Zinszahlungstag
(ausschlieRlich).

"Feststellungstag" bezeichnet den [ersten]
[zweiten] [andere relevante Zahl von
Geschéftstagen einfliigen] Geschéftstag (wie in

81 (6) definiert) [vor [Beginn] [Ende]] der
jeweiligen Zinsperiode.
"Bildschirmseite" bedeutet [relevante

vom bis zum from, to,
(einschlie3- | (ausschliel3- and but
lich) lich) including, excluding,
[Datum [Datum [zuzlglich] [insert date] [insert [plus] [
einfugen] einfugen] N date] .
[abziiglich] [minus]
insert
[Marge [ )
einfiigen]% Margin] per
per annum ann.uF;n
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]

"Interest Period" means each period from, and
including, the Interest Commencement Date to,
but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date and
from, and including, each Interest Payment Date
to, but excluding, the following Interest Payment
Date.

"Determination Day" means the [first] [second]
[insert other relevant number of Business
Days] Business Day (as defined in § 1 (6)) [prior
to the [commencement] [end]] of the relevant
Interest Period.

"Screen Page" means [insert relevant Screen



Bildschirmseite einfigen] oder die
Nachfolgeseite, die von dem gleichen
Informationsanbieter oder von einem anderen
Informationsanbieter, der von der
Berechnungsstelle als Ersatzinformationsanbieter
fur die Anzeige des Referenzsatzes benannt wird,
angezeigt wird.

Sollte die Bildschirmseite nicht mehr zur
Verfligung stehen, oder wird der Referenzsatz zu
der genannten Zeit am relevanten
Feststellungstag nicht auf der Bildschirmseite
angezeigt, wird die Berechnungsstelle von jeder
der Referenzbanken (wie nachstehend definiert)
deren jeweiligen Marktmittelkurs fir den
Swapsatz (jeweils als Prozentsatz per annum

ausgedriickt), um ca [relevante Tageszeit
einfugen] Uhr ([relevantes Finanzzentrum
einfligen] Ortszeit) am Feststellungstag

anfordern. "Marktmittelkurs fir den Swapsatz"
bezeichnet das Mittel der Geld- und Briefkurse flr
den festverzinslichen Teil einer
Zinsswaptransaktion in der festgelegten
Wahrung, bei der ein fester Zinssatz gegen einen
variablen Zinssatz getauscht wird, wobei der
variabel verzinsliche Teil dem [Zahl, Laufzeit
und Bezeichnung des relevanten
Referenzsatzes einfligen] per annum entspricht,
der auf [relevante Bildschirmseite einfluigen]
(oder der Nachfolgeseite, die von dem gleichen
Informationsanbieter oder von einem anderen
Informationsanbieter, der von der
Berechnungsstelle als Ersatzinformationsanbieter
fur die Anzeige des [Zahl, Laufzeit und
Bezeichnung des relevanten
Referenzzinssatzes einfligen] benannt wird),
angezeigt wird.

Falls drei oder mehr Referenzbanken der
Berechnungsstelle solche Satze nennen, gilt als
Referenzsatz fir die relevante Zinsperiode das
arithmetische Mittel (falls erforderlich, auf- oder
abgerundet auf das nachste Hunderttausendstel
Prozent, wobei 0,000005 aufgerundet wird) dieser
Satze, wobei der hdchste Satz (oder, falls es
mehrere gleich hohe Hochstsatze geben sollte,
einer dieser Hochstsatze) und der niedrigste Satz
(oder, falls es mehrere gleich niedrige
Niedrigstsdtze geben sollte, einer dieser
Niedrigstsatze) unbertcksichtigt bleiben, wobei
alle Festlegungen durch die Berechnungsstelle
erfolgen.

Fur den Fall, dass der Referenzsatz nicht gemafn
den vorstehenden  Bestimmungen dieses
Absatzes ermittelt werden kann, gilt als
Referenzsatz fir die relevante Zinsperiode der
von der Berechnungsstelle gemaR ihrem billigen
Ermessen bestimmte Satz; bei der Bestimmung
dieses Satzes richtet sich die Berechnungsstelle
nach der Uiblichen Marktpraxis.]
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Page] or the successor page displayed by the
same information provider or any other
information provider nominated by the Calculation
Agent as the replacement information provider for
the purposes of displaying the Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is unavailable or if the
Reference Rate does not appear on the Screen
Page as at such time on the relevant
Determination Day, the Calculation Agent shall
request each of the Reference Banks (as defined
below) to provide the Calculation Agent with its
mid-market swap rate (expressed as a
percentage rate per annum) at approximately
[insert relevant time] ([insert relevant financial
centre] time) on the Determination Day. "Mid-
market swap rate" means the mean of the bid
and offered rates for the fixed leg of a fixed-for-
floating rate swap transaction in the Specified
Currency where the floating leg is equivalent to
[insert number, term and relevant Reference
Rate] per annum, which appears on [insert
relevant screen page] (or the successor page
displayed by the same information provider or any
other information provider nominated by the
Calculation Agent as the replacement information
provider for the purposes of displaying the [insert
number, term and relevant Reference Interest
Rate]).

If three or more of the Reference Banks provide
the Calculation Agent with such rates, the
Reference Rate for the relevant Interest Period
shall be deemed to be the arithmetic mean
(rounded if necessary to the nearest one
hundred-thousandth of a percentage point, with
0.000005 being rounded upwards) of such rates
eliminating the highest rate (or, in the event of
equality, one of the highest) and the lowest rate
(or, in the event of equality, one of the lowest), all
as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If the Reference Rate cannot be determined in
accordance with the foregoing provisions of this
paragraph, the Reference Rate for the relevant
Interest Period shall be deemed to be the rate
determined by the Calculation Agent in its
reasonable discretion; the Calculation Agent shall
take general market practice into account when
determining such rate.]



"Referenzbanken" bezeichnet [relevante Zahl

einfugen] GroRbanken im [falls der
Referenzsatz kein Euro-Swapsatz ist,
relevantes Finanzzentrum einflgen]

Interbankenmarkt [falls der Referenzsatz ein
Euro-Swapsatz ist, einfigen: der Euro-Zone
oder im Londoner Interbankenmarkt].

[Falls der Referenzsatz ein Euro-Swapsatz ist,
einfigen: "Euro-Zone" bezeichnet das Gebiet

derjenigen Mitgliedstaaten der Europdaischen
Union, die gemdalR dem Vertrag uber die
Grindung der Europaischen Gemeinschaft

(unterzeichnet in Rom am 25. Marz 1957),
geandert durch den Vertrag Uber die Europaische
Union (unterzeichnet in Maastricht am 7. Februar
1992), den Amsterdamer Vertrag vom 2. Oktober
1997 und den Vertrag von Lissabon vom
13. Dezember 2007, in seiner jeweiligen
Fassung, die einheitliche Wé&hrung eingefuhrt
haben oder jeweils eingefiihrt haben werden.]

[Ende der Bestimmungen far
Schuldverschreibungen, die an einen
Referenzsatz gebunden sind]

[Im Fall von Schuldverschreibungen mit
einem inflationsabhangigen Zinssatz
einfugen:

(1) Zinssatz. Die Schuldverschreibungen werden
auf der Grundlage ihres ausstehenden
Gesamtnennbetrags verzinst, und zwar vom
[Verzinsungsbeginn einfligen] (der

"Verzinsungsbeginn") (einschliel3lich) bis zum
Falligkeitstag  (wie in  §5(1) definiert)
(ausschlieRlich).

Der Zinssatz (der "Zinssatz") fur jede Zinsperiode
(wie nachstehend definiert) wird als Zinssatz in
Prozent per annum ("lan(t)") ausgedriickt und von
der Berechnungsstelle gemaf folgender Formel
bestimmt:

lan(t) = [ Min{ ] [ Max{ ] ((HVPI(t) — HVPI(t-1)) /
HVPI(t-1)) [*100] [* Faktor] [+] [-] [Zuschlag]
[Abschlag] [; Wert } ] [+] [-] [Marge]

"HVPI(t)" bezeichnet den Stand des HVPI, wie er
in Bezug auf [Bezugszeitraum (t) einfligen]
veroffentlicht wird.

"HVPI(t-1)" bezeichnet den Stand des HVPI, der
in Bezug auf [Bezugszeitraum (t-1) einflgen]
veroffentlicht wird.

["Abschlag" bedeutet eine definierte [Zahl]
[Anzahl von Prozentpunkten] und wurde mit
[H6he des Abschlags einfiigen] festgelegt.]

["Zuschlag" bedeutet eine definierte [Zahl]
[Anzahl von Prozentpunkten] und wurde mit
[Hohe des Zuschlags einfluigen] festgelegt.]

["Wert" bedeutet eine definierte [Zahl] [Anzahl
von Prozentpunkten], die fur einen Zinssatz steht,
und wurde mit [Héhe des Wertes einfligen]
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"Reference Banks" means [insert relevant
number] major banks in the [if the Reference
Rate is not a Euro swap rate, insert relevant
financial centre] interbank market [if the
Reference Rate is a Euro swap rate, insert: of
the Euro-zone or in the London interbank market].

[If the Reference Rate is a Euro swap rate,
insert: "Euro-zone" means the region comprised
of those member states of the European Union
that have adopted, or will have adopted from time
to time, the single currency in accordance with the
Treaty establishing the European Community
(signed in Rome on 25 March 1957), as amended
by the Treaty on European Union (signed in
Maastricht on 7 February 1992), the Amsterdam
Treaty of 2 October 1997 and the Treaty of Lisbon
of 13 December 2007, as further amended from
time to time.]

[End of provisions for Notes linked to a

Reference Rate]

[In case of Notes with a inflation linked

interest rate insert:

(1) Rate of Interest. The Notes shall bear interest
on their outstanding aggregate principal amount
from, and including, [insert Interest
Commencement Date] (the "Interest
Commencement Date") to, but excluding, the
Maturity Date (as defined in § 5 (1)).

The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for
each Interest Period shall be expressed as a rate
in per cent per annum ("lan(t)") and calculated by
the Calculation Agent in accordance with the
following formula:

lan(t) = [ Min{ ] [ Max{ ] (HICP(t) — HICP(t-1)) /
HICP(t-1) [*100] [* Factor] [+] [-] [Surcharge]
[Reduction] [;Value } ] [+] [-] [Margin]

"HICP()" means the level of the HICP that is
published by reference to the [insert reference
period(t)].

"HICP(t-1)" means the level of the HICP that is
published by reference to the [insert reference
period(t-1)].

['Reduction" means a defined [number] [number
of percentage points] and has been determined
as [Insert amount of reduction].]

["Surcharge" means a defined [number] [number
of percentage points] and has been determined
as [Insert amount of surcharge].]

["Value" means a defined [number] [number of
percentage points] which stands for a percentage
rate, and has been determined as [Insert amount



festgelegt.]

['Faktor" bedeutet eine definierte  Zahl
(Multiplikator des Inflationszinssatzes) und wurde
mit [Hohe des Faktors einfiigen] festgelegt.]

['Marge" bedeutet eine definierte [Zahl] [Anzahl
von Prozentpunkten] und wurde mit [Hohe der
Marge einfligen] festgelegt.]

"HVPI" oder "Index" st der unrevidierte
Harmonisierte  Verbraucherpreisindex  (ohne
Tabak) fur die Euro-Zone (wie nachstehend
definiert), der monatlich vom Statistischen Amt
der Europaischen Gemeinschaft (nachfolgend
"EUROSTAT" oder "Indexsponsor" genannt)
berechnet wird, und welcher auf der
Bildschirmseite ~am  Feststellungstag  (wie
nachstehend definiert) veréffentlicht wird.

"Bildschirmseite" bedeutet
Bildschirmseite einfligen] oder die
Nachfolgeseite, die von dem gleichen
Informationsanbieter oder von einem anderen
Informationsanbieter, der von der
Berechnungsstelle als Ersatzinformationsanbieter
fur die Anzeige des Index benannt wird,

angezeigt wird.

[relevante

Falls die Bildschirmseite nicht langer existiert und
keine offizielle Nachfolgeseite bekannt gegeben
wird, wird die Berechnungsstelle eine alternative
Referenz fir den Index festlegen.

Im Fall einer Anderung eines veréffentlichten
Indexstandes, der nach mehr als 24 Stunden
nach der ersten Veroffentlichung erfolgt, soll in
jedem  Fall der zunadchst  urspringlich
veroffentlichte  Indexstand zur Berechnung
malfigeblich sein.

Wird der Index nicht mehr vom Indexsponsor,
sondern von einer anderen Person, Gesellschaft
oder Institution, die die Berechnungsstelle fir
geeignet halt (der "Nachfolgesponsor")
berechnet und verdffentlicht, so wird der
anwendbare Zinssatz auf der Grundlage des vom
Nachfolgesponsor berechneten und
veroffentlichten Index berechnet. Jede hier
enthaltene Bezugnahme auf den Indexsponsor
gilt, sofern es der Zusammenhang erlaubt, als
Bezugnahme auf den Nachfolgesponsor.

Wird der Index zu irgendeiner Zeit aufgehoben
und/oder durch einen anderen Index ersetzt, legt
die Berechnungsstelle nach billigem Ermessen
fest, welcher Index kinftig fur die Berechnung
des anwendbaren Zinssatzes zugrunde zu legen
ist (der "Nachfolgeindex"). Der Nachfolgeindex
sowie der Zeitpunkt seiner erstmaligen
Anwendung werden so bald wie mdglich jedoch
keinesfalls spater als am Zinsenfestlegungstag
bekannt gemacht. Jede hier enthaltene
Bezugnahme auf den Index gilt, sofern es der
Zusammenhang erlaubt, als Bezugnahme auf
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of value].]

['"Factor" means a defined number (a multiplier of
the Inflation Rate) and has been determined as
[Insert amount of factor].]

['Margin" means a defined [number] [number of
percentage points] and has been determined as
[Insert amount of factor].]

"HICP" or "Index" is the unrevised Harmonised
Index of Consumer Prices (excluding Tobacco)
for the Euro-Zone (as defined below), which is
calculated on a monthly basis by the statistical
office of the European Union (the "EUROSTAT"
or the "Index Sponsor") and published on the
Screen Page on the Determination Day (as
defined below).

"Screen Page" means [insert relevant Screen
Page] or the successor page displayed by the
same information provider or any other
information provider nominated by the Calculation
Agent as the replacement information provider for
the purposes of displaying the Index.

If the Screen Page ceases to exist and no official
successor page is announced, the Calculation
Agent will determine other reference with respect
to the Index.

In case of any amendment of the published index
level 24 hours after the first publication, the index
level published first shall, in any case, be
applicable to the calculation.

If the Index is not calculated and published by the
Index Sponsor any more but by another person,
corporation or institution, which the Calculation
Agent considers suitable (the "Successor
Sponsor"), the applicable Rate of Interest shall
be calculated on the basis of the Index calculated
and published by the Successor Sponsor. Any
reference to Index Sponsor contained herein,
shall, in this context, be deemed to refer to the
Successor Sponsor.

If at any time the Index is cancelled and/or
replaced by any other index, the Calculation
Agent shall, at its reasonable discretion,
determine the Index which the following
calculation of the applicable Rate of Interest will
be based on (the "Successor Index"). The
Successor Index and the time of its first
application will be announced as soon as possible
but not later than on the Determination Date. Any
reference to the Index contained herein, shall, in
this context, be deemed to refer to the Successor
Index.



den Nachfolgeindex.

Ist nach Ansicht der Berechnungsstelle: (i) die
Festlegung eines Nachfolgeindex aus welchen

Grinden auch immer nicht maoglich; oder
(i) nimmt der Indexsponsor eine wesentliche
Veranderung hinsichtlich der

Berechnungsmethode zur Bestimmung des Index
vor oder verandert der Indexsponsor den Index
auf irgendeine andere Weise wesentlich, wird die
Berechnungsstelle die Weiterrechnung und
Veroffentlichung  des  Indexstandes  unter
Berucksichtigung des Grundsatzes von Treu und
Glauben und in wirtschaftlich verninftiger Art und
Weise durchfihren.

"Euro Zone" bezeichnet das Gebiet derjenigen
Mitgliedstaaten der Europaischen Union, die
gemall dem Vertrag Uber die Grindung der
Europédischen Gemeinschaft (unterzeichnet in
Rom am 25. Marz 1957), geéndert durch den
Vertrag uber  die Européische Union
(unterzeichnet in Maastricht am 7. Februar 1992)
und dem Amsterdamer Vertrag vom 2. Oktober
1997, in seiner jeweiligen Fassung, eine
einheitliche Wahrung eingefihrt haben oder
jeweils eingefuhrt haben werden.

"Zinsperiode" bezeichnet den Zeitraum von dem
Verzinsungsbeginn  (einschlieB3lich) bis zum
ersten Zinszahlungstag (ausschlie3lich) bzw von
jedem Zinszahlungstag (einschlie3lich) bis zum
jeweils darauf folgenden Zinszahlungstag
(ausschlieRlich).

"Feststellungstag"” bezeichnet den [ersten]
[zweiten] [andere relevante Zahl von
Geschaéftstagen einfiigen] Geschéftstag (wie in
§1(6) definiert) [vor [Beginn] [Ende]] der
jeweiligen Zinsperiode.]

[Ende der Bestimmungen
Schuldverschreibungen mit
inflationsabhangigen Zinssatz]

[Falls  bei  Schuldverschreibungen  mit
variablem Zinssatz ein Mindest- und/oder ein
Hochstzinssatz gilt, einfigen:

(2) [Mindest-] [und] [Ho6chst-] [und] [Memory-]
Zinssatz.

far
einem

[Falls ein Mindestzinssatz gilt, einfigen: Wenn
der gemal den obigen Bestimmungen fiir eine
Zinsperiode ermittelte Zinssatz niedriger ist als
[Mindestzinssatz einfligen]% per annum, so ist
der Zinssatz far diese Zinsperiode
[Mindestzinssatz einfligen]% per annum. (der
"Mindestzinssatz")] [falls die
Schuldverschreibung eine Memory Floater-
Zinsstruktur aufweist, einfigen: Wenn der
gemall den obigen Bestimmungen fiir eine
Zinsperiode (die "malgebliche Zinsperiode")
ermittelte Zinssatz niedriger ist als der Zinssatz
der unmittelbar vorhergehenden Zinsperiode, so
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If according to the Calculation Agent’s opinion:
(i) the determination of the Successor Index is, for
whatever reason, not possible; or (ii) the Index
Sponsor significantly changes the method of
calculating the Index or the Index Sponsor
significantly changes the Index in any other way,
the Calculation Agent shall make further
calculations and publications of the index level
acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner.

"Euro-Zone" means the area of the member
states of the European Union which have adopted
or will adopt a single currency pursuant to the
Treaty establishing the European Community
(signed on 25 March 1957 in Rome), as amended
by the Treaty on the European Union (signed in
Maastricht on 7 February 1992) and pursuant to
the Amsterdam Treaty of 2 October 1997, as
amended from time to time.

“Interest Period" means each period from, and
including, the Interest Commencement Date to,
but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date and
from, and including, each Interest Payment Date
to, but excluding, the following Interest Payment
Date.

"Determination Day" means the [first] [second]
[insert other relevant number of Business
Days] Business Day (as defined in § 1 (6)) [prior
to the [commencement] [end]] of the relevant
Interest Period.]

[End of provisions for Notes with a inflation
linked interest rate]

[If in case of Notes with a floating interest rate,
a Minimum and/or Maximum Rate of Interest
applies, insert:

(2) [Minimum] [and] [Maximum] [and] [Memory]
Rate of Interest.

[If Minimum Rate of Interest applies, insert: If
the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above
provisions is less than [insert Minimum Rate of
Interest] per cent. per annum, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be [insert
Minimum Rate of Interest] per cent. per annum
(the "Minimum Rate of Interest").] [in case the
Notes have a Memory Floater interest
structure, insert: If the Rate of Interest in respect
of any Interest Period (the "relevant Interest
Period") determined in accordance with the
above provisions is less than the Rate of Interest



ist der Zinssatz fir die maRgebliche Zinsperiode
der Zinssatz der unmittelbar vorhergehenden
Zinsperiode ("Memory Floater").]

[Falls mehrere Mindestzinssatze gelten,
einfigen: Wenn der gemalR den obigen
Bestimmungen fur eine Zinsperiode ermittelte
Zinssatz niedriger ist als der fir die maR3gebliche
Zinsperiode in nachstehender Tabelle angefiihrte
Mindestzinssatz (der "Mindestzinssatz") in % per
annum, so ist der Zinssatz fir diese Zinsperiode
dieser Mindestzinssatz.

of the immediately preceding Interest Period, the
Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period
shall be the Rate of Interest of the immediately
preceding Interest Period ("Memory Floater").]

[If more than one Minimum Rate of Interest
applies, insert: If the Rate of Interest in respect
of any Interest Period determined in accordance
with the above provisions is less than the
minimum rate of interest as indicated in the below
table inper cent. per annum, (the "Minimum
Rate of Interest"”) the Rate of Interest for such
Interest Period shall be the Minimum Rate of
Interest.

[Falls ein Hochstzinssatz gilt, einfigen: Wenn
der gemal den obigen Bestimmungen fir eine
Zinsperiode ermittelte Zinssatz hoher ist als
[Hochstzinssatz einfligen]% per annum, so ist
der Zinssatz far diese Zinsperiode
[Hochstzinssatz einfiigen]% per annum.]]

[Bei allen Schuldverschreibungen aufl3er
Nullkupon Schuldverschreibungen, einfugen:

([2/3]) Zinszahlungstage.

Zinsen auf die Schuldverschreibungen sind im
Nachhinein an jedem Zinszahlungstag zahlbar.
"Zinszahlungstag" bedeutet jeder [festgelegte
Zinszahlungstage einfligen], beginnend mit
dem [ersten Zinszahlungstag einfiigen].

Zinszahlungstage unterliegen einer Anpassung in
Ubereinstimmung mit den in § 4 (3) enthaltenen
Bestimmungen.

([3/4]) Verzugszinsen. Der Zinslauf der
Schuldverschreibungen endet mit Ablauf des
Kalendertages, der dem Kalendertag vorangeht,
an dem die Schuldverschreibungen zur
Ruckzahlung féllig werden. Falls die Emittentin
die Schuldverschreibungen bei Falligkeit nicht
einlost, wird der ausstehende Gesamtnennbetrag
der Schuldverschreibungen vom Kalendertag der
Falligkeit (einschlie3lich) bis zum Kalendertag der

vom bis zum Mindest- from, and to, but Minimum
(einschlief3li | (ausschliel3- zinssatz including, excluding, Rate of
ch) lich)
[Datum [Datum [Mindest- [insert date] | [insert date | [insert
einfligen] (einschliel3- | zinssatz (including Minimum
lich des | einfligen]% the Maturity | Rate of
Falligkeits- | per annum Date and | Interest] per
tags und the cent. per
des Extended annum
Erweiterten Maturity
Falligkeits- Date (if
tags (falls applicable))
anwendbar) |
) einfligen]
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[If Maximum Rate of Interest applies insert: If
the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above
provisions is greater than [insert Maximum Rate
of Interest] per cent. per annum, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be [insert
Maximum Rate of Interest] per cent. per
annum.]]

[Insert for all Notes other than Zero Coupon
Notes:

([2/3]) Interest Payment Dates.

Interest on the Notes shall be payable in arrear on
each Interest Payment Date. "Interest Payment
Date" means each [insert specified Interest
Payment Dates], commencing on [insert first
Interest Payment Date].

Interest Payment Dates are subject to adjustment
in accordance with the provisions set out in
§4 (3).

([3/4]) Default Interest. The Notes shall cease to
bear interest from the expiry of the calendar day
preceding the due date for redemption. If the
Issuer fails to redeem the Notes when due,
interest shall continue to accrue on the
outstanding aggregate principal amount of the
Notes from, and including, the due date for
redemption to, but excluding, the date of actual
redemption of the Notes at the respective rate of



tatséchlichen Ruckzahlung der
Schuldverschreibungen (ausschlie3lich) weiterhin
in Hohe des jeweils vorgesehenen Zinssatzes

verzinst. Weitergehende  Anspriiche der
Glaubiger bleiben unberihrt.]

([4/5]) Berechnung  des  Zinsbetrags. Die
Berechnungsstelle wird den auf die

Schuldverschreibungen zu zahlenden Zinsbetrag
(der "Zinsbetrag") in Bezug auf die festgelegte
Stuckelung fur die relevante Zinsperiode
berechnen. Der Zinsbetrag wird berechnet, indem
der Zinssatz auf die festgelegte Stiickelung
angewendet wird, dieser Betrag mit dem
Zinstagequotienten (wie nachstehend definiert)
multipliziert und der hieraus resultierende Betrag
auf die nachste Untereinheit der festgelegten
Wahrung gerundet wird, wobei eine halbe
Untereinheit aufgerundet wird oder die Rundung
ansonsten geman der anwendbaren
Marktkonvention  erfolgt. Im  Falle einer
Verlangerung oder Verkirzung der Zinsperiode
kann der auf diese Weise berechnete Zinsbetrag
ohne Vorankindigung nachtraglich angepasst
(oder andere geeignete Anpassungsregelungen
getroffen) werden.

([5/6]) Mitteilungen des Zinssatzes. Die
Berechnungsstelle wird veranlassen, dass die
Zinsperiode und der Zinssatz der Emittentin, jeder
Borse, an der die Schuldverschreibungen zu
diesem Zeitpunkt notiert sind und deren Regeln
eine Mitteilung an die Borse verlangen, und den
Glaubigern gemal §[10/11] baldmdglichst nach
ihrer Bestimmung mitgeteilt werden.

([6/7]) Verbindlichkeit der Festsetzungen. Alle
Bescheinigungen, Mitteilungen, Gutachten,
Festsetzungen, Berechnungen, Quotierungen
und Entscheidungen, die von der
Berechnungsstelle fur die Zwecke dieses 8§ 3
gemacht, abgegeben, getroffen oder eingeholt
werden, sind (sofern keine vorsatzliche
Pflichtverletzung, kein bdser Glaube und kein
offensichtlicher Irrtum vorliegt) fir die Emittentin,
die Zahlstellen und die Glaubiger bindend, und,
sofern keiner der vorstehend genannten
Umstande vorliegt, haftet die Berechnungsstelle
nicht gegenlber der Emittentin, den Zahlstellen
oder den Glaubigern im Zusammenhang mit der
Auslibung oder Nichtaustibung ihrer Rechte und
Pflichten und ihres Ermessens gemalR solchen
Bestimmungen.

([7/8]) Zinstagequotient. "Zinstagequotient"
bezeichnet im Hinblick auf die Berechnung eines
Zinsbetrags auf eine Schuldverschreibung fir
einen beliebigen Zeitraum (der
"Zinsberechnungszeitraum"):

[Falls Actual/Actual (ICMA) anwendbar ist,
einfugen:

(@)

falls der Zinsberechnungszeitraum kurzer
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interest specified. This does not affect any
additional rights that might be available to the
Holders.]

([4/5]) Calculation of Amount of Interest. The
Calculation Agent will calculate the amount of
interest payable under the Notes (the "Amount of
Interest”) in respect of the Specified
Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. The
Amount of Interest shall be calculated by applying
the Rate of Interest to the Specified
Denomination, multiplying such sum by the
applicable Day Count Fraction (as defined below)
and rounding the resulting figure to the nearest
sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, with
half of such sub-unit being rounded upwards or
otherwise in accordance with applicable market
convention. Each Amount of Interest so
calculated may subsequently be amended (or
appropriate alternative arrangements made by
way of adjustment) without notice in the event of
an extension or shortening of the Interest Period.

([5/6]) Notification of Rate of Interest. The
Calculation Agent will cause the Interest Period
and the Rate of Interest to be notified to the
Issuer, any stock exchange on which the Notes
are from time to time listed (if required by the
rules of such stock exchange) and to the Holders
in accordance with § [10/11] as soon as possible
after their determination.

([6/7]) Determinations Binding. All certificates,
communications, opinions, determinations,
calculations, quotations and decisions given,
expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of
the provisions of this § 3 by the Calculation Agent
shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or
manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the
Paying Agents and the Holders and, in the
absence of the aforesaid, no liability to the Issuer,
the Paying Agents or the Holders shall attach to
the Calculation Agent in connection with the
exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties
and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

([7/8]) Day Count Fraction. "Day Count Fraction"
means, in respect of the calculation of an amount
of interest on any Note for any period of time (the
"Calculation Period"):

[In case Actual/Actual (ICMA) applies, insert:

@)

if the Calculation Period is equal to or



ist als die Feststellungsperiode, in die das
Ende des Zinsberechnungszeitraums fallt,
oder falls der Zinsberechnungszeitraum der
Feststellungsperiode entspricht, die Anzahl
der Kalendertage in dem
Zinsberechnungszeitraum geteilt durch das
Produkt aus: (x)der Anzahl der
Kalendertage in der Feststellungsperiode;
und (y) der Anzahl der
Feststellungstermine  (wie nachstehend
angegeben) in einem Kalenderjahr; oder

(b) falls der Zinsberechnungszeitraum langer
ist als die Feststellungsperiode, in die das
Ende des Zinsberechnungszeitraums fallt,
die Summe aus

0] der Anzahl der Kalendertage in dem
Zinsberechnungszeitraum, die in die
Feststellungsperiode fallen, in
welcher der
Zinsberechnungszeitraum  beginnt,
geteilt durch das Produkt aus: (x) der
Anzahl der Kalendertage in der
Feststellungsperiode; und (y) der
Anzahl der Feststellungstermine in
einem Kalenderjahr; und

(i) der Anzahl der Kalendertage in dem
Zinsberechnungszeitraum, die in die
nachste Feststellungsperiode fallen,
geteilt durch das Produkt aus: (x) der
Anzahl der Kalendertage in dieser
Feststellungsperiode; und (y) der
Anzahl der Feststellungstermine in
einem Kalenderjahr.

"Feststellungsperiode” ist der Zeitraum von
einem Feststellungstermin (einschlie3lich) bis
zum nachsten Feststellungstermin
(ausschliel3lich); dies schliet dann, wenn der
Verzinsungsbeginn kein Feststellungstermin ist,
den Zeitraum ein, der an dem ersten
Feststellungstermin vor dem Verzinsungsbeginn
anfangt, und dann, wenn der letzte
Zinszahlungstag kein Feststellungstermin ist, den
Zeitraum ein, der an dem ersten
Feststellungstermin nach dem letzten
Zinszahlungstag endet.

Die Anzahl der Feststellungstermine im
Kalenderjahr (jeweils ein "Feststellungstermin®)
betragt [Anzahl der regularen
Zinszahlungstage im Kalenderjahr einfigen].]

(ISDA) anwendbar ist,
einfigen: die tatsdchliche Anzahl von
Kalendertagen im  Zinsberechnungszeitraum
dividiert durch 365 (oder, falls ein Teil des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums in ein Schaltjahr fallt,
die Summe aus:

[Falls Actual/Actual

(& der tatséachlichen Anzahl von
Kalendertagen in dem Teil des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums, die in das
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shorter than the Determination Period
during which the Calculation Period ends,
the number of calendar days in such
Calculation Period divided by the product
of: (x) the number of calendar days in such
Determination Period; and (y) the number
of Determination Dates (as specified below)
that would occur in one calendar year; or

(b) if the Calculation Period is longer than the
Determination Period during which the
Calculation Period ends, the sum of

0] the number of calendar days in such
Calculation Period falling in the
Determination Period in which the
Calculation Period begins divided by
the product of: (x)the number of
calendar days in such Determination
Period; and (y)the number of
Determination Dates that would
occur in one calendar year; and

(i) the number of calendar days in such
Calculation Period falling in the next
Determination Period divided by the

product of: (x)the number of
calendar days in such Determination
Period; and (y)the number of
Determination Dates that would

occur in one calendar year.

"Determination Period" means the period from,
and including, a Determination Date to, but
excluding, the next Determination Date (including,
where the Interest Commencement Date is not a
Determination Date, the period commencing on
the first Determination Date prior to the Interest
Commencement Date, and where the final
Interest Payment Date is not a Determination
Date, the first Determination Date falling after the
final Interest Payment Date, as the case may be).

The number of interest determination dates per
calendar year (each a "Determination Date") is
[insert number of regular interest payment
dates per calendar year].]

[In case Actual/Actual (ISDA) applies, insert:
the actual number of calendar days in the
Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any
calculation portion of that Calculation Period falls
in a leap year, the sum of:

@)

the actual number of calendar days in that
portion of the Calculation Period falling in a



Schaltjahr fallen, dividiert durch 366; und

die tatsachliche Anzahl von Kalendertagen
in dem Tell des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums, die nicht in ein
Schaltjahr fallen, dividiert durch 365).]

[Falls Actual/365

(b)

(Fixed) anwendbar ist,
einfigen: die tatsdchliche Anzahl von
Kalendertagen im  Zinsberechnungszeitraum
dividiert durch 365.]

[Falls Actual/360 anwendbar ist, einfligen: die
tatsdchliche Anzahl von Kalendertagen im
Zinsberechnungszeitraum dividiert durch 360.]

[Falls 30/360, 360/360 oder Bond Basis

anwendbar ist, einfigen: die Anzahl von
Kalendertagen im  Zinsberechnungszeitraum
dividiert durch 360, wobei die Anzahl der

Kalendertage auf der Grundlage eines Jahres von
360 Kalendertagen mit zwolf Monaten zu je
30 Kalendertagen zu ermitteln ist (es sei denn:

(& der letzte Kalendertag des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums fallt auf den
31. Kalendertag eines Monats, wahrend
der erste Kalendertag des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums weder auf den
30. noch auf den 31. Kalendertag eines
Monats fallt, wobei in diesem Fall der den
letzten Kalendertag enthaltende Monat
nicht als ein auf 30 Kalendertage gekurzter

Monat zu behandeln ist; oder

(b) der letzte Kalendertag des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums fallt auf den
letzten Kalendertag des Monats Februar,
wobei in diesem Fall der Monat Februar
nicht als ein auf 30 Kalendertage
verlangerter Monat zu behandeln ist).]

[Falls 30E/360 oder Eurobond Basis

anwendbar ist, einfigen: die Anzahl von

Kalendertagen im  Zinsberechnungszeitraum

dividiert durch 360 (wobei die Anzahl der

Kalendertage auf der Grundlage eines Jahres von
360 Kalendertagen mit zwdlf Monaten zu je
30 Kalendertagen zu ermitteln ist, und zwar ohne
Berlicksichtigung des Datums des ersten oder
letzten Kalendertages des
Zinsberechnungszeitraums, es sei denn, der
Falligkeitstag ist, im Fall des letzten
Zinsberechnungszeitraums, der letzte
Kalendertag des Monats Februar, wobei in
diesem Fall der Monat Februar nicht als ein auf
30 Kalendertage verlangerter Monat zZu
behandeln ist).

([8/9]) Ersatz-Referenz[zins]satz. Im Fall eines
Benchmark-Ereignisses (wie nachstehend
definiert): (i) bemiht sich die Emittentin im
angemessenen Umfang einen Unabhéangigen
Berater zu ernennen, um im billigen Ermessen
des Unabhangigen Beraters (in Abstimmung mit
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leap year divided by 366; and
(b)

the actual number of calendar days in that
portion of the Calculation Period falling in a

non-leap year divided by 365).]

[In case Actual/365 (Fixed) applies, insert: the
actual number of calendar days in the Calculation
Period divided by 365.]

[In case Actual/360 applies, insert: the actual
number of calendar days in the Calculation Period
divided by 360.]

[In case 30/360, 360/360 or Bond Basis
applies, insert: the number of calendar days in
the Calculation Period divided by 360, the number
of calendar days to be calculated on the basis of
a year of 360 calendar days with twelve 30-
calendar day months (unless:

(@) the last calendar day of the Calculation
Period is the 31st calendar day of a month
but the first calendar day of the Calculation
Period is a calendar day other than the 30th
or 31st calendar day of a month, in which
case the month that includes that last
calendar day shall not be considered to be

shortened to a 30-calendar day month; or

(b) the last calendar day of the Calculation
Period is the last calendar day of the month
of February in which case the month of
February shall not be considered to be

lengthened to a 30-calendar day month).]

[In case 30E/360 or Eurobond Basis applies,
insert: the number of calendar days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of
calendar days to be calculated on the basis of a
year of 360 calendar days with twelve 30-
calendar day months, without regard to the date
of the first calendar day or last calendar day of the
Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final
Calculation Period, the Maturity Date is the last
calendar day of the month of February, in which
case the month of February shall not be
considered to be lengthened to a 30-calendar day
month).

([8/9]) Substitute Reference [Interest] Rate. In the
event of a Benchmark Event: (i) the Issuer shall
use reasonable endeavours to appoint an
Independent Advisor to determine in the
Independent Advisor's reasonable discretion (in
consultation with the Calculation Agent and acting



der Berechnungsstelle und in gutem Glauben und
auf eine wirtschaftlich verniinftige Weise
handelnd (das "Ersetzungsziel")) einen Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satz zu bestimmen, der an die
Stelle des vom Benchmark-Ereignis betroffenen

ursprunglichen Referenz[zins]satzes tritt; oder
(i) falls der Unabhangige Berater von der
Emittentin  nicht ernannt wird oder nicht

zeitgerecht ernannt werden kann oder falls ein
Unabhangiger Berater von der Emittentin ernannt
wird, aber dieser keinen Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satz bestimmt, dann kann die
Emittentin (unter Berucksichtigung des
Ersetzungsziels) bestimmen, welcher Satz (falls
Uberhaupt) den vom  Benchmark-Ereignis
betroffenen urspriinglichen Referenz[zins]satz
ersetzt hat. Ein Ersatz-Referenz[zins]satz gilt ab
dem vom Unabhéngigen Berater oder von der
Emittentin (je nachdem) im billigen Ermessen
bestimmten Feststellungstag (einschlieBlich),
frihestens jedoch ab dem Feststellungstag, der
mit dem Benchmark-Ereignis zusammenfallt oder
auf dieses folgt, erstmals mit Wirkung fir die
Zinsperiode, fur die an diesem Feststellungstag
der Zinssatz festgelegt wird. Der "Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satz" ist ein Satz (ausgedriickt als
Prozentsatz per annum), der sich aus einem vom
Unabhangigen Berater oder von der Emittentin (je
nachdem) im billigen Ermessen festgelegten
Alternativ-Referenz[zins]satz (der "Alternativ-
Referenz[zins]satz"), der von einem Dritten
bereitgestellt wird und der alle anwendbaren
rechtlichen Voraussetzungen erfillt, um ihn zur
Bestimmung von Zahlungsverpflichtungen aus
den Schuldverschreibungen zu verwenden, mit
den vom Unabhéngigen Berater oder von der
Emittentin (je nachdem) im billigen Ermessen
gegebenenfalls bestimmten Anpassungen (zB in
Form von Auf- oder Abschlagen) ergibt.

Unbeschadet der Allgemeingultigkeit  des
Vorstehenden kann die Emittentin insbesondere,
aber ohne Beschréankung, ein Amtliches
Ersetzungskonzept, eine Branchenlésung oder
eine Allgemein Akzeptierte Marktpraxis
umsetzen.

Bestimmt der Unabhangige Berater oder die
Emittentin ~ (je nachdem) einen  Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satz, so besteht auch das Recht,
nach billigem Ermessen diejenigen
verfahrensmafigen Festlegungen in Bezug auf
die Bestimmung des aktuellen Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satzes (zB Feststellungstag,
mafgebliche Uhrzeit, maRgebliche
Bildschirmseite fur den Bezug des Alternativ-
Referenz[zins]satzes sowie Ausfallbestimmungen
fur den Fall der Nichtverfligbarkeit der
maRgeblichen Bildschirmseite) zu treffen und
diejenigen Anpassungen an die Definition von
"Geschéftstag” in § 1 (6) und die Bestimmungen
zur Geschéaftstagekonvention in §4 (3)
vorzunehmen, die in Ubereinstimmung mit der

72

in good faith and a commercially reasonable
manner (the "Substitution Objective"”)) a
Substitute Reference [Interest] Rate which shall
replace the original Reference [Interest] Rate
affected by the Benchmark Event; or (ii)if no
Independent Advisor is or can be timely appointed
by the Issuer or if an Independent Advisor is
appointed by the Issuer, but fails to determine a
Substitute Reference [Interest] Rate, then the
Issuer (in consideration of the Substitute
Objective) may determine which (if any) rate has
replaced the original Reference [Interest] Rate
affected by the Benchmark Event. Any Substitute
Reference [Interest] Rate shall apply from (and
including) the Determination Day determined by
the Independent Advisor or the Issuer (as the
case may be) in its due discretion, which shall be
no earlier than the Determination Day falling on or
immediately following the date of the Benchmark
Event, with first effect for the Interest Period for
which the Rate of Interest is determined on such
Determination Day. The "Substitute Reference
[Interest] Rate" shall be a rate (expressed as a
percentage rate per annum) which corresponds to
an alternative reference [interest] rate (the
"Alternative  Reference [Interest] Rate")
provided by a third party and meeting any
applicable legal requirements for being used for
determining the payment obligations under the
Notes determined by the Independent Advisor or
the Issuer (as the case may be) in its due
discretion, as modified by applying the
adjustments (e.g. in the form of premiums or
discounts), if any, that may be determined by the
Independent Advisor or the Issuer (as the case
may be) in its due discretion.

Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing,
the Issuer may in particular, but without limitation
implement an Official Substitution Concept, an
Industry Solution or a Generally Accepted Market
Practice.

If the Independent Advisor or the Issuer (as the
case may be) determines a Substitute Reference
[Interest] Rate, it shall also be entitled to make, in
its due discretion, any such procedural
determinations relating to the determination of the
current Substitute Reference [Interest] Rate (e.qg.
the determination day, the relevant time, the
relevant screen page for obtaining the Alternative
Reference [Interest] Rate and the fallback
provisions in the event that the relevant screen
page is not available) and to make such
adjustments to the definition of "Business Day" in
§1(6) and the business day convention
provisions in § 4 (3) which in accordance with the
generally accepted market practice are necessary
or expedient to make the substitution of the



allgemein akzeptierten Marktpraxis erforderlich
oder zweckmé&Rig sind, um die Ersetzung des
Referenz[zins]satzes durch den Ersatz-
Referenz[zins]satz praktisch durchfihrbar zu
machen.

"Benchmark-Ereignis" bezeichnet:

(a) eine dauerhafte und endgultige Einstellung
der Ermittlung, Bereitstellung oder Bekanntgabe
des Referenz[zins]satzes durch einen zentralen

Administrator, ohne dass ein Nachfolge-
Administrator ~ existiert, oder ein sonstiger
dauerhafter und endgiltiger Wegfall des

Referenz[zins]satzes;

(b) eine wesentliche Anderung der Methode zur

Ermittlung oder Berechnung des
Referenz[zins]satzes im Vergleich zu derjenigen
Methode, die bei Begebung der

Schuldverschreibungen zur Anwendung kam,
wenn diese Anderung dazu fuhrt, dass der

gemal der neuen Methode berechnete
Referenz[zins]satz nicht mehr den
Referenz[zins]satz  reprasentiert oder  zu

reprasentieren geeignet ist oder aus sonstigen
Grinden seinem wirtschaftlichen Gehalt nach
nicht mehr mit dem Referenz[zins]satz
vergleichbar ist, der mit der bei Begebung der
Schuldverschreibungen zur Anwendung
gekommenen Methode ermittelt oder berechnet
wurde; und

(c) die Anwendbarkeit eines Gesetzes oder einer

sonstigen Rechtsvorschrift oder einer
behordlichen oder gerichtlichen Anordnung,
Verfligung oder  sonstigen  verbindlichen

MalRnahme, die unmittelbar dazu fuhrt, dass der
Referenz[zins]satz nicht mehr als Referenzsatz
zur Bestimmung von Zahlungsverpflichtungen
unter den Schuldverschreibungen verwendet
werden darf oder nach der eine derartige
Verwendung nicht nur unwesentlichen
Beschrankungen oder nachteiligen Folgen
unterliegt.

"Amtliches Ersetzungskonzept" bezeichnet
eine verbindliche oder unverbindliche AuRerung
einer Zentralbank, einer Aufsichtsbehdrde oder
eines Offentlich-rechtlich  konstituierten  oder
besetzten Aufsichts- oder Fachgremiums der
Finanzbranche, wonach ein bestimmter
Referenzsatz, gegebenenfalls unter Vornahme
bestimmter Anpassungen, an die Stelle des
Referenz[zins]satzes treten solle oder kdnne oder

wonach ein  bestimmtes  Verfahren  zur
Bestimmung von Zahlungsverpflichtungen, die
ansonsten unter Bezugnahme auf den

Referenz[zins]satz bestimmt werden wirden, zur
Anwendung gelangen solle oder kénne.

"Branchenlésung" bezeichnet eine AuRerung
der International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (ISDA), der International Capital
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Reference [Interest] Rate by the Substitute
Reference [Interest] Rate operative.

"Benchmark Event" means:

(a) any permanent and final termination of the
determination, provision or publication of the
Reference [Interest] Rate by any central
administrator in  circumstances where no
successor administrator exists, or any other
permanent and final discontinuation of the
existence of the Reference [Interest] Rate;

(b) a material change in the methodology of
determining or calculating the Reference
[Interest] Rate as compared to the methodology
used at the time of the issuance of the Notes if
such change results in the Reference [Interest]
Rate, calculated in accordance with the new
methodology, no longer representating, or being
apt to represent adequately, the Reference
[Interest] Rate or in terms of economic substance
no longer being comparable to the Reference
[Interest] Rate determined or calculated in
accordance with the methodology used at the
time of the issuance of the Notes; and

(c) the applicability of any law or any other legal
provision, or of any administrative or judicial
order, decree or other binding measure, pursuant
to which the Reference [Interest] Rate may no
longer be used as a reference rate to determine
the payment obligations under the Notes, or
pursuant to which any such use is subject to not

only immaterial restrictions or adverse
consequences.
"Official Substitution Concept" means any

binding or non-binding statement by any central
bank, supervisory authority or supervisory or
expert body of the financial sector established
under public law or composed of publically
appointed members pursuant to which a certain
reference rate, subject to certain adjustments (if
any), should or could be used to replace the
Reference [Interest] Rate or pursuant to which a
certain procedure should or could be used in
order to determine payment obligations which
would otherwise be determined by reference to
the Reference [Interest] Rate.

"Industry Solution" means any statement by the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association
(ISDA), the International Capital Markets



Markets Association (ICMA), der Association for

Financial Markets in Europe (AFME), der
Securities  Industry and Financial Markets
Association  (SIFMA), der SIFMA  Asset

Management Group (SIFMA AMG), der Loan
Markets Association (LMA), des Deutschen
Derivate Verbands (DDV), des Zertifikate Forum
Osterreich  oder eines sonstigen privaten
Branchenverbands der Finanzwirtschaft, wonach
ein bestimmter Referenzsatz, gegebenenfalls
unter Vornahme bestimmter Anpassungen, an die
Stelle des Referenz[zins]satzes treten solle oder
koénne oder wonach ein bestimmtes Verfahren zur
Bestimmung von Zahlungsverpflichtungen, die
ansonsten unter Bezugnahme auf den
Referenz[zins]satz bestimmt werden wirden, zur
Anwendung gelangen solle oder kénne.

"Allgemein Akzeptierte Marktpraxis" bezeichnet
die Verwendung eines bestimmten
Referenzsatzes, gegebenenfalls unter Vornahme
bestimmter Anpassungen, anstelle des
Referenz[zins]satzes oder die vertragliche oder
anderweitige  Regelung eines  bestimmten
Verfahrens zur Bestimmung von
Zahlungsverpflichtungen, die ansonsten unter
Bezugnahme auf den  Referenz[zins]satz
bestimmt worden waren, in einer Vielzahl von
Anleiheemissionen nach dem Eintritt eines
Benchmark-Ereignisses oder eine sonstige
allgemein akzeptierte Marktpraxis zur Ersetzung
des Referenz[zins]satzes als Referenzsatz fir die
Bestimmung von Zahlungsverpflichtungen.

Fur die Zwecke dieses Unterabsatzes bezeichnet
der "Unabhéngige Berater" ein unabhangiges
Finanzinstitut von internationaler Reputation oder
einen anderen unabhangigen Finanzberater in
der Eurozone mit Erfahrung am internationalen
Kapitalmarkt, der jeweils von der Emittentin auf
ihre eigenen Kosten ernannt wird.

Der Unabhangige Berater oder die Emittentin (je
nachdem) sind nach biligem Ermessen
berechtigt, aber nicht verpflichtet, in Bezug auf
ein und dasselbe Benchmark-Ereignis mehrfach
einen Ersatz-Referenz[zins]satz nach Maligabe
der Bestimmungen dieses Unterabsatzes zu
bestimmen, wenn diese spéatere Bestimmung
besser geeignet ist als die jeweils
vorangegangene, das  Ersetzungsziel  zu
erreichen. Die Bestimmungen dieses
Unterabsatzes gelten auch entsprechend fir den
Fall, dass in Bezug auf einen vom Unabhéangigen
Berater oder von der Emittentin (je nachdem)
zuvor bestimm